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THE FPIC PERFORMANCE STORY

You are about to read the FPIC Peﬁormance Story.

Whether creating value for shareholders, policyholders and
customers, reaffirming our commitment to building competitive
advantages, or strengthening our core disciplines and expertise,
our primary focus is driving performance across all areas

of the Company.

As the following pages illustrate, in focusing on performance,

OUR RESULTS SPEAK FOR THEMSELVES.




DELIVERING

strong results

FOR OUR SEAREEOLDERS.

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME AND
EARNINGS PER DILUTED SHARE:

2004: $28.2 nullion, or $2.70 per share

2003: $16.6 million, or $1.71 per share
2002%: $14.9 million, or $1.58 per share

2001: $2.9 million, or $0.31 per share
2000: $0.6 million, or $0.06 per share

THE FPIC PERFORMANCE STORY

VALUE

2 * Before cimulative effect of accounting change.



At FPIC,
building value for

our shareholders, policyholders and customers

is an overarching commitment.

Our business strfifegy is designed
to deliver long-term value to our
shareholders, whﬂe offering value
to our policyholcilers and customers
through competitive products and
responsive se;viée. We are committed
to building these competitive advan-
tages through our targeted market
and dual busine§§ model focus. As our
2004 resul;s indicate, we have core
disciplines in plaée, and the expertise
to fulfill these commitments.

During 2004, FPIC delivered
strong operating performance. Our
revenues totaled $236.8 million, a
17% increase :ﬁom 2003. Net income
for 2004 was $28.2 million, an increase
of 70% from 2003. Significantly, these
results cap 12 consecutive quarters of
positive earningé.i |

Both of our major business opera-
tions reported sfrbng results last year.
Our medical professional liability
insurance operations accounted for

$175.1 million®, or approximately

1 Calculated based on reveniies before intersegment eliminations.

73%!, of our total revenues in 2004.
This operation produced $16.3 million
in net income, or approximately 58%
of our consolidated net income.
Underwriting margins improved for
the fourth consecutive year during
2004, and our combined ratio
improved to 92%, a five-year low.

Our insurance management oper-
ations accounted for $48.5 milliont,
or 20%’, of our total revenues. This
operation delivered net income of
$10.9 million, or approximately 39%
of our consolidated net income. Fourth
quarter 2004 results represent the
24th consecutive quarter of earnings
growth from our insurance manage-
ment segment.

The strong results of our opera-
tions have significantly contributed

to our financial strength.

MAINTAINING FINANCIAL STRENGTH
Our commitment to maintaining
financial strength runs throughout

our organization. For the last several

years, we have been focusing on our
core strengths. We have withdrawn
from noncore businesses and lines of
business. At the same time, we have
contributed internally generated
funds to strengthen and expand our
core operations.

We have complemented these
initiatives with actions to strengthen
our balance sheet. In 2003, we fully
retired our short-term bank debt
and replaced it with long-term debt
that is not due until 2033, thereby
improving our liquidity and giving
us greater operating flexibility.

In 2004, our strong earnings and
growing equity and statutory surplus
afforded us the opportunity to cease
turther cessions under a large rein- -
surance agreement. This allowed us
to retain business that would have
otherwise been ceded thereby
providing built-in organic growth
for the future. We also filed a

$100 million shelf registration
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with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in July 2004, which
gives us flexibility for the next two
years to quickly and efficiently under-
take an equity or debt offering should
we choose to take advantage of
growth opportunities as they occur.
The results of these initiatives have
enhanced our capitalization and are
evident in our stronger balance sheet.
The consolidated statutory surplus
of our insurance subsidiaries totaled
$160.2 million as of December 31, 2004,
a 20% increase over 2003. We have

improved our debt structure, and our

organic growth

$193 million
IN NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN

MILLIONS
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debt-to-equity ratio is 21%, an
appropriate level for our company.
Reserves grew 11% to $635 million
and total assets are approximately
$1.3 billion.

EFFECTIVE ALLOCATION OF CAPITAL
Our commitment to maintaining
the financial strength of our growing
capital base also requires a commit-
ment to prudent capital allocation.
We are committed to providing
the necessary capital to enable each of
our operations to achieve disciplined

growth objectives. Market conditions

o

$160 million
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and growth opportunities during
2004 within our core Florida
insurance market continued to be
favorable. Our insurance manage-
ment operations also had growth
opportunities in 2004, as the
physician-based business and the
institutional healthcare business

that we manage in New York grew.
Thus, a key component of our strategy
has been to effectively allocate capital
for new and renewal business in our
existing markets. We will maintain our
disciplined and focused approach to

allocating capital, which has served
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us well, while béing open to other
opportunities. We are positioned
to take advantage of opportunistic
growth, subj:ect‘to the core disciplines
of our business strategy and the
prudent ailocation of our capital.
Our commitment to building
value, maintaining financial strength
and effectively allocating capital
through disciplined gréwth continued
to pay off in 2004. Shareholders’
equity totaled $217.1 million as of
December 31, 2604, a‘zl 6% increase

over 2003, which resulted in a return

* Excludes goodwill and intangible asscts,

14%

RETURN ON
AVERAGE EQUITY

$217 million

GAAP EQUITY

MILLIONS
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on average equity of 14% for our
shareholders. Tangible book value
per common sharé, which excludes
goodwill and intahgible assets, rose
15% to $19.63 at year-end 2004,
while book value per common share
stood at $21.56, up 13% over 2003.
FPIC’ closing market price at
year-end 2004 was $35.38.

$21.56
BOOK VALUE
$19 63 PER SHARE
TANGIBLE
BOOK VALUE
PER SHARE"
$20 —

$15 —
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Sustaining profitability and
financial strength, while driving
disciplined growth in our core
operations, will continue to be
among our key objectives.



COMBINED, DIRECT PREMIUMS WRITTEN
OF CUR TWO BUSINESS MODELS MAKE FPIC THE

5th largest

MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE ORGANIZATION
IN THE NATION.
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COMMITMENT




Reaffirming our commitment

to building competitive advantages

tmough targeted market and dual business model focus.

TARGETED MARKET FOCUS
FPIC is cOmmitjted to maintaining
a targeted markét focus in selected
markets where we have extensive
knowledge and- expertise. For exam-
ple, we grew o‘u:r;core Florida book
of business by 13% in 2004, while we
held our overall :policyholder count
essentially level. We are also looking
to our existing market§ for near-term
growth rather than expansion into
new geographic ‘markets. In New York,
we are opportunistically growing the
business of the ijnsurance company
we manage, with-an emphasis on
growth in institutional markets.
Because the medical professional
liability insﬁran‘cje sector is highly
regulated at the state lével, success in
a given marketur:e‘quires an in-depth
understanding of an individual state’s
regulatory, legislative, judicial and
competitive environments. Know-
ledge of market dynamics is
important, as are strong, enduring
relationships with the market’s med-

ical and legal communities. This

knowledge provides us with signifi-
cant competitive advantages in terms
of underwriting, pricing, claims man-
agement and policyholder service.
By focusing on targeted markets,

we have successfully created enduring

competitive advantages. In Florida,

the nation’s third largest medical
professional liability insurance market,
we have been a market leader for

28 years.

We have been an active participant
in the New York market, the nation’s
largest, for 23 years. Currently, the
Insurance carrier we manage has
the second largest market share in
New York. In both of these markets,
we have strong brand recognition,
deep resources and the ability to take

advantage of significant efficiencies.

DUAL BUSINESS MODEL FOCUS

Qur commitment to a targeted
market strategy is complemented by
our focus on two distinct business
models. Through our insurance and

insurance management operations,

we operate in the medical profes-
sional liability insurance sector, both
as an insurance carrier and a provider
of comprehensive management serv-
ices to other insurance carriers. .

Our insurance operations issue poli-
cles, bear associated underwriting risks
and earn income on invested assets.

Our insurance management
operations (sometimes referred to
as reciprocal management) provide
management services to two insur-
ance carriers, which are not owned
by FPIC, for which we earn fee
income. Our primary customer is
Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers, or
PRI, which is owned by and operated
for the benefit of its policyholders.

By having two business models,
we can selectively participate in
diverse opportunities in the complex
medical professional liability
insurance sector.

Geographic focus and a robust,
two-tiered business model have been
key to FPIC’s success and will con-

tinue to drive our future growth.




FOCUS ON OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY,
AND OUR EXPERTISE, RESULTED IN

14% return on average equity

FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS.

PRUDENT CAPHAT MANAGEMENI

CONSERVATIVLE RES! RVING

PROAC TIVE RISK ATANAGEMENT

EEITCTIVE O ATMS AVTAN AGEMENT

REASONED PRICING

NG
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DISCIP] INED

MAINTAINING

THE FPIC PERFORMANCE STORY

EXPERTISE




Strengthening our

core disciplines and our expertise

is a fundamental commitment.

We are committed to'systematically
strengthening the core disciplines
and the experﬁée, that drive our
business strétegy. Disciplined under-
writing, reasonéd pricing, effective
claims manégement, ﬁroactive risk
management, conservative reserving
and prudent cé?itai nianagement are
fundamental commitments that we

will not compromise..

DISCIPLINED UNjE‘)ERWRITING

In our own insurance operations,
and on behalf of the insurance
carriers we manage, our goal is to
build a policyholder base with an
excellent risk pfoﬁle. Strict under-
writing guideliﬁes must be met
by each insured.

In our insurance underwriting
operations, each policyholder is
reevaluated annually upon renewal
and new policyholders must have at
least 10 years of practice without a
material loss to be insured. We offer
claims-made policies, which allow for

accurate, timely pricing and estimates

of underwriting risks. We do not
insure hospitals or other large health-
care institutions. .

The insurance carriers we manage
insure hospitals and other healthcare
institutions and require them to
meet similar stringent underwriting
guidelines.

We select risks based on a wide
range of factors, with a particular
focus on the professional’s training,
medical specialty iénd claims history.
By focusing on a.small number of
attractive marketsi we have a signifi-
cant competitive advantage in
underwriting good business and

selecting appropriate risks.

REASONED PRICING

Maintaining reasoned pricing is
fundamental to our success. Market
conditions mandated price increases in
Florida during the past several vears.
During 2004, we filed for an 8% rate
increase, effective March 1, 2005, at
our largest Florida subsidiary in order

to stay current with loss trends.

oz 1223t LiToninopTuEIo T
'

Pricing for individual physician
coverage in New York 1s mandated
by the New York State Insurance
Department. Moderate rate increases
have been approved by the New York
State Insurance Department for the
last two years. Institutional coverages
in New York are more competitively
priced. Our extensive knowledge of
the markets we serve, combined with
extensive relationships within the
healthcare community, have enabled
us to attract new institutional busi-
ness in New York.

Within both key markets, we seek
to provide quality insurance coverage
and outstanding service at appropri-
ate prices. Our success gives us strong

confidence in our pricing positions.

SFFECTIVE CLAIMS MANAGEMENT
Our prudent risk selection is sup-
ported by effective claims handling.
We are committed to vigorously
defending nonmeritorious claims
and expeditiously settling claims

with merit.
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LOSS RATIO
EXPENSE RATIO

During 2004, our average net paid
loss per professional liability claim with
indemnity payment declined 9%. Newly
reported claims and incidents were
down 29%, a positive and significant
leading indicator of improved claims
frequency for 2004.The percentage
of claims with an indemnity payment
(“CWIP”) to all closed claims and
incidents was 14% during 2004,
significantly lower than the CWIP
percentages for 2000 and 2001, which
were 20% and 18%, respectively. FPIC

tried more cases during 2004 than

18%

FIVE-YEAR
COMPOUNDED
ANNUAL GROWTH
RATE

$1.3 billion

IN ASSETS
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in any previous year, while improving
our ratio of trial wins to losses.

Claims management is also a
top priority in New York. We have
expanded our in-house law firm
to more efficiently manage defense
costs. More than two-thirds of
claims have traditionally been closed
without a payment.

Helping to prevent avoidable
claims is another aspect of our claims
management philosophy. We offer
policyholders a variety of risk man-

agement tools and programs designed

10

$635 million
IN GROSS LOSS AND
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to help them successfully manage
risks and thereby minimize the inci-
dence of claims. Qur approach to risk
management is proactive, experience-

based and multifaceted.

CONSERVATIVE RESERVING
Adequate reserving is a cornerstone
of our business strategy and a
commitment to our customers,
policyholders and shareholders.
During 2004, we continued to
reserve for our insurance risks at

an appropriately conservative level,




CLAIMS AND INCIDENTS
REPORTED DOWN

29%

2,189
CLAIMS AND INCIDENTS
REPORTED

3500 —
3000 —
2500 — ‘ \
2000 — “
1500 —
1000 —

500 —

0— - .- S -
00 01 02-03 04

which ensures the long-term
financial stfength‘of our organiza-
tion. Reserves increased to $635
million during 2004, aﬁ increase

of 11% from 2003. The growing
strength of our reserves is a function
of our focus on underwriting,

pricing and claims management,

together with conservative reserving.

We believe our conservative
approach to res‘ef\zing has built

a sense of trust émong our
actuaries, accouﬁtants, policyholders

and shareholders.

$194,000

AVERAGE INDEMNITY
PER CLAIM
WITH PAYMENT
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PRUDENT CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

We remain committed to prudently
managing our capital. Our focus
remains on opportunistically pursuing
disciplined growth, prudently manag-
ing our financial and operating
leverage, taking a disciplined approach
to managing risks, effectively handling
claims, proactively minimizing risks,
conservative reserving and investment
of portfolio assets, and maintaining
appropriate reinsurance and capital.
Prudent capital management represents

the convergence of our core disciplines.

11
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14%
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The growing strength of
our reserves is a_function of
our focus on underwriting,
pricing and claims
management, together

with conservative reserving.



growth

IN CORE FLORIDA
INSURANCE OPERATIONS

$313 million
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FLORIDA
OTHER STATES

SOLID STRATEGY, EXPERTISE,
GOOD PECPLE

At FPIC, our most valuable assets

do not appear on our balance sheet.
Qur people continue to drive per-
formance in every facet of our opera-
tions. Over the past five years, we
have assembled one of the strongest
leadership teams in the business, with
significant expertise in insurance,

accounting, finance and law.

14,047

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
POLICYHOLDERS

THOUSANDS
EXCLUDING FRONTING

20 —

0 —
G0 01 02 G3 &4

FLORIDA
OTHER STATES

Our leadership team is well
known in New York and Florida, and
the other markets we serve, for their
industry leadership, professional
integrity and strategic vision.

With the support of our over
600 employees, our leadership team’s
commitment and dedication to our
business strategy and core disciplines
will continue to drive FPIC’s solid

performance into the future.

$298 million
IN PREMIUMS
UNDER MANAGEMENT
(NEW YORK AND PENNSYLVANIA)
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Our people continue to drive
performance in every facet
of our operations.




KIM D. THORPE
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

ANTHONY J. BONOMO
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Insurance 1\{113nagenient

‘ Opem[ions

ROBERT E. WHITE, JR.

/ President, Insurance Operations
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“Ue will deliver long-term value to our
shareholders by maintaining a strong, financially

stable and consistently profitable siganization.”
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A letter from our Chaﬂmain,
Robert O. Baratta, MD

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

FPIC achieved outstanding performance
last year, including historically high rev-
enues and earnings. These results are
largely due to the execution of a business
strategy put in place over the past several
years and to the performance-based
culture that FPIC encourages.

Our Company’s success is also the
result of the hard work and dedication
of FPIC’s Board of Directors and senior
management team. ] believe that there
is no better group of executives in the
industry and together we have the expertise,
experience, energy and drive to maintain
the momentum built in recent years. As
we lead the Company into its next phase,
the entire team — in fact, all of FPIC —
will be guided by a mission statement that

codifies the Company’s core values:

We will deliver long-term value to our
shareholders by maintaining a strong,
financially stable and consistently
profitable organization. We offer quality
insuranice to healthcare professionals
and innovative services fo the insurance
companies we manage.

Our mission statement balances the
objectives that FPIC must honor to main-
tain its core commitments: delivering
long-term value to our shareholders while
providing top-quality service to out poli-
cyholders and the insurance companies
we manage. We believe that FPIC has
been successful in delivering on this
mission statement to the benefit of our

shareholders, policyholders and customers.

THE CHANGING HEALTHCARE LANDSCAPE
Virtually every facet of healthcare con-
tinues to change, often in dramatic and
unexpected ways. Medical breakthroughs,
new approaches to healthcare delivery
and changing strategies for financing
healthcare demand flexibility and innova-
tion from all participants, including
organizations like ours. The insurance
coverage we offer enables physicians and
other professionals to do what they do
best — deliver quality healthcare to their
patients — without having to worry about
the impact of a lawsuit on their practices
or their financial well-being. Physicians
want to know that FPIC and the insur-
ance companies we nianage have the
financial strength and commitment to

be their long-term parmer. There will
remain important economic, moral, social
and political implications to how the
system evolves, and companies like FPIC
will continue to play a significant role in
that process.

Our ability to empower and support
the medical community with reasoned
pricing, backed by financial stability, will
further enhance reform underway in
our legal system. We are encouraged by
increasing awareness of tort reform issues
at the Federal level and by progress in
tort reform in our core markets.
Fortunately, there 1s growing recognition
among the public and their elected rep-
resentatives that favorable tort reforms

are needed.

BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANGE
FPIC’s Board of Directors is dedicated to
providing long-term strategic direction,
while overseeing, and supporting, the
Company’s management team. As stew-
ards of our shareholders’ capital, we
continually evaluate opportunities and
consider alternatives to maximize long-
term financial returns and better serve
our policyholders.

In recent years, issues of independ-
ence and board and corporate
governance have been of increasing
concern to regulatory authorities and
shareholders of public companies. At
FPIC, transparent and ethical business
practices are at the core of our corporate
culture, and we are committed to staying
on the leading edge of governance initia-
tives. Our Board brings a diverse and
relevant set of competencies to this task,
with individual members having experi-
ence in insurance, xnediéine, law,
accounting and finance.

Finally, on behalf of the entire Board,
I would like to thank our shareholders
for their continued support and confi-
dence. We are focused on building
long-term shareholder value, and we
look forward to continuing to update

you on our progress.




A letter from our President
and Chief Executive Ofhicer,

John R. Byers

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

I am pleased to report that 2004 was an
outstanding year for FPIC, and in many
respects the best year in our Company’s
history. While the medical professional
liability insurance markets in which we
operate continue to evolve, posing ongoing
challenges, our performance during 2004
underscores our success in meeting these
challenges. As the fifth largest medical
professional liability insurance organization
in the nation, based on premiums written
and under management, we served more
than 26,100 policyholders and customers
during 2004.

OUR RESULTS SPEAK FOR THEMSELVES
FPIC recorded historically high revenues
and earnings in 2004, and our consoli-
dated return on average equity rose to
14%. Each of our business segments
achieved profitability in 2004. Our insur-
ance management operations turned in
their 24th consecutive quarter of positive
earnings, with 2004 being their most
profitable year ever. The earnings of our
insurance operations increased dramati-
cally during the year and the consolidated
statutory surplus of our insurance sub-
sidiaries grew 20%. Our performance
during 2004 is the result of several years
of hard work, dedication and commit-

ment to our business strategy.

PERFORMANCE POWERS OUR RESULTS
Competition in our insurance markets
was relatively stable during 2004. Market
conditions in our core Florida market

over the last several years have allowed us

to improve pricing, while retaining more
than 90% of our existing policyholders.
Florida made progress on tort reform
issues and FPIC has played an important
role in advocating meaningful change.
More work remains to be done, but we
are optimistic that Florida will continue
to focus on this important issue.

The New York State Insurance
Department approved a second rate
increase in two years for the insurance
carrier we manage in New York, and we
were able to expand the business base of
that insurance carrier into the competi-
tively priced institutional market. Qur
fee-based insurance management business
model continues to provide consistent
earnings and cash flow. [ts relatively low
capital requirements allow this operation
to be a significant source of internal
capital to our organization and a great
complement to our insurance operations.
IMPROVED FINANCIAL STRENGTH
Our organization also made significant
progress last year in improving its finan-
cial strength and capitalization. As a result
of strong earnings and growth in equity
and statutory surplus, our need for

reinsurance diminished, affording us the

" opportunity to decrease our reinsurance

utilization and providing us with built-in
organic growth for the future. We also
filed a $100 million shelf registration,
which will allow us the flexibility to
take advantage of growth opportunities
through an equity or debt offering.
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We believe we are well positioned to

raise capital if we so choose.

LOOKING AHEAD

I am proud of what this organization

has achieved over the past five years.

The challenge before us is to sustain

the strong momentum we have built.
During 2005, we will continue to
evaluate opportunities for maximizing
the value of our insurance management
business model and we remain well posi-
tioned to continue our market leadership
in our core insurance markets.

We will stay focused on our business
strategy and committed to the core disci-
plines that have served us well over the
past several years. Most importantly, we
will continue to deliver long-term value
to our shareholders by maintaining a
strong, financially stable and consistently

profitable organization.

PEOPLE POWER OUR PERFORMANCE

The FPIC Performance Story demonstrates
our commitment to deliver value to

our shareholders, policyholders and the
insurance companies we manage. Qur
performance powers our results and it is
our people who power our performance.
In the future, as in the past, we will look
to the Board, management and employees
of FPIC to achieve our goals. Their
dedicated performance-and unwavering
support will help to ensure a future

of growth and prosperity for FPIC

and its shareholders.
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“Performance powers our results. ..
people power our performance.”

e
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JOHN K. ANDERSON, JR.
| Principal of Heritage Capiral Group Inc. and
Managing Partuer of Bott-Anderson Partners, Inc.

»

i ! TERENCE P. MCCOY, MD
' Private Practice Physician

RICHARD J. BAGBY, MD

Private Practice Physician, Medical Direcror
of Boston Diagnostic Imaging Centers and
Open MRI of Sanford

JOHN G. RICH
Partuer of Rich Intelisano LLP

Executive
B 0o ard Of Committee
Dll’CCtOI’S Robert O. Baratta, MD
Chairman

John R. Byers

M. C. Harden, III

Guy T. Selander, MD
David M. Shapiro, MD
James G. White, MD

Board Governance
Commuttee

Robert O. Baratta, MD
Chairman

Richard J. Bagby, MD
John R. Byers
Kenneth M. Kirschner
David M. Shapiro, MD

18

ROBERT O. BARATTA, MD
Chairman of the Board of FPIC,

Retired Private Practice Physician, Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer of Ascent, LLC

JOAN D. RUFFIER
Direcror of Shands Health Care Systems, Inc.
and Former General Partner of Sunshine Cafes

Audit
Committee

John K. Anderson, Jr.
Chairman

Robert O. Baratta, MD
Terence P. McCoy, MD
John G. Rich

Joan D. Ruffier




KENNETH M. KlRSCHNER
Menber of Kirschner & Legler 124

JOHN R. BYERS
President and Clicf xeauive Officer of FPICC

M.C. HARDEN, III
Presideni and Chief Exccutive Officer of
Harden & Associates, lnc,
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GUY T. SELANDER, MD
President of Jacksonville Family Practice
Association, 4., Private Practice Phiysician

Vice Chairman of the Board of IFPIC and Senior Private Practice Physician
Vice President of Medical Affairs of Suris, Inc.
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DAVID M SHAPIRO, MD i JAMES G. WHITE, MD
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Ten-Year Summary and Selected Financial Data

in

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE
AMOUNTS AND ELSEWHERE AS NOTED)
CONSOLIDATED

Revenues

[ncome before accounting change *

Net income (loss)

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Net investment income

Net realized investment gairis (losses)

OTHER SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Total assets

Loss and loss adjustment
expense (LAE) reserves

Revolving credit facility
Term loan

Long-term debt
Shareholders’ equity

Common shares outstanding

PER SHARE DATA
Diluted earnings before
accounting change’
Diluted earnings (loss)
Book value
Tangible book value™
Year-end market price
Cash dividends

UNDERWRITING
Direct and assumed
premiums written
Net premiums written
Consolidated statutory surplus
GAAP combined ratio:
Loss and LAE ratio
Underwriting expense ratio

Combined ratio
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The selected financial data presented for the fiscal years ending December 31 should be read in

conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, which are

included elsewhere herein.

2004
$ 236,807
§ 28,181
28,181
$ 20,759
$ 3,867
$1,271,306
$ 635,118
5 J—
$ _
$ 46,083
$ 217,120
10,070
$ 2.70
$ 2.70
$ 2156
$  19.63
$ 3538
$ —
$ 312,728
$ 192,532
$ 160,242
84%
8%
92%

2003

201,724
16,572
16,572

18,414
2,052

1,182,756

574,529

46,083
186,657
ST

1.71
1.71
19.10
17.09
25.09

340,741
143,134
133,882

90%
8%

o 103%

2002

221,940
14,876
(14,702)

20,977
4,688

1,026,431

440,166
37,000
10,208

165,913

9,391

344,727
140,248
125,470

92%
11%

2001

197.582
2,930
2,930

23,377
1,429

770,822

318,483
37,000
16,042

0.31
0.31
18.70
11.35
14.90

245,403
147,084
107,087

98%
18%
116%

2000

182,089
614
614

24,819
1)

663,682

281,295
67.219

172,527
9,380

0.06
0.06
18.39
10.68
9.19

197,280
161,931
108,499

102%
16%
118%

1999

170,504
21,869
21,869

19,068
351

587,433

273,092
62,719

166,379
9,621

2.19
219
17.29
9.61
16.69

148,216
122,433
117,880

69%
18%
87%

*  Income excluding cimmnlative effect of accounting change related to the adoption of FAS 142 on goodwill and other tntangible assets.

**  Excludes goodwill and intangible assers.

*** The Company became publicly held in Angust 1996.
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1898

120,321
20,693
20,693

17,549
- (39

490,943

242,377
27,165
150,931
9519

2.11
2.11
15.86
14.11
47.81

116,989
101,477
117,278

75%
14%
89%

1997

15,979

32

352,849

188,086
2,000
120,064
9,180

1.76
1.76
13.08
12.30
29.13

77,771
70,285
87,876

82%
1%
93%

1996

76,982
13,324
13,324

14,704
!

303,553

172,738

96,411
9,022

64,292
58,740
76,520

84%
12%
960 (4

1995

69,531
11,686
11,686

276,699

164,506
81,556
8,140

1.47
1.47
10.02
9.88

0.10

56,641
54,306
70,039

85%
10%
95%
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Thank you for reading The FPIC Performance Story.
Creating value for shareholders, policyholders and customers,
building competitive advantages, and strengthening our

core disciplines and expertise will remain our focus

in 2005 and beyond.

For a more in-depth perspective on our 2004 performance,
please take a look at FPICY financial vesults in the following pages.

N
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. (“FPIC”) was formed in 1996 in a
reorganization of First Professionals Insurance Company, Inc.
(“First Professionals,” formerly named Florida Physicians Insurance
Company, Inc.) and McCreary Corporation {*McCreary”). Under
the reorganization plan, First Professionals’ shareholders became
the shareholders of FPIC. They received five shares of FPIC com-
mon stock for each share of their First Professionals’ common
stock. McCreary also became a subsidiary of FPIC. Effective
January 1, 2002, McCreary was merged into its subsidiary,
Employers Mutual, Inc. (“EMI”), with EMI continuing as the
surviving entity.

FPIC is a provider of specialty property and casualty insurance
and insurance management services focused on medical profes-
sional liability (“MPL”) insurance. Our primary products provide
protection for physicians, dentists and other healthcare providers as
individual practitioners or as members of practice groups. Our
insurance protects policyholders against losses arising from profes-
sional liability claims and the related defense costs for injuries in
which the patient alleges that medical error or malpractice has
occurred. Optional coverage is available for the professional cor-
porations under which physicians or dentists practice. We are the
fifth largest provider of medical professional liability insurance in
the United States, with $498 million of direct premiums written
or under management for the year ended December 31, 2003,
based on data published by A.M. Best Company (“A.M. Best”).

We have chosen to focus on selected markets where we believe
we have advantages in terms of our market knowledge, well estab-
lished reputation, significant market presence and resources.
Through our insurance subsidiaries, we are the largest provider of
MPL insurance in Florida, and an insurance company we manage
is the second largest provider of MPL insurance in New York.
New York is the largest market for MPL insurance in the
United States based on premium volume, and Florida is the
third largest market.

WE CONDUCT OUR BUSINESS THROUGH THREE SEGMENTS:

Our insurance segment provides MPL insurance products and related
risk management services for physicians, dentists, and other health-
care providers in Florida and selected other states through our
insurance subsidiaries. These subsidiaries issue policies, bear the
associated risks and earn income on the related investment assets.
Through this segment, FPIC is the leading carrier for MPL insur-

ance in Florida.
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The following subsidiaries are included'in the insurance segment:
FPIC SUBSIDIARIES. (The holding company is also grouped within
the insurance segment):

First Professionals, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

l The Tenere Group, Inc. (“Tenere”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of First Professionals

l Intermed Insurance Company (“Intermed”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of Tenere

[nterlex Insurance Company (“Interlex”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Insurance Services, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Trout Insurance Services, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Anesthesiologists Professional Assurance Company (“APAC”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

FPIC Insurance Agency, Inc. (“FPIC Agency”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

Our insurance imanagement segment provides comprehensive manage-
ment services to two insurance carriers, the largest being Physicians’
Reciprocal Insurers (“PRI”). We do not own PRI, rather, it is
owned by and operated for the benefit of its policyholders. PRI
provides MPL insurance in New York. PRI has no employees and
has been under the management of our insurance management seg-
ment since its formation. Pursuant to our management agreement
with PRI, we receive fees and expense reimbursements, but we do
not bear the associated insurance risks. Effective July 1, 2004, our
insurance management segment began serving as the administrator
of Pennsylvania Physicians Reciprocal Insurers (“PaPRI”) a newly
formed insurance exchange that cedes 100% of its business to PRI
in the form of reinsurance. The following subsidiaries are included

in the insurance management segment:

FPIC SUBSIDIARIES:
Administrators For The Professions, Inc. (“AFP”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC
FPIC Intermediaries, Inc. (“FPIC Intermediaries”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP
Group Data Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP
Physicians Reciprocal Managers, Inc. (“PRM”)
a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP

Professional Medical Administrators, LLC (“PMA”™)
{80% owned by FPIC)




Our third parry administration (“TPA”) segment provides administra-
tive and claims management services to municipalities and other
employers primarily in Florida that maintain group accident and
health, workers' compensation, liability and property self insurance
plans. The following subsidiaries are included in the TPA segment:

FPIC SUBSIDIARIES:
! EMLI, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

Professional Strategy Options, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of EMI

FPIC Services, Inc., 2 wholly owned subsidiary of EMI

Through our insurance and insurance management segments, we
operate in the MPL insurance line as both an insurance carrier,
which bears underwriting risks, and as an insurance management
company, which earns fees for services. Operating under these two
separate and distinct business models allows us to selectively par-
ticipate in diverse opportunities in the complex MPL insurance
line. We believe that this approach is well suited to meet our
financial objectives.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY

Our business strategy is designed to provide long-term value for
our shareholders, while providing our clients with competitive
products and responsive service. Over the 10 years ended
December 31, 2004, we, and our predecessor company, achieved
an average return on equity (excluding the cumulative effects of
changes in accounting principles) of 11%, with a high of 16% in
1995 and a low of (% in 2000. For the year ended December 31,
2004, our return on average equity was 14%. Our primary objec-
tive is to maintain a financially strong, stable and consistently

profitable organization by adhering to the following principles:

FOCUS ON SELECTED MARKETS WHERE WE HAVE EXTENSIVE KNOWLEDGE
AND EXPERTISE. We targec selected market areas within our insur-
ance and insurance management segments where we can establish
a significant presence and leverage local market knowledge and
experience. MPL insurance markets vary substantally on a state-
by-state basis, with cach state having its own unique regulatory,
legislative, judicial and competitive environment. We believe our
understanding of our target markets provides us with significant
competitive advantages in terms of underwriting, pricing, claims
management and policyholder service. In addition, our focus on
selected markets has allowed us to achieve leading positions in
those markets, providing benefits in terms of brand recognition,
resources and efficiencies. We believe thac the ability to effectively
manage our business and compete within the unique environment

of each state is critical to our success.

MAINTAIN DISCIPLINED UNDERWRITING AND PRICING. In our insur-
ance segment, we maintain a disciplined focus on selecting
appropriate risks and pricing those risks in order to achieve our
financial objectives. We believe that our extensive market knowl-
edge provides us with a competitive advantage in establishing
appropriate pricing and risk selection. We individually underwrite
all of our insureds. We underwrite and price risks based on a wide
range of factors, with a particular focus on the professional’s train-
ing, medical specialty, claims history and county or other
geographic region of practice. Within our chosen markets, we do
not manage our business to achieve specified market share goals.
Rather, we seek to maximize our profitability by competing for
quality business based on factors other than price alone.

AGGRESSIVELY MANAGE LOSS COSTS THROUGH EFFECTIVE GLAIMS
HANDLING AND RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS. In addition to pru-
dent risk selection, we manage our loss costs through effective
claims handling. We seek to minimize our incidence of claims by
offering our insureds risk management programs that are designed
to assist them in successfully managing their individual risk fac-
tors. Once claims are made, we seek to aggressively defend
non-meritorious claims and expeditiously settle meritorious
claims in order to lower our overall loss costs. Over the past four
years, we have increased our emphasis on reducing the number of
claims settled with an indemnity payment in Florida. Accordingly,
we initiated a new claims handling philosophy, added management
with significant Florida MPL claims experience, increased the
number of claims personnel and their training, restructured the
claims department and enhanced claims data and reporting. We
have also upgraded our network of defense attorneys. As a result
of these initiatives, we have tried more cases, while improving

our ratio of trial wins to losses. Qur ratio of claims and incidents
resulting in a loss payment to all closed claims and incidents
declined from 18% in 2001 to 14% in 2004.

RECRUIT AND RETAIN EXPERIENCED MANAGEMENT. Over the past six
years, we have assembled an experienced management team with

diverse expertise in insurance, accounting, finance and legal disci-
plines. Our management includes nine executives with an average
of more than 20 years of experience in the insurance industry and

professions serving the insurance industry.

MAINTAIN OUR FINANGCIAL STRENGTH. We are committed to
maintaining the strength and liquidity of our balance sheet by
prudently managing our financial and operating leverage, conserv-
atively investing our assets, stringently maintaining adequate
reserves and capital and opportunistically pursuing disciplined

growth, For example, we have implemented enhanced financial




BUSINESS OVERVIEW
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
(CONTINUED)

and actuarial systems and processes for the purpose of accurately
measuring and controlling our business, including quarterly analyt-
ical procedures to test and monitor our loss reserves. In addition,
in 2003 we fully retired our short term bank debt and replaced it
with long term debt that is not due until 2033, thereby improving
our liquidity and giving us greater operating flexibility.

PURSUE DISCIPLINED GROWTH. We believe that pursuing disci-
plined growth and cautious expansion into new markets will result
in more sustainable profitability. We view the conditions and -
opportunities within our core Florida market as highly favorable
and believe that we can grow by continuing to effectively com-
pete for new and renewal business. Accordingly, our near term
focus in our insurance segment will be on disciplined growth
within our existing markets.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The medical malpractice insurance market in the United States
totaled $10.1 billion in direct premiums written for the year
ended December 31, 2003. This represents an increase of 14%
over the prior year according to the most recent data published
by A.M. Best.

The financial performance of the property and casualty insur-
ance industry, and of the MPL insurance sector, has tended to
fluctuate in cyclical patterns characterized by periods of greater
competition in underwriting terms and conditions, pricing and
commissions (a soft insurance market) followed by periods of
capacity shortage and lesser competition (a hard insurance market).

We operated under soft market conditions during the latter part
of the 1990s. Beginning in 2000, the MPL insurance sector began
reporting higher loss costs on coverage written in-prior years than
had initially been established in loss reserves. These increased loss
costs, in certain cases, led to reduced capital to support current
and future business and downgrades in financial strength ratings
of a number of companies in the industry. As a result, the market
has seen significant withdrawal of capacity, including the departure
of a number of firms that were market leaders at the time of
their withdrawal. Many of the firms remaining in the market
have responded by significantly raising premium rates, reducing
or eliminating discounts and tightening underwriting terms
and conditions.

Prices for MPL insurance across the country have increased
significantly since the onset of the hardening market. Medical pro-
fessionals have responded to the hard market conditions, in some
cases, by practicing without coverage, seeking to join with other
practitioners to form self-insured groups or purchasing lower lim-
its of coverage. For 2004, we believe rate increases have moderated

in the markets for our insurance products.
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INSURANCE RATINGS. Insurance specific ratings represent the opin-
ion of rating agencies on the financial strength of a company and
its capacity to meet its insurance obligations. These ratings are
based on factors most relevant to policyholders, agents and inter-
mediaries and are not specifically directed toward the protection
of investors. They are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold a
company’s securities. The significance of individual agencies and
their ratings vary among different users. They can be significant to
investors and lenders, among other factors, as an indication of a
company’s suitability for investment or creditworthiness. A.M. Best
is the primary rating organization for FPIC and is the only insur-
ance rating agency FPIC has engaged to provide a rating on an
interactive basis. Other organizations that rate FPIC develop their
ratings independently using publicly available data and without
consulting with us. These ratings are generally consumer oriented
and involuntary on the part of the company being rated.

An insurance company’s rating, and particularly its A.M. Best
rating, is a potential source of competitive advantage or disadvan-
tage in the marketplace. In addition, some of the independent
agents and brokers who place MPL insurance have a minimum
A.M. Best rating standard of A-. The significance of the A.M. Best
rating varies depending upon the products involved, the customers
and agents and the competition and market conditions. Our insur-
ance subsidiaries have a group rating from A.M. Best of “B++”
(Very Good) with a stable outlook, which is within the secure
range and the fifth highest of 16 rating levels.

INSURANCE REGULATION. Qur insurance subsidiaries are regulated
at the state level. The state insurance departments of Florida and
Missouri, where our insurance companies are domiciled, are the
primary regulators. Qur insurance companies are also subject to
regulations in other states where they do business. State insurance
laws also regulate FPIC as an insurance holding company. FPIC
and all its insurance subsidiaries are required to register and fur-
nish information about our operations, management and financial
condition to the Florida, Missouri and other insurance depart-~
ments. The insurance departments perform financial and market
conduct examinations of our insurance companies periodically
and also require disclosure or approval of material transactions,
such as dividends from our insurance subsidiaries to FPIC above
certain levels. All transactions within the holding company
structure involving our insurance companies must also be fair
and reasonable.

Except as described below, Florida insurance laws do not
allow any person to acquire, directly or indirectly, 5% or more
of the voting securities of an insurance company without the
prior written approval of the Florida insurance department.




Any purchaser of 5% or more of FPIC common stock is pre-
sumed to have acquired a similar level of control of our insurance
subsidiaries. Instead of obtaining prior approval, a purchaser of
more than 5%, but not more than 10%, of an insurance company
may file a disclaimer of affiliation and control with the Florida
insurance department. Similar laws exist in Missouri, except that
the approval threshold is 10% or more of a company’s voting
securities.

The primary purpose or mission of insurance regulation is the
protection of policyholders. State insurance laws generally delegate
broad regulatory powers to insurance departments, including
granting and revoking licenses, approving policy forms and pre-
mium rates, regulating trade practices, establishing minimum
capital and surplus levels for companies, prescribing or permitting
required statutory accounting and financial reporting rules, and
prescribing the types and amounts of investments permitted.

Insurance companies are required to file detailed annual reports
in each state in which they do business. The financial statements
contained in these reports are prepared using regulatory account-
ing principles or statutory-basis financial statements as they are
referred to in the insurance industry. Statutory accounting princi-
ples represent a comprehensive basis of accounting that is different
from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America ("GAAP”) and so the accounting practices used by the
insurance subsidiaries in their regulatory financial statements are
different in certain material respects from the accounting policies
used in preparing the consolidated financial statements included
in this document.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners
{*NAIC”) has adopted the Codification of Statutory Accounting
Principles (the “NAIC Codification”). The NAIC Codification
became applicable to all statutory-basis financial statements issued
after January 1, 2001. While the NAIC Codification represents the
official guidance on the statutory basis of accounting, the individ-
ual states and insurance departnients continue to have the
discretion to modify its guidance or establish their own statutory
accounting principles for insurance companies.

Insurance companies are also subject to assessments by state
financial guaranty associations. The primary purpose of these guar-
anty associations is to fund the unpaid claims and policyholder
benefits of insolvent insurers. Generally, these associations assess
member insurers on the basis of written premiums in their states.

During 2003, the State of Florida enacted legislation specifically
directed at MPL insurance reforms. Among the more significant
aspects of this legislation were caps on non-economic damages
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and reforms to bad faith statutes with respect to MPL insurance
claims. The legislation also contained a requirement that insurers
freeze their rates as of July 1, 2003, and file new rates or re-file
those rates for formal approval. In addition, the legislation called
for the State of Florida to engage an outside actuarial consultant
to estimate the benefits to be derived from the legislative reforms
and a presumed factor for such benefit to be included in the rate
filings to be made by the companies. That presumed factor was a
net reduction of approximately 7.8%, of which the consultant
ateributed 5.3% to the cap on non-economic damages and 2.5%
to bad faith reforms.

In November 2004, three constitutional amendments were
passed in Florida relating to tort reform. Amendment Three limits
the fees a plaintiff’s attorney can charge a client. Amendment
Seven, referred to as the “patient’s right to know” amendment,
allows the discovery of medical peer review. Amendment Eight,
known as the “three strikes” amendment, requires the revocation
of the license of any medical doctor found to have committed
three or more incidents of medical malpractice. A temporary
injunction has been issued against the implementation of
Amendment Eight until after the end of the Florida Legislature’s
2005 Regular Session. Each of the three amendments appears to
be subject to varying interpretations of how the amendments are
to be implemented.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

INSURANCE SEGMENT. Our insurance segment includes four insur-
ance subsidiaries, three of which actively provide MPL insurance
to physicians, dentists and other healthcare professionals. At
December 31, 2004, we insured 14,158 MPL policyholders
(including 111 professional liability policyholders under fronting
programs, whereby the direct insurance is written on our policy
forms and reinsured to unaffiliated carriers in exchange for fee
income). Effective June 30, 2004, all of our fronting programs
were terminated and are now in run off. Our primary focus is

on individual professionals, whether or not they practice individu-
ally or as a member of a group. Therefore, our insurance segment
does not underwrite hospitals, nursing homes or other large
healthcare institutions.

Our MPL insurance line comprised 95% of our direct and
assumed premiums written for the year ended December 31,
2004, and workers’ compensation, a non-core line written on a
fronted basis, represented the remaining 5%. Our Florida market
generated 74% of our direct and assumed premiums written for
the year ended December 31, 2004.
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The following table summarizes (in thousands) direct and assumed premiums written subdivided by our top five states and all others for

the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

DIRECT AND ASSUMED PREMIUMS WRITTEN BY STATE

2004 % OF TOTAL 2003 % OF TOTAL 2002 % OF TOTAL
Florida $ 231,112 73.9% 210,155 61.7% 186,455 54.1%
Tennessee 14,869 4.8% 25,791 7.6% 20,185 5.9%
Missouri 13,179 4.2% 24,701 7.2% 32,814 9.5%
Georgia 12,326 3.9% 13,049 3.8% 12,445 3.6%
Pennsylvania 10,175 3.3% 17,886 5.2% 14,212 4.1%
All other 31,067 9.9% 49,159 14.4% 78,616 22.8%
All states $ 312,728 100.0% 340,741 100.0% 344,727 100.0%

FPIC’ insurance subsidiaries reinsure portions of their business.
The following table summarizes (in thousands) our ceded reinsur-
ance premiums written by program for the years ended December

31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

credit risks under our excess of loss reinsurance programs. We
monitor the financial condition and creditworthiness of our rein-
surers periodically and use reinsurance brokers and intermediaries
to assist in the process of the placement of our reinsurance. Most
of FPIC’s reinsurers under our excess of loss and net account
quota share agreements are rated A- or better by A.M. Best.
Reinsurers that are not authorized or accredited are required to
provide collateral in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or

investment securities held in a trust account to secure their respec-

Net premiunis written, including premiums under fronting pro-

2004 2003 2002
Excess of loss reinsurance § (39,614) (56,490) (47,540)
Net account quota
share reinsurance (50,357) (84,255) (85,531)
Fronting programs (30,225) (56,862) (71,408)
Total ceded premiums tive balances due.
written $(120,196)  (197,607)  (204,479)

Although reinsurance does not legally discharge our insurance
subsidiaries from their obligations to policyholders as the primary
insu}er, it does make the reinsurer liable to us to the extent of the
risks ceded. The placement of reinsurance with a number of indi-

vidual companies and syndicates mitigates the concentration of

grams, are direct and assumed premiums net of reinsurance ceded.
The following table summarizes (in thousands) net premiums
written by our top five states and all others and presents the insur-
ance business and underwriting risks we retain for our own
account after all the reinsurance ceded to others for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN BY STATE

2004 % OF TOTAL 2003 % OF TOTAL 2002 % OF TOTAL
Florida $ 150,184 78.0% 91,570 64.0% 72,319 51.6%
Missouri 10,050 5.2% 17,014 11.9% 27,506 19.6%
New York 9,187 4.8% 15,423 10.8% 17,472 12.5%
Georgia 7,957 4.1% 5,585 3.9% 4,558 3.2%
Arkansas 6,353 3.3% 2,786 1.9% 3,015 2.1%
All other 8,801 4.6% 10,756 7.5% 15,378 11.0%
All states $ 192,532 100.0% 143,134 100.0% 140,248 100.0%

Our insurance segment’s net premiums written have grown sig-
nificantly, particularly since 2000, because of significant increases
in our premium rates and withdrawn market capacity. Beginning
in 2001 and through the end of 2004, we increased our effective
rates for Florida physicians by a cumulative 127% at our largest
insurance subsidiary. Nevertheless, demand for our products in
Florida reached historically high levels during this period, and this
high demand continued in 2004. We market our coverages prima-
rily through an established network of independent agents who

have specialized knowledge in our markets.
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Our principal insurance subsidiary, First Professionals, was
founded by Florida physicians, and we have served the Florida
market for more than 28 years. In Florida, we are endorsed by the
Florida Medical Association, the Florida Osteopathic Medical
Association, the Florida Dental Association, 13 county medical
societies, and 10 state specialty societies. These endorsements,
however, do not require us to accept applicants who do not meet
our underwriting criteria. Our years in the Florida market have
enabled us to develop extensive resources in the state and an

extensive understanding of the market, regulatory and judicial




environments. We believe this market understanding provides us
with competitive advantages in terms of underwriting, pricing,
claims management and policyholder service.

In addition, we believe our physician-oriented culture and rep-
utation for outstanding client service, among both agents and
policyholders, has allowed us to attract and retain many of the pre-
ferred risks that we seek in the marketplace. We emphasize client
service, physician advocacy, commitment to our markets, estab-
lished relationships with organized medicine and aggressive claims
defense, and we believe these emphases differentiate us from our
competition. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our policy-
holder retention rate in Florida was 93%.

We believe that careful risk selection is also integral to our suc-
cess. Accordingly, we focus on a wide range of underwriting
factors, including the individual professional’s practice environ-
ment, training, claims history and professional reputation. We
underwrite professionals individually, whether or not they practice
individually or as a member of a group. We require board certifi-
cation or board eligibility from an appropriate American specialty
board as a prerequisite for coverage.

All of the policies we offer are on a claims-made basis, where
only claims reported to us prior to the expiration of the policy are
covered. We believe our claims-made approach allows us to more
accurately estimate our loss exposures and price our coverage than
other insurers that use an occurrence-based approach, where
losses may be reported for a number of years after a policy’s
coverage period.

In our largest market, Florida, many physicians and other med-
ical professionals have responded to increasing MPL insurance
premiums by purchasing lower coverage limits. As a result, our
purchased policy limits in Florida are on average lower than in
many other markets, with 61% of our insured physicians in Florida
having policy limits of $250,000 per loss or less and 79% having
policy limits of $500,000 per loss or less, as of December 31, 2004,
We believe these lower policy limits, among other things, con-
tribute to reduced volatility in our loss severity relative to
companies and markets where higher insured limits are prevalent.

Since 2001, we have experienced significant growth in our premi-
ums driven in part by rate increases implemented during the current
hard market environment. We have sought to manage this growth by
limiting the growth of insurance exposures to core markets, exiting
non-core markets and products, including fronting programs, and
prudently managing our capital structure to support our growth.

In 2002, we entered into a net account quota share reinsurance
agreement under which we ceded a significant portion of our pre-
miums to reinsurers. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2003, we ceded $85.5 million and $84.3 millicn, respectively, of

our premiums written to reinsurers under this reinsurance agree-

ment, which represented 50% of the direct MPL insurance premi-
ums, net of other reinsurance, written in selected states by our
largest insurance subsidiary. We continued to cede 50%, or $50.4
million, of such premiums written during the first six months of
2004. Effective July 1, 2004, we eliminated further cessions under
this agreement, thereby allowing us to retain business for our own
account that would otherwise have been ceded. We expect to
derive significant benefits from eliminating our utilization of this
reinsurance, including the organic growth that will result from
retaining more of-the revenues and earnings generated by the

insurance policies we underwrite,

INSURANCE MANAGEMENT SEGMENT. Our insurance management
segment was acquired in 1999 and provides comprehensive man-
agement services to two insurance carriers. The segment’s largest
client is PRI, the second largest provider of MPL insurance in
New York. Our subsidiary, AFP, has served as attorney-in-fact and
been the sole provider of such services to PRI since PRI’ forma-
tion in 1982. PRI is owned by and operated for the benefit of its
policyholders, and it has no employees. AFP has been responsible
for establishing PRI as a leading competitor in the New York
market with a reputation for outstanding client service and
provides all the functions of PRI, which include marketing,
underwriting, claims, financial administration, legal, risk and
investment management services. We have an experienced team
of more than 270 employees based in New York, including 21
internal defense attorneys. This localized and specialized presence
allows us to better control underwriting and claims processes,
respond to market conditions and effectively serve PRI’s clients.

Our fee-for-service business model requires a lower capital
investment and is an attractive means of participating in this large
and unique market, where the primary objectives of the New York
State Insurance Department (“NYSID”) are the affordability and
accessibility of MPL insurance. Since our 1999 acquisition of AFP,
it has achieved consistently profitable operations, excluding the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, and has
been a significant contributor to our cash flow.

Our insurance management segment provides services to PRI
under an exclusive management agreement, the current term of
which expires December 31, 2008. The agreement provides for
fees based on a percentage of direct premiums written, and for
the reimbursement of certain expenses incurred by us on behalf
of PRI. PRI’ direct premiums written totaled $293.3 nullion for
the year ended December 31, 2004. This segment also provides
reinsurance brokerage and administrative services to PRI and to
our insurance segment.

As a result of rising MPL insurance rates in many markets,
healthcare professionals are increasingly considering forming

self-insurance mechanisms that require experienced insurance
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management services such as ours. Effective July 1, 2004, our
insurance management segment commenced operations as the
administrator of PaPRI, a newly formed insurance exchange that
cedes 100% of its business to PRI in the form of reinsurance.

PRI IS A MAJOR CLIENT OF OURS. In addition to their contribu-
tion to our results of operations, our agreements and business
arrangements with PRI as a major client of ours also means that
our revenues and results of operations are financially sensitive to
its revenues and financial condition. We do not own PRI, or have
a controlling financial interest in PRI, nor is PRI considered a
variable interest entity under FIN 46R., Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities (as Revised), and so PRI’ financial statements are
not consolidated or included in ours. Instead, PRI is similar to a
mutual insurer and the risks and rewards of ownership vest with
the policyholders of PRI.

PRI and our subsidiary, AFP, are regulated by the NYSID. PRI files
its annual and quarterly statements with the NYSID containing its
statutory-basis financial statements and other data. AFP and PRI are
required to file audited financial statements annually with the N'YSID
obtained from the same qualified independent accounting firm.

PRI, as an MPL insurer, is subject to many of the same types of
risks as those of our insurance subsidiaries and MPL companies
generally These risks include, but are not limited to, rate adequacy,
adverse loss experience, and the effects of changes in market inter-
est rates that it can earn on invested assets. As allowed under New
York insurance laws, PRI has requested and received permission
from the NYSID to follow the permitted practice of discounting
its loss and loss adjustment expense (“LAE”) reserves. Therefore
the effects of these items on PRI’s discount rate can also adversely
impact PRI’s loss and LAE. reserve position and statutory surplus.

The NYSID mandates ithe insurance rates PRI and other New
York MPL insurance carriers are allowed to charge their policy-
holders. These include the rates charged for the policies in excess
of $1.3 million and for covered extended reporting endorsements
for death, disability and retirement, which have been reinsured
to First Professionals. Under New York insurance statutes, the
NYSID is also permitted to implement a surcharge on the estab-
lished rates if necessary to satisfy a projected premium deficiency
for one or more years. The amount of the surcharge to be
imposed and collected is subject to certain annual limitations.

PRI files information about its rates annually with the NYSID.
PRI implemented an 8.5% rate increase effective July 1, 2003
following several years of level rates. Effective July 1, 2004, the
NYSID granted an additional 7% base rate increase plus a small
additional increase for premiurhs applicable to higher limit policies
issued by PRI. The NYSID also granted effective July 1, 2004, a
20% rate increase on policies issued by the Medical Malpractice
Insurance Pool (“MMIP”), which has historically been unprofitable.
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PRI and other New York MPL insurance carriers are required to
participate in, and therefore share in the results of, the MMIP in
proportion to the amount of MPL premiums written by them in
the New York market.

Growth at PRI is also subject to surplus constraints; however, as
a New York reciprocal insurance company, PRI is able to operate
with lower surplus and at higher leverage ratios than non-recipro-
cals such as our insurance subsidiaries. PRI’s policyholders’ surplus,
as reported in its 2004 annual regulatory filing, exceeds the mini-
mum amount required under New York insurance laws and
regulations. New York insurance laws and regulations do not
impose risk-adjusted capital requirements on PRI. °

TPA SEGMENT. Our TPA segment, operating under the EMI
brand, provides administrative and client claims management
services to employers primarily in Florida that maintain group
accident and health, workers’ compensation, liability and property
self-insurance plans. The services of our TPA segment include
claims administration and related services, medical management
and loss control services. We also provide brokerage services for
the placement of excess insurance coverage on behalf of our
clients with insurers and reinsurers. In addition, we provide claims
administration services for a large ambulance service organization.
We believe that EMI enjoys established name recognition and a
reputation for quality service within its markets.

As of December 31, 2004, we provided employee benefit serv-
ices to 21 clients with approximately 58,701 covered lives and
workers’ compensation administration services to 25 employers
with approximately 25,075 covered lives. In addition, we provided
property and casualty insurance brokerage services to employers
with over $3.4 billion in total insured value. Qur TPA segment
markets its services directly and through agents and brokers prima-
rily in Florida, and our operating strategy includes superior
service, flexibility and innovation, and competitive pricing. We
continue to take steps to sustain and improve this segment’s results.

See Note 20, Subsequent Event, to the consolidated financial
statemnents for disclosure of the definitive agreement to sell the
TPA segment’s employee benefits administration business.

EmPLOYEES. At December 31, 2004, FPIC employed 619 people.
None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. We believe our relationships with our employees are
very important. We also believe that the significant number of long-
term employees we have is indicative of good employee relations.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO FPIC'S BUSINESS

FPIC will provide its annual report on Form 10-K, its quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, includ-
ing exhibits and amendments to those reports, filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as




reasonably practicable, after electronically filing such material with
or furnishing them to, the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). Such materials will be provided without charge by FPIC
through its Internet website at www.fpic.com. FPIC will also fur-
nish a copy of any exhibit, upon payment of a reasonable fee to
cover the cost of copying and mailing the requested materials.
Requests for such materials should be directed to the attention of
Investor Relations, FPIC Insurance Group, Inc., 225 Water Street,
Suite 1400, Jacksonville, FL 32202 or via e-mail at ir@fpic.com or
by calling Investor Relations at (904) 354-2482, extension 3287.

Properties

Any materials FPIC files with or furnishes to the SEC may also
be reviewed and copied by investors and the public generally at the
SEC’s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,, Washington,
D.C. 20549. Additional information is available regarding the SEC’s
operation of the public reference room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330.The SEC also maintains an Internet site, which
contains reports, proxy statements and other information regarding
issuers, including FPIC, that file electronically with the SEC.The
SEC’s Internet website address for such materials is wwwi.sec.gov.

The physical properties used by FPIC and its subsidiaries are summarized below:

BUSINESS

smrer o= omorr 2=

LOCATION
Jacksonville, FL
Jacksonville, FL

Plantation, FL

Corporate headquarters

First Professionals
First Professionals

First Professionals Tampa, FL
First Professionals Sanford, FL
First Professionals Coral Gables, FL
First Professionals Maitland, FL

Tenere Springfield, MO
AFP Manhasset, NY
AFP Lake Success, NY
AFP Rochester, NY
AFP New City, NY
AFP West Chester, PA
EMI Stuart, FL
EMI Jacksonville, FL

Legal Proceedings

FPIC’s insurance subsidiaries from time to time become subject to
claims for extra-contractual obligations or risks in excess of policy
limits in connection with their insurance claims. These claims are
sometimes referred to as “bad faith” actions as it is alleged that the
insurance company acted in bad faith in the administration of a claim
against an insured. Bad faith actions are infrequent and generally
occur in instances where a jury verdict exceeds the insured’s policy
limits. Under such circumstances, it is routinely alleged that the insur-
ance company failed to negotiate a settlement of a claim in good faith
within the insured’s policy limit. FPIC has evaluated such exposures
as of December 31, 2004, and believes its position and defenses are
meritorious. However, there can be no absolute assurance as to the
outcome of such exposures. FPIC currently maintains insurance for
such occurrences, which serves to limit exposure to such claims.

" During 2004, FPIC resolved one case arising in 1993 for which no
such coverage was available. No additional net charge or increase in

TYPE OF PROPERTY
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OWNED OR LEASED APPROXIMATE SQUARE FOOTAGE

Offices Leased 8,900
Offices Owned 66,900
Offices Leased 4,700
Offices Leased 1,200
Offices Leased 600

Offices Leased 100

Offices Leased 300

Offices Leased 13,300
Ofhices Leased 55,500
Offices Leased - 15,000
Offices Leased 5,300
Offices Leased 3,900
Ofhices Leased 300

Offices Leased 13,300
Offices Leased 13,500

incurred losses or aggregate reserves for losses was required. In addi-
tion, multiple claims for extra contractual obligatons in a single year
could result in potential exposures materially in excess of insurance
coverage or in increased costs of insurance coverage.

Based on analysis of our exposure to extra-contractual obligations
and claims in excess of policy limits (“ECO/XPL"), we elected not
to renew the supplemental awards made ECO/XPL reinsurance
that we had carried in addition to the ECO/XPL coverage already
included as part of our primary excess of loss reinsurance program.
Therefore, this additional layer of excess reinsurance is no longer in
effect after April 27, 2004 and we now retain this excess risk.

FPIC may also become involved in legal actions not involving
claims under its insurance policies from time to time. FPIC has
evaluated such exposures as of December 31, 2004, and in all cases,
believes its position and defenses are meritorious. However, there

can be no absolute assurance as to the outcome of such exposures.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes to the

consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this document. The consolidated financial statements include the results of all of

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc’s (“FPIC”) wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries.

Safe Harbor Disclosure

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a
“safe harbor” for forward-looking statements. Any written or oral
statements made by us or on our behalf may include forward-
looking statements, which reflect our current views with respect
to future events and financial performance. These forward-looking
statements can be identified by such words as, but are not limited
to, “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,”
“plan,” “foresee,” “hope,” “should,” “will,” “will likely result” or
“will continue” and other similar expressions. These forward-look-
ing statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and other
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from such
statements. These risks, uncertainties and other factors that could
adversely affect our operations or cause actual results to differ
materially from anticipated results include, but are not limited to,
the following:
® Risk factors, including the effect on reserves and under-
writing results, associated with changing market conditions
that result from fluctuating cyclical patterns of the property
and casualty insurance business;
(i)  The uncertainties of the loss reserving process;

(i)  The occurrence of insured or reinsured events with
a frequency or severity exceeding our estimates;

(iv)  The impact of surplus constraints on growth;

(v)  The competitive environment in which we operate,
including reliance on agents to place insurance, physicians
electing to practice without insurance coverage, related
trends and associated pricing pressures and developments;

(vi)  The actual amount of new and renewal business;

Business risks that result from our size and geographic
concentration;

Developments in reinsurance markets that could affect
our reinsurance programs;

(ix) The ability to collect reinsurance recoverables;

(x)  The dependence of our insurance management segment
upon a major customer, Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers
(“PRI"), for its revenue, and consequently, the effects of
premium rate adequacy, claims experience, policyholder
retention, and PRI’s overall financial position on its ability
to maintain or grow its premium base;
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(xi) Developments in financial and securities markets that could
affect our investment portfolio and financing plans;

(xii) Ruisk factors associated with the impact of rising interest

rates on the market value of our investments;

Risk factors associated with the impact of rising
interest rates on our interest costs associated with

(xiii)

our long term debt;

Rates, including rates on excess policies, being subject to
or mandated by legal requirements and regulatory approval,

(xiv)

which could affect our business or reinsurance arrangements;

Uncertainties relating to government and regulatory
policies (such as subjecting us to insurance regulation or
taxation in additional jurisdictions or amending, revoking
or enacting any laws, regulations or treaties affecting our
current operations);

Legal developments, including claims for extra-contractual
obligations or in excess of policy limits in connection with
the administration of insurance claims;

(xvi)

(xvii) Business and financial risks associated with the unpre-
dictability of court decisions;

(xviii) The loss of the services of any of our executive officers;

(xix) Risks of impairment of assets, generally, including the
risk of impairment or inability to continue to recognize
deferred acquisition costs, deferred tax assets, goodwill
and other deferred or intangible assets;

(xx) General economic conditions, either nationally or
in our market areas, that are worse than expected;
(xxi) Changes in our financial ratings resulting from one or more

of these uncertainties or other factors and the potential
impact on our agents’ ability to place insurance business
on our behalf; and

(xxii) Other risk factors discussed elsewhere in this
document.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their dates.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new informa-
tion, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.




Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition, results of opera-
tions and liquidity and capital resources is based upon the
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues,
expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.
We generally base our estimates on historical experience or other
appropriate assumptions that we believe are reasonable and relevant
under the circumstances and evaluate them on an on-going basis.
The results of these estimation processes forr the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
We believe the critical accounting policies discussed in the
remainder of this section of our MD&A affect our more signifi-
cant judgments and estimates used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. These may be further com-
mented upon in applicable sections on Results of Operations,
Financial Position and Liquidity and Capital Resources that fol-
low. Information about the significant accounting policies we use
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements is
included in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to our con-

solidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document.

LIABILITY FOR LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (“LAE™).
Our liability for losses and LAE (also referred to as our loss and
LAE reserves) is the largest liability of FPIC and represents the
financial statement item most sensitive to estimation and judg-
ment. Medical professional liability (“MPL”) insurance, including
business written directly and reinsurance assumed, is our primary
line of business and accounted for $610.6 million and $549.8 mil-
lion, or 96%, of our total consolidated liability for losses and LAE
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Our loss and LAE reserves represent management’s best estimate
of the amounts we expect to pay out in the future on account of
all insured claims and incidents as of the end of the period. The
liability comprises estimated case reserves on reported claims plus

estimates of insured losses and LAE incurred but not yet reported
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(“IBNR”). IBNR primarily comprises provisions for LAE, losses
under tail policies, and losses on covered extended reporting
endorsements issued following the death, disability or retirement
of claims-made insureds. Also implicit in loss and LAE reserves is
a provision for case reserve development, which represents an
estimate of the aggregate difference between our individually
estimated case reserves and the amount for which they will ulti-
mately be settled. Because FPIC consistently settles its cases for
amounts that are less than their individually estimated case
reserves, this provision serves to offset the other loss and LAE
reserve components.

Management sets the loss and LAE reserves taking into account
the results of multiple actuarial techniques applied as well as other
assumptions, some of which are not strictly mathematical in
nature. As of December 31, 2004, management utilized and inte-
grated, within our loss and LAE reserves estimation process,
calculations contained in an actuarial study performed by an inde-
pendent actuarial firm. Our aggregate loss and LAE reserves as of
December 31, 2004 are recorded at our best estimate, which is
primarily based upon the independent actuarial study supple-
mented by additional considerations and assumptions by
management. The independent actuarial firm’s reports on our
reserves for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have
been filed with state insurance regulators along with the statutory
financial statements of our insurance companies.

The primary factors affecting our estimates of how much we
will pay and therefore our reserve for insurance claims, defense
and other related costs are:

¢ Frequency and severity trends (numbers of claims and how
much we will pay for each claim on average);

¢ Frequency of claims closed with indemnity payments (the per-
centage of claims received that ultimately result in a loss payment
versus those that are settled and closed without a loss payment);

¢ The timing or pattern of future payments;

= The amount of defense cost we will pay for each claim or
group of claims; and

» Inflationary trends that are expected to bear on future loss and
LAE payments.
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These factors, in turn, can be affected by the judicial environ-
ment and tort-related trends over time. It is also important to note
that one or more of the actuarial methods used by us do not rely
on specific assumptions for these factors; rather, these assumptions
are developed as a by-product of the application of the methods,
which may then be monitored and factored into the final judg-
mental considerations of the selection of the point estimate and
range of reasonable values around the point estimate from among
the methods. All of the above-mentioned factors individually can
and will generally vary from one period to the next over time but
are estimated to approximate their ultimate values in setting
reserve estimates.

In addition, due to the relatively small number of claims ulti-
mately resulting in an indemnity payment and the average cost per
claim, any change in the trends assumed in the ultimate values for
these factors may be expected to result in a significant change in
the reserve estimates. Because our aggregate loss and LAE reserves
are so large, this also means that virtually any change in the level

of our carried reserves will be material to results of operations and

may be material to our financial position. As an example, a 1%
increase or decrease in carried reserves, net of reinsurance, as of
December 31, 2004, would result in an after-tax addition or
reduction in reported net income of approximately $1.9 million,
or 7% of our consolidated net income for the year ended
December 31, 2004. A typical range of reasonable values for MPL
reserve estimates is considered to be as wide as 15%; thus, in addi-
tion to the performance of the business itself, our results of
operations and financial position are very sensitive to our reserve
estimates and judgments.

For additional information and data concerning our liability
for losses and LAE see Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition: December 31, 2004 Compared to December
31, 2003.

REINSURANCE. Reinsurance does not relieve us from our primary
obligations to policyholders. Therefore, the failure of reinsurers to
honor their obligations could result in losses to us. The amounts
recoverable from reinsurers on our unpaid losses and LAE are cal-
culated by applying the terms of the respective ceded reinsurance
contracts to our estimates of the underlying loss and LAE reserves
that are subject to reinsurance. Thus, to the extent our reinsured
reserves change or are adjusted, so will the related reinsurance
recoverable amounts and our exposure.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and moni-
tor concentrations of credit risk with respect to the individual
reinsurers that participate in our ceded programs to minimize

our exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies.
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We hold collateral in the form of letters of credit or trust accounts
for amounts recoverable from reinsurers that are not designated as
authorized reinsurers by the applicable departments of insurance
of the states that have jurisdiction over the underlying business.

INcOME TAXES. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are estimated and
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to tempo-
rary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards.

A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is estimated
and recorded if it is more likely than not that all or some portion
of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will not be real-
ized. Valuation allowances are based on estimates of taxable income
and the period over which deferred tax assets will be recoverable.
We believe it is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets
will be fully realized. In the event that actual resules differ from
our estimates or those estimates are adjusted in future periods, we
may need to establish a valuation allowance, which would impact
our financial position and results of operations.

coopwiLL. Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted Statement

of Financial Accounting Standard No. (“FAS”) 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets. Under FAS 142, goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are no longer amortized through
charges to income, but do continue to be subject to annual (or
under certain circumstances more frequent) impairment testing
based on estimated fair values.

During the first quarter of 2002, we performed transitional
impairment testing required under the new standard and took a
charge in the form of a cumulative effect of accounting change for
$29.6 million, net of an income tax benefit, as of January 1, 2002.

We have obtained independent appraisals annually since the
adoption of FAS 142, the most recent of which was performed
as of December 31, 2004, which indicate that our goodwill and
other intangible assets are fully recoverable. Our remaining good-
will of $18.9 million will continue to be subject to impairment
testing through independent appraisal or otherwise at least annu-
ally, and potentially more often should a triggering event occur.
A triggering event under FAS 142 might include such things as
a significant adverse change in legal factors or business climate,
an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, unanticipated
competition, or a loss of key personnel.

INVESTMENTS. Our invested assets comprise our largest single asset
class and consist mostly of investment securities with fixed maturi-
ties, including bonds and notes. Our fixed maturity investment
securities are carried at their market values and accounted for




$548.5 million and $528.6 million or 99% and 98% of our total
investments, and 43% and 45% of our total assets, respectively as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003. Unrealized gains or losses in
their market values are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, -
net of tax effects, as a component of accumulated other compre-
hensive income.

There is an exception to the treatment noted above if and
when an investiment security considered to be available for sale is
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired. An other-than-
temporary impairment may occur when the market value of a
security falls below its cost by a material amount for an extended
period of time (generally one vear but can be less under certain
circumstances) or when other creditworthiness issues arise with
regard to an issuer. If and when a security is deemed to be other-
_than-temporarily impaired it is written down to its estimated
market value with a corresponding realized investment loss

recognized in net income.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENC!Es. Liabilities for loss contingen-
cies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties
and other sources are recorded when it is determined to be proba-
ble that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment and/or remediation can be reasonably estimated.

Our insurance subsidiaries are also subject to assessment by the
financial guaranty associations in the states in which they conduct
business for the provision of funds necessary for the settlement
of covered claims under certain policies of insolvent insurers.

Generally, these associations can assess member insurers on the

basts of written premiums in their particular states. In addition

to standard assessments, the Florida and Missouri legislatures may
also levy special assessments to settle claims caused by certain cata-
strophic losses. No special assessments were made in 2002, 2003
or 2004. [n addition, we could become subject to additional
assessments in the future as a result of damages caused by cata-

strophic losses, such as hurricanes.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Premium income, which is our main
source of revenue, is generally recognized pro-rata over the respec-
tive period of each policy. Premium receivables are recorded net
of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. In the event
it is determined that the unearned premium reserve for a book of
business will not be sufficient to recover the future expected losses
and LAE and acquisition and maintenance costs, including consid-
eration of related investment income, recognition of a premium
deficiency would be required through a write down of deferred
acquisition costs and corresponding charge to income. In the
event deferred acquisition costs are written off entirely, any
remaining premium deficiency would be accounted for as a liabil-
ity with a corresponding charge to income.

Claims administration and management fee revenues include
management fees of the insurance management segment, which
are determined by contract as a percentage of PRI’s direct premi-
ums written for the calendar year. Such management fees are
estimated, billed and earned monthly based upon the estimated or
re-estimated direct premiums written of PRI for the calendar year.

Consolidated Results of Operations — Comparison for the Years Ended December 3 1, 2004 and 2003

NET INcoME. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004
was $28.2 million, or $2.70 per diluted share, an increase of 70%
and 58%, respectively, when compared with net income of $16.6
million, or $1.71 per diluted share, for the year ended December
31, 2003. All of our segments reported higher net income for 2004
compared with 2003. Significantly improved underwriting results
and lower interest costs on our long term debt in 2004 mainly
contributed to the growth in insurance segment net income.
Growth in premiums written by PRI for 2004 contributed to
growth in insurance management revenues and net income.

ToTaL REVENUES. Total Revenues for the year ended December
31, 2004 increased $35.1 million, or 17%, to $236.8 million from
$201.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, The
increase in total revenues for the year 2004 is primarily due to

higher net premiums earned as the result of rate increases and
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lower ceded reinsurance premiums in our insurance segment and
higher claims administration and management fees in our insur-
ance management segment associated with growth in written
premiums at PRI. Net investment income also increased for the
year 2004 primarily resulting from growth in our fixed income
securities arising from growth in our insurance invested assets.
Net realized investment gains also increased for the year 2004.

ToTaL EXPENSES. Total Expenses for the year ended December 31,
2004 increased $15.7 million, or 9%, to $191.4 million from $175.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in
total expenses for the year 2004 is primarily due to higher other
underwriting expenses at our insurance segment and claims admin-
istration and management expenses at our insurance management
segment. Our GAAP underwriting {combined) ratio improved to
92% for 2004 from 98% for 2003. Other underwriting expenses
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increased for the year primarily due to lower ceding commissions
associated with lower ceded premiums earned, resulting from the
terminations of a large reinsurance agreement and fronting pro-
grams. Claims administration and management expenses were
higher as a result of growth in premiums written by PRI and the
related growth in insurance management revenues and operations.
Offsetting these higher expenses were lower borrowing costs

(interest plus the costs of related hedging instruments) on our debt.
We also incurred charges of $2.5 million, in 2003, to unwind inter-
est rate swap agreements, which did not recur during 2004. Income
tax expense was higher for 2004 when compared to 2003 primarily
due to higher taxable income. Income tax expense for 2004 also
includes a small provision for income tax contingencies identified

in a current Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) examination.

Compatrison for the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was §16.6
million, or $1.71 per diluted share, an increase of 11% and 8%,
respectively, when compared with income before accounting
change of $14.9 million, or $1.58 per diluted share for the year
ended December 31, 2002. All three of our business segments
were profitable in 2003. The year 2003 was the third year in a row
of significant improvements in insurance pricing. In addition, our
insurance management and third party administration (“TPA”)
segments reported improved profits.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased
$20.2 million, or 9%, to $201.7 million from $221.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002. Total expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2003 decreased $22.4 million, or 11%, to

$175.7 million from $198.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2002. Most of the decline in our revenues and expenses in
2003 when compared with 2002 was the result of growth man-
agement initiatives we put in place in 2002, designed to level the
amount of growth in our policyholder counts and significant
additional ceded reinsurance coverage following an unprecedented
period of growth at our insurance subsidiaries in 2001 and 2002.
Our MPL insurance markets hardened significantly since 2000.
Net investment income was also lower in 2003. While the equity
markets recovered in 2003, interest rates fell to record lows for the
third straight year, although rates did recover somewhat by the end
of 2003 and exceeded 2002 year end levels.

Insurance Segment Results and Selected Other Information

Our insurance segment is made up of FPIC’ four insurance sub-
sidiaries. Holding company operations are also included in the
insurance segment due to the segment’s size and prominence and
the substantial attention devoted to the segment.

During 2003, we completed the integration of Anesthesiologists
Professional Assurance Company (“APAC”) operations and transi-
tioned the management of APAC and Intermed Insurance
Company (“Intermed”) into First Professionals Insurance
Company, Inc. (“First Professionals”). During the fourth quarter
2003, we negotiated and completed the commutation of our
reinsurance with Gerling Global Reinsurance Corporation of
America (“Gerling”). We also negotiated our primary excess of
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loss reinsurance program renewal for 2004 at a reduced cost for
the first time in several years. Finally, we played an active part in
tort reform on behalf of our policyholders, as well as the health-
care economy and the citizens of the State of Florida.

Due to recent increases in profitability and the growing equity
and statutory surplus of our insurance businesses, we terminated
future cessions under the Hannover Re net account quota share
reinsurance agreement, effective July 1, 2004. With this termination,
business is no longer ceded under the agreement beginning with
business written and renewed in the third quarter of 2004. The
business already ceded through June 30, 2004, will continue to be
subject to the agreement as it runs off.




Financial and selected other data of our insurance segment for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is summarized in

the table below. Dollar amounts are in thousands.

Direct and assumed | premiums written

Net prem1u1m wrltten

Net premiums earned
Net investment income
Commission income
Net realized investiment gains
Finance charges and other income
Intersegment revenues

Total revenues

Net losses and LAE
Other underwriting expenses
Interest expense on debt
Other expenses
Intersegment expenses

Total expenses

Income from operations before income taxes

Less: Income tax expense

Net income
i ririmiimem— smim: == =

SELECTED DIRECT PROFESSIONAL
LIABILITY CLAIMS INFORMATION:

Net paid losses and LAE
on professional hablhry clalms

Average net paid loss per profgssmnal
Hability cl:um \nth mdemnm  payment

Total profesmona] l1ab1]1ty clmms and

1nc1dents reported durmg the pellod

Total professmnal liability claims
with mdemmt\ ' payment

Total professwnal liability claims and incidents
closed without indemnity payment

Total profcssmna habﬂlty claims
and incidents that remained open

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY POLICYHOLDERS INFORMATION:

Medical professional liability

policyholders (excludes fronting arrangements)

Legal professional liability policyholders

Total professional liability policyholders

Professional l]abﬂlty pollcyholders

under frormn g arrangements

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
2004 » CHANGE 2003 CHANGE 2002
§312728 8% 340,741 1% 344,727
$ 192,532 35% 143,134 2% 140,248
$ 149,676 14% 131,665 ~13% 151,684
20,627 13% 18,285 -12% 20,793
— 0% — -100% 8
3,867 88% 2,052 -56% 4,688
637 -33% 945 -24% 1,251
286 1% 284 21% 235
175,093 14% 153,231 -14% 178,659
125,172 3% 118,974 -15% 139,571
12,527 33% 9,443 -44% 16,867
2,564 -56% 5,886 24% 4,762
7,432 36% 5,445 241% 1,596
2,864 -33% 4,291 26% 3,414
150,559 5% 144,039 -13% 166,210
24,534 167% 9,192 -26% 12,449
8,262 246% 2,389 -43% 4,162
§ 16,272 139% 6,803 -18% 8,287
§ 119,305 6% 112,443 22% 92,497
$ 194 9% 213 16% 184
2,189 -29% 3,063 -4% 3,191
350 24% 283 -3% 293
2162 10% 1,965 7% 2,104
5,145 7% 5,507 18% 4,676
14,047 1% 13,919 -8% 15,117
— 0% — -100% 1,798
14,047 1% 13,919 -18% 16,915
111 -95% 2,136 -53% 4,544

iz m== zmsmsmmmm T
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INSURANCE NET INCOME. Insurance net income increased 139% to
$16.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $6.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in
net income was primarily the result of increases in net premiums
earned driven by rate increases implemented during 2003 and
declines in the proportion of our premiums ceded to reinsurers
as a result of the lower cost of our excess of loss reinsurance pro-
gram, and lower interest costs related to debt and intersegment
expenses. Partially offsetting these developments were a reduction
in ceding commissions and an increase in other underwriting
expenses. The decrease in iceding commissions resulted from the
elimination of further cessions under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement as of July 1, 2004. The
increase in other underwriting expenses was driven by the cancel-
lation of fronting programs and an increase in corporate expenses
associated with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance. Other expenses
increased due to growth in finance charges associated with the
Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement.
Insurance net income decreased 18% to $6.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 from $8.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in net income was the
result of lower net realized investment gains, lower net investment
income, higher debt-related costs, and higher net intersegment
expenses, comprised mainly of commissions payable to the insur-
ance management segment. The holding company, which is
grouped with the insurance segment for reporting purposes,
incurred debt-related costs of $1.5 million after-tax ($2.5 million
before-tax) during 2003 as a result of unwinding interest rate swap
agreements in the second and fourth quarters in connection with
the repayment and retirement of our term loan and revolving
credit facility. Qur improved underwriting margin (defined as net
premiums earned less net losses and LAE and other underwriting
expenses) of $4.9 million after-tax was mostly attributable to pric-
ing improvements. Approximately $1.3 million of the after-tax
improvement in 2003 was attributable to the Hannover Re net

account quota share reinsurance agreement.

DIRECT AND ASSUMED PREMIUMS WRITTEN. Direct and assumed pre-
miums written decreased 8% to $312.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from $340.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The decrease in direct and assumed premiums
written is primarily attributable to our planned exits from fronting
programs and non-core states. We began exiting our fronting pro-
grams in 2002 to free up capacity for our core MPL business

and all of our previous programs are now in run-off. Also con-
tributing to the decrease was the non-renewal of the excess of loss
reinsurance treaty under which First Professionals assumed rein-
surance from PRI. Direct premiums written for the year ended
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December 31, 2004 excluding premiums under fronting programs
increased 2% to $273.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 from $268.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
The increase in direct premiums written excluding premiums
under fronting programs reflects a combination of factors includ-
ing increased insurance rates offset by an overall shift in the mix of
policies written and renewed, primarily by First Professionals,
towards lower limits of coverage. The total number of MPL insur-
ance policyholders increased 1% to 14,047 at December 31, 2004
from 13,919 at December 31, 2003. The 1% net increase in the
number of policyholders was comprised of an increase in First
Professionals policyholders in Florida of 1,272, or 13%, offset by
reductions in policyholders at Intermed and in non-core states
totaling 1,144 during 2004.

Direct and assumed premiums written decreased 1% to $340.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $344.7 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2002. The small decrease
primarily reflects the offsetting trends of price improvements at all
our insurance companies and growth in our core MPL book of
business in Florida, offset by lower premiums on fronted business
and legal professional liability business and lower MPL premiums

in certain other states.

NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN. Net premiums written increased 35% to
$192.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$143.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
Approximately $33.9 million, or 69%, of the $49.4 million
increase in net premiums written for 2004 was the result of the
termination of the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsur-
ance agreement, effective June 30, 2004. First Professionals had
been ceding 50% of its direct MPL insurance premiums under this
reinsurance agreement. In addition to the factors affecting direct
premiums, lower reinsurance costs in 2004 as compared with 2003
under the excess of loss reinsurance program also contributed to
higher net premiums written.

Net premiums written increased 2% to $143.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 from $140.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The small increase in net premiums
written is attributable to the growth management initiatives put
into place during 2002, and is basically the result of planned
reductions in our overall numbers of policyholders in 2003,
and continuing pricing improvements, which have largely offset
one another.

NET PREMIUMS EARNED. Net premiums earned increased 14%

to $149.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$131.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The termi-
nation of the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance




agreement, accounted for approximately $11.6 million, or 64%, of
the $18.0 million increase in net premiums earned for 2004. The
remaining increase in net premiums earned is primarily due to the
effects of pricing improvements at First Professionals, APAC and
Intermed, which have all implemented significant rate increases in
recent years. Partially offsetting these increases in net premiums
earned was a reduction in assumed premiums earned due to the
non-renewal of the excess of loss reinsurance treaty between First
Professionals and PRI

Net premiums earned decreased 13% to $131.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 from $151.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The decline in net premiums earned
for 2003 is the result of ceded premiums earned under the
Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement.
Excluding the effect of ceded premiums earned under the
Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement, net
premiums carned increased $19.1 million primarily due to the
effects of price increases. The positive effects of price increases
were, in turn, offset by an 18% reduction in the total number of
professional liability insurance policvholders from 16,915 at
December 31, 2002 to 13,919 at December 31, 2003. Of this
decline, the sale of the renewal rights to the Interlex legal profes-
sional liability book of business in 2002 accounted for
approximately 1,800 fewer policies. The remaining decline
occurred in non-core states and in Missouri as capacity was freed
up with a view towards using it for First Professionals’ core MPL
business in Florida. The declines in Missouri were expected as we

implemented a very large rate increase in 2003.

NET INVESTMENT INCOME AND NET REALIZED INVESTMENT GAINS

ano Losses. Our investment revenues, which are comprised of
net investment income and net realized investment gains and
losses, increased 20% to $24.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from $20.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. Net investment income increased primarily
as a result of recent growth in our fixed income investment port-
folio corresponding with increases in our insurance business.

Net realized investment gains increased primarily as a result of
lower other-than-temporary impairments in 2004 when compared
with 2003. During 2003 we recognized losses of $5.3 million for
other-than-temporary impairments of two private equity holdings,
of which $4.5 mullion was related to our investment in American
Professional Assurance Ltd. (“APAL”). In 2004 we recognized

an additional other-than-temporary impairment of $0.8 million
related to our investment in APAL. With the recognition of
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this impairment, we have written our investment in APAL down
to $0. Net realized investment gains in 2004 also included a gain
of $2.1 million related to the sale of an investment in a imited
partnership.

Our investment revenues decreased 20% to $20.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 from $25.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Net investment income declined
primarily as the result of the prolonged status of prevailing interest
rates at historically low levels. As a resule, current funds were pri-
marily invested in fixed income securities with shorter maturities
and durations and we maintained significant short-term invested
cash. While these holdings reduce our exposure to losses should
the interest environment change and rates begin to rise, they also
produce lower current income. Net realized investment gains
decreased due to charges of $5.3 million for other-than-temporary
impairments of two private equity holdings, including $4.5 mil-
lion related to our investment in APAL.

NET LOSSES AND LAE INCURRED. INet losses and LAE incurred
increased 5% to $125.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 from $119.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
The increases in our net losses and LAE incurred relative to net
premiums earned and corresponding decrease in our loss ratio
reflects pricing and other improvements in our insurance business
and the resulting improvement in our underwriting results. Our
loss and LAE ratios (defined as the ratio of net losses and LAE
incurred to net premiums earned) were 84% and 90% for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Net losses and LAE incurred decreased 15% to $119.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $139.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Net losses and LAE incurred for
2003 decreased $31.9 million, or 23%, as a result of ceded losses
and LAE under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsur-
ance agreement. Excluding the effect of ceded losses and LAE
under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance
agreement, net losses and LAE for 2003 increased $11.3 million,
or 6%, which was primarily due to increased losses at Intermed
and APAC in 2003. Qur loss and LAE ratios were 90% and 92%
for the vears ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
negative effects on the loss and LAE ratios of our smaller compa-
nics were offset to a significant extent by improvement in the
losses and LAE incurred relative to net premiums earned a¢ First
Professionals. In addition to being much larger than Intermed and
APAC, First Professionals began implementing significant pricing

improvements earlier and has done so over a longer period.
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SELECTED DIRECT PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE CLAIMS DATA.
Net paid losses and LAE on professional liability claims increased
6% to $119.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$112.4 mﬂlion for the year ended December 31, 2003 and
increased 22% to $112.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $92.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.
These increases were geneérally to be expected and consistent with
recent growth in our insurance business, considering the inherent
time lag until the related claims are settled and closed. The average
net paid loss per professional liability claim with indemnity pay-
ment for calendar year 2004 declined 9% to $0.19 million from
$0.21 million for calendar year 2003. The decrease is primarily the
result of increased reinsurance coverage on claims settled and paid
during 2004, including ceded losses under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement.

Newly reported claims and incidents were down significantly
(29%) in 2004 when compared with 2003. A portion of these
declines relates to a speed up in claims reporting experienced dur-
ing 2003. This resulted in a higher than usual number of claims

reported in 2003, as plaintiffs’ attorneys accelerated case filings to

precede the effective date of tort reform legislation passed in
Florida in the fall of 2003 followed by lower than usual reported
claims in subsequent periods.

The number of claims with an indemnity payment (“CWIP”)
during 2004 increased 24% from the number of CWIP in 2003.
The percentage of CWIP to all closed claims for 2004 was 14%,
or 1 percentage point higher than the 2003 CWIP percentage of
13%. While our 2004 and 2003 CWIP percentages are higher than
2002's CWIP percentage of 12%, the 2002 through 2004 percent-
ages are significantly lower than the CWIP percentages for 2000
and 2001, which were 20% and 18%, respectively. This significant
improvement is largely the result of a harder claims philosophy
and related management initiatives implemented beginning in
2001.We also believe that the application of disciplined under-

writing and risk selection criteria have helped minimize claims.

OTHER UNDERWRITING EXPENSES. Other underwriting expenses
increased 33% to $12.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 from $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
The increase in other underwriting expenses 1s primarily the
result of recent growth in our insurance business and a decrease in
ceding commissions resulting from the elimination of cessions
under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance
agreement during the third quarter of 2004. Also contributing to
the 2004 increase were direct costs associated with compliance
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with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of approximately $1.5 mil-
lion and lower ceding commissions under reinsurance agreements.

Other underwriting expenses decreased 44% to $9.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 from $16.9 million for the
vear ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in other underwrit-
ing expenses is primarily due to the ceding commissions under
the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement,
which is a credit to other underwriting expenses. The ceding
commission increased §9.9 million to $23.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 from $13.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

INTEREST EXPENSE ON DEBT. Interest expense on debt decreased
56% to $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The signifi-
cant decrease in interest expense on debt for 2004 is primarily due
to the retirement of our former bank debt during 2003, which
carried higher total borrowing costs, through refinancing in the
form of private issuances of long term debt securities and by
repayment using internally generated funds. Included in interest
expense on debt for 2003 are charges of $2.5 million related to
the unwinding of swap agreements associated with our former
bank debt.

Interest expense on debt increased 24% to $5.9 million for the
vear ended December 31, 2003 from $4.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The increase in interest expense on
debt is primarily due to charges of $2.5 mullion in 2003 to
unwind swap agreements associated with the pay down and retire-
ment of our former bank credit facility. This was offset by the
lower total borrowing costs, as compared with the former bank
credit facility, of FPIC’s newly issued junior subordinated deben-
tures and unsecured senior notes and the recapture of the
amortization of unrealized losses of previous interest rate

swap agreements.

oTHER ExPENSES. Finance charges associated with funds withheld
under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance
agreement are included in other expenses and were $7.2 million,
$4.5 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Growth in these finance charges
contributed to the increase in other expenses and is due to the
growth in the amount of funds withheld for business ceded under
this agreement through June 30, 2004. As discussed elsewhere, we
exercised our option to terminate future cessions under the agree-
ment effective July 1, 2004.




INCOME TaXES. Income taxes increased 246% to $8.3 million for the
year ended December 31,2004 from $2.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Income tax expense was relatively
higher for 2004 compared to 2003 primarily due to higher taxable
income. Income tax expense for 2004 also includes a $0.8 million
provision for income tax contingencies identified in a current IRS
examination. We also incurred additional state income taxes in 2004

from the amendment of certain prior year state income tax returns.

Income taxes decreased 43% to $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $4.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The decrease in income tax expense for 2003
is primarily due to the decrease in income before income taxes
and cumulative effect of accounting change when compared with
the prior year and additional tax expense recognized in 2002 asso-
ciated with the examination of FPIC’s 1998 and 1999 Federal

income tax returns by the IRS.

HANNOVER RE NET ACCOUNT QUOTA SHARE REINSURANGE AGREEMENT. The results of our insurance segment include the effects of a signifi-

cant net account quota share reinsurance agreement with the Hannover Re companies. Amounts ceded under the Hannover Re net

account quota share reinsurance agreement for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are summarized in the table below.

Dollar amounts are in thousands.

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
L 2004 . CHANGE 2003 CHANGE 2002
Ceded premiums written $ (50,357) 40% (84,255) 1% (85,531)
Ceded premiums earned $ (75,675) 13% (87,256) -81% (48,179)
Ceded losses and LAE incurred § 57,538 -19% 70,967 82% 39,025
Ceded ot_h_e_r El}{{ijsf\f_v_riti_r_l_g_(_ax_pgxlses $ 22,710‘ 3% 22.065 73% 12,767
Net increase in underwriting margin $ 4,573 -21% 5,776 60% 3,613
ther expenses 7, -59% R - ) |
Oth P $ 152) 59% 4,492) 318% 1,075)
Net (decrease) increase in income from
operations before income taxes $ (2,579 -301% 1,284 -49% 2,538
Net (dec{cﬁe}_ipﬂcga_se iIl{l}’t ilqc_ome $ (1,582) -301% 789 -49% 1,559

Insurance Management Segment Results and Selected Other Information

Our insurance management segment is made up of FPIC’s

New York subsidiaries. Effective July 1, 2004, operations of
Administrators For The Professions, Inc’s (“AFP”) wholly owned
subsidiary, Physicians Reciprocal Managers, Inc. (“PRM”), com-
menced as the administrator and attorney-in-fact of Pennsylvania
Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“PaPRI”). PaPRI is an insurance
exchange domiciled in Pennsylvania. It was formed to take the

place of the unrelated fronting carrier that previously had under-
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written, and ceded as reinsurance to PRI, medical professional
liability insurance program business in Pennsylvania. PaPRI com-
menced underwriting the Pennsylvania program business effective
July 1,2004. PaPRI is not a subsidiary of PRM, AFP or FPIC. As
an insurance exchange, the organization of PaPRI is similar to that
of a mutual insurance company. PaPRI is also not a subsidiary of
PRI, but received its initial capitalization in the form of a subordi-

nated surplus note from PRI
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Financial and selected other data for the insurance management segment for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is

summarized in the table below. Dollar amounts are in thousands.

PERCENTAGE

PERCENTAGE
2004 CHANGE 2003 CHANGE 2002

Claims administration and management fees $ 39,100 47% 26,582 9% 24,341
Net investment income 126 9% 116 -18% 141
Commission income 6,193 13% 5,496 47% 3,732
Other income 197 110% 94 13% 83
Intersegment revenues 2914 -32% 4,316 28% 3,381
Total revenues 48,530 33% 36,604 16% 31,678
Claims administration and management expenses 29,193 37% 21,241 4% 20,518
Other expenses 213 0% 213 -14% 248
Total expenses 29,406 37% 21,454 3% 20,766
Income from operations before income taxes, minority

interest and cumulative effect of accounting change 19,124 26% 15,150 39% 10,912
Less: Income tax expensé 8,006 29% 6,217 39% 4,463
Income from operations before minority interest

and cumulative effect of accounting change 11,118 24% 8,933 39% 6,449
Less: Minority interest 248 164% 94 -45% 172
Income from operations before cumulative

effect of accounting change 10,870 23% 8,839 41% 6,277
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change - 0% — -100% 24,363
Net income (loss) $ 10870 2% 8,839 149% (18,086)
SELECTED INFORMATION REGARDING MANAGEMENT

OF PRI AND PAPRI:
Reciprocal premiums written under management $ 297,836 B m45% 205,557 10% 186,924
Reciprocal statutory assets under management i $._EZ§,’A1,L}.1 o 13% ) 860,463 5% 821&96
Professional liability policyholders under management 12,006 3% 11,149 6% 10,547

INSURANCE MANAGEMENT NET INCOME. Insurance management net

income increased 23% to $10.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from. $8.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily due to higher man-

agement fees. The growth in management fees was the result of

growth in premiums written at PRI, a significant portion of

which was due to the acquisition of two new institutional clients,

and higher insurance premiums placed by Professional Medical
Administrators (“PMA”) under a PRI professional liability insur-
ance program. The new institutional clients were acquired in the
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first and third quarters of 2004. Partially offsetting the positive

effect of higher revenues on net income were higher claims

administration and management expenses.

Insurance management net income increased 41% to $8.8 mil-

lion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from income before

cumulative effect of accounting change of $6.3 million for the

year ended December 31, 2002. The increase in insurance man-

agement net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was

primarily due to higher management fees, commission income

and intersegment revenues. The growth in these revenues was the




result of growth in premiums written at PRI and higher ceded
premiums at PRI and our insurance companies for which FPIC
Intermediaries receives commissions. Intersegment revenues pri-
marily relate to commission income from First Professionals for
the placement of reinsurance and the management of the
Pennsylvania fronting program. These amounts are eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements.

The insurance management segment recorded a transitional
impairment charge of $24.4 million, after income taxes, during the
first quarter of 2002, as a result of the adoption of FAS 142. This
transitional impairment charge is accounted for as a cumulative
effect of accounting change. The non-cash transitional impairment
charge primarily reflects certain intangibles and synergies, which,
in our opinion, are opportunistic in nature and carry a significant
degree of uncertainty; therefore, we treated these intangibles con~
servatively in the valuation required by FAS 142.

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT FEES. Claims administra-
tion and management fees earned by the insurance management
segment are mainly comprised of management fees from PRI In
accordance with the management agreement between AFP and
PRI, AFP receives a management fee equal to 13% of PRI’ direct
premiums written. As such, increases in the direct premiums writ-
ten by PRI result in a corresponding increase in management fees
earned by AFP.

Claims administration and management fees increased 47% to
$39.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $26.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in
claims administration and management fees is due to a correspon-
ding increase in direct written premiums by PRI. Two new
institutional clients have added approximately $56 million to
PRT’s 2004 annual written premiums. The addition of these new
accounts had the effect of increasing AFP’s management fee rev-
enue by $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.
Subsequent to entering into the agreement with PRI, certain
physicians of one of the institutional clients decided to self insure.
The effect of these cancellations is reflected in the fourth quarter.
Also, PRM commenced operations effective July 1, 2004 and had
management fee revenues of $0.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

Claims administration and management fees increased 9% to
$26.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $24.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase in
claims adnunistration and management fees is due to a correspon-

ding increase in direct written premiums by PRI.
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commission INcomeE. Commission income increased 13% to $6.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $5.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in commis-
sion income earned in 2004 is primarily the result of an increase
in insurance premiums placed by PMA under a PRI professional
liability insurance program.

Commission income increased 47% to $5.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 from $3.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, The increase in commission income in 2003
is primarily due to increases in brokerage commissions earned by
FPIC Intermediaries from third party reinsurers for the placement
of reinsurance and by PMA based on growth in the insurance
program it manages for PRI in Pennsylvania. FPIC Intermediaries’
brokerage commissions are determined as a percentage of reinsur-
ance premiums ceded and have increased significantly as the
underlying ceded premiums have grown at both our insurance
subsidiaries and PRI, for which FPIC Intermediaries participates
in the placement of reinsurance. In addition, commission income
of approximately $0.5 million was recognized in 2002 as a result
of a brokerage fee earned from Hannover Re related to the place-

ment of our net account quota share reinsurance agreement.

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT EXPENSES. Claims
administration and management expenses increased 37% to $29.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $21.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in claims
administration and management expenses is due to the increase in
operating expenses at AFP and commission expenses at PMA. The
increase in operating expenses at AFP is primarily the result of the
growth of PRI's business. The increase in commission expenses at
PMA was associated with an increase in premiums written and
placed under a PRI professional liability insurance program. Also
contributing to the increase in claims administration and manage-
ment expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 were direct
costs associated with compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 of approximately $1.0 million.

Claims administration and management expenses increased 4%
to $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from
$20.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase
is due to the combination of an increase in operating expenses at
AFP to manage growth at PRI and an increase in operating and
commission expenses at PMA associated with an increase in pre-
miums written and placed on behalf of PRI
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TPA Segment Results and Selected Other Information

Our TPA segment represents the business of our subsidiary Employers Mutual, Inc. Financial and selected other data for our TPA segment
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is summarized in the table below. Dollar amounts are in thousands.

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
2004 CHANGE 2003 CHANGE 2002

Claims administration and management fees $ 14,146 -1% 14,313 13% 12,693
Net investment income 6 -54% 13 -70% 43
Commission income 2,232 3% 2,162 -13% 2,475
Other income — -100% 1 -88% 8
Intersegment revenues — -100% 25 -70% 83
Total revenues 16,384 -1% 16,514 8% 15,302
Claims administration and management expenses 14,336 -1% 14,539 0% 14,496
Intersegment expenses 336 1% 334 17% 285
Total expenses 14,672 -1% 14,873 1% 14,781
Income from operations before income taxes and

cumulative effect of accounting change 1,712 4% 1,641 215% 521
Less: Income tax expense 673 -5% 711 240% 209
Income from operations before cumulative

effect of accounting change 1,039 12% 930 198% 312
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change — — 5,215
Net income (loss) $ 1,039 12% 930 119% (4,903)
SELECTED TPA SEGMENT CUSTOMER DATA:
Covered lives under employee benefit programs 58,701 -45% 106,927 -2% 109,171
Covered lives under workers compensation programs 25,075 -35% 38,400 1% 38,100

TPA NET INcOME. TPA net income increased 12% to $1.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $0.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily due to
an increase in commission income and a decrease in claims
administration and management expenses. The increase in com-
mission income is due to an increase in brokerage income from
the placement of excess insurance arrangements on behalf of self-
insured property and casualty clients. The TPA segment has
experienced a decrease in covered lives under the employee bene-
fits and worker compensation programs it administers, but the
segment has substantially offset the decrease with higher revenues
per program and new business.

TPA net income increased 198% to $0.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 when compared with income before
cumulative effect of accounting change of $0.3 million for the
year ended December 31,2002. The increase is primarily due to
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higher claims administration fees and improved operating margins.
Growth in the number of covered members serviced by the
ambulance service organization to which we provide administra-
tive services along with cost savings and productivity initiatives
helped improve our margins in 2003.

The TPA segment recorded a transitional impairment charge of
$5.2 million, after income taxes, during the first quarter of 2002,
as a result of the adoption of FAS 142.This transitional impair-
ment charge is accounted for as a cumulative effect of accounting
change. The non-cash transitional impairment charge primarily
reflects changes in market conditions and an increase in competi-
tion in recent years in the markets served by the TPA segment.

See Note 20, Subsequent Event, to the consolidated financial
statements for disclosure of the definitive agreement to sell the

TPA segment’s employee benefits administration business.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition — December 31, 2004 Compared to December 31, 2003

INVESTMENTS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. Investments and
cash and cash equivalents increased $61.3 million to $684.0 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2004 from $622.7 million as of
December 31, 2003. The net increase is primarily the result of net
cash flows fromn operating activities associated with recent growth

at our insurance and insurance management segments.

PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE. Premiums receivable decreased $7.0 million
to $94.3 million as of December 31, 2004 from $101.3 million as
of December 31, 2003. The decrease in premiums receivable is
primarily the result of a decrease in premiums written under
fronting programs. We terminated the last of our fronting pro-
grams as of June 30, 2004, The reduction in policyholders and
resulting decrease in premiums written at Intermed also con-

tributed to the decrease in premiums receivable.

REINSURANCE RECOVERABLE ON PAID LOSSES, DUE FROM
REINSURERS ON UNPAID LOSSES AND CEDED UNEARNED PREMIUMS.
Our reinsurance assets, reinsurance recoverable on paid losses and
due from reinsurers on unpaid losses, increased in 2004 primarily
as the result of the contnuing effects of growth in our insurance
premiums. Approximately $34.9 million of the increase is due
from reinsurers on unpaid losses is attributable to the net account
quota share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re under
which loss and LAE reserves are ceded. Ceded unearned premi-
ums decreased in 2004, Approximately $25.3 million of the
reduction is due to a decrease in ceded unearned premiums under
the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement.
As discussed under Results of Operations, we terminated future
cessions under this agreement eftective July 1, 2004.

In keeping with our growth management strategy, we termi-
nated all of our fronting programs as of June 30, 2004. Therefore,
we expect the insurance assets and liabilities associated with for-
mer fronting programs to decline in the future as the underlying

business runs off.
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oTHER ASsETs. Other assets increased $9.7 million as of December
31, 2004.The increase is primarily the result of growth in man-
agement fees receivable corresponding with the growth in business
at PRI and deposits paid in the course of the implementation of a
new policy administration system. Other assets also increased as a
result of sale transactions involving investment securities, which
were entered into prior to December 31, 2004, but for which set-

tlements occurred in January 2005.

LIABILITY FOR LOSSES AND LAE. The liability for losses and LAE
increased $60.6 million to $635.1 million as of December 31,
2004 from $574.5 million as of December 31, 2003. The increase
is mostly attributable to recent growth in our core MPL
insurance business.

A loss and LAE reserve study as of December 31, 2004, was
performed by an independent actuarial firm. The independent
actuarial firm calculated aggregate point estimates and estimated
ranges of reasonable values around the point estimates for FPIC’s
aggregate loss and LAE reserves, gross and net of reinsurance. As
discussed more fully below, management has utilized the calcula-
tions made by the independent actuarial firm along with other
relevant considerations in forming its best estimate of FPIC’s
reserves. The estimated range of values as determined by the
independent actuarial firm around our carried reserves, net of
reinsurance, was $259.9 million to $310.4 million. Qur carried
reserves, net of reinsurance, of $301.7 million ($635.1 million
gross, less related reinsurance recoverables of $333.4 million), as
of December 31, 2004, were approximately 6% higher than our
independent actuarial firm’s respective point estimate and within

the upper end of the range.
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The following table sets forth (in thousands) the development of our liability for losses and LAE, net and gross of reinsurance, for the
10-year period preceding the year ended December 31, 2004

1895 1996 1997 1998 1899

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1984 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Balance Sheet Liability $143,415 155,318 161,124 173,971 200,763 214,692 223,597 238,073 272,007 298,763 301,699
RE-ESTIMATED LIABILITY AS OF: _

One Year Later 129,472 140,322 146,009 159,639 182,208 221,212 232,208 240,489 272,489 299,236

Two Years Later 114,193 116,151 127,529 142,369 182,498 222,281 231,617 250,079 288,193

Three Years Later 90,666 106,937 112,770 141,850 183,389 221,270 238,823 273,247 :

Four Years Later 86,154 104,684 106,557 140,707 183,491 231,870 255,608

Five Years Later 87,807 103,402 105,949 141,437 192,612 231,814

Six Years Later 85,881 103,454 106,825 144,379 189,440

Seven Years Later 85,854 104,326 109,683 143,288

Eight Years Later 86,710 105,691 110,122

Nine Years Later 85,378 104,350

Ten Years Later 85,389
CUMULATIVE PAID AS OF:

One Year Later 28,701 35,562 33,103 49,697 76,291 91,269 95,890 96,496 89,044 105,719

Two Years Later 52,832 60,464 62,612 90,165 121,199 152,862 163,850 162,880 177,369

Three Years Later 63,738 78,291 88,649 115,336 153,200 185,126 200,792 214,771

Four Years Later 73,296 94,882 98,027 127,774 168,522 206,430 222,968

Five Years Later 82,840 100,294 102,355 134,272 179,504 216,837

Six Years Later 85,047 102,122 105,689 137,564 184,232

Seven Years Later 85,221 103,310 106,251 139,644

Eigh;Years Later 86,184 103,053 107,962

Nine Years Later 85,376 103,941

Ten Years Later 85,357
Redundancy/(Deficiency) 8 58,026 50,668 51,002 30,683 11,323 (17,122) (32,011) (35,174) (16,186) (473)
% Redundancy/(Deficiency) 40.5% 32.8% 31.7% 17.6% 5.6% -8.0% -14.3% -14.8% -6.0%  -0.2%
Gross liability-end of year £152,268 164,506 172,738 188,086 242,377 273,092 281,295 318,483 440,166 574,529 635,118
Reinsurance recoverables—end! of year 8,853 9,188 11,614 14,115 41,614 58,400 57,698 80,410 168,159 275,766 333,419
Net liability-end of year $ 143,415 155,318 161,124 173,971 200,763 214,692 223597 238,073 272,007 298,763 301,699
Gross re-estimated liability-latest $ 95,917 115,039 119,168 160,091 218,426 286,128 336,578 388,898 503,720 577,682
Reinsurance recoverables-latést 10,528 10,689 9,046 16,803 28,986 54,314 80,970 115,651 215,527 278,445
Net re-estimated liability-latest $ 85,389 104,350 110,122 143,288 189,440 231,814 255,608 273,247 288,193 299,237

(1): Data presented in this table represents consolidated information of all our insurance subsidiaries commencing from their respective dates of acquisition. Data presented from 1994 to 1997 reflects only
First Professionals’ liability for losses and LAE. The 1998 year reflects losses and LAE data for First Professionals and APAC. The data presented from 1999 to 2004 reflects all of FPIC's current

insurance subsidiaries.
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The top portion of the preceding table ending with the subtotal
“Redundancy / (Deficiency)” demonstrates how our net loss and
LAE reserves as of the end of each of the last ten calendar years
compares with net paid losses and re-estimates of those net
reserves after the end of each of these years. A net redundancy
means that the reserves carried as of the end of that particular
calendar vear (including reserves on claims still open, if any) have
developed downward. When reserves develop downward, this
means that we now believe we will have to pay less for these
claims than we had previously set aside in reserves. A net defi-
ciency means that the reserves have been increased since the end
of the calendar year. This means that we now believe we will have
to pay more for these claims than we previously set aside in
reserves. For example, the table indicates that the cumulative net
reserves carried at the end of calendar years 1994 through 1998
have been higher than subsequent payments and re-estimates. In
contrast, the cumulative net reserves at the end of calendar years
1999 through 2003 have been increased from amounts initially
carried as of the end of each of these years.

In 2003, we increased our net reserves for the years 1999
through 2001 primarily in recognition of higher severity than ini-
tially assumed, particularly in Missouri. As of December 31, 2004,
we increased our net allocated loss adjustment expense (“ALAE”)
reserves for calendar years 1999 through 2003, which resulted in
additional upward development in reserves for years 1999 through
2001.The higher ALAE reserves are the result of our harder claims
philosophy, under which we began taking more cases to trial in
2001. We also experienced some upward development in loss
experience on corporate policy endorsements and on business in
non-core states and increased our 2000 and 2001 reserves.

Despite higher ALAE and other upward development for years
1999, 2000 and 2001, our loss experience and outlook overall has
improved significantly in the most recent years. Improvements in
our loss experience resulting from claims and underwriting initia~
tives we’ve implemented since 2001 have essentially met or
exceeded our estimates for years since 2002. Accordingly, the
upward development in 1999 through 2001 net reserves has been
substantially offset by downward development in reserves for years
2002 and 2003 resulting in relatively immaterial net development
for all years prior to 2004 combined.

The bottom portion of the preceding table presents the original
cumulative gross reserves, reinsurance recoverables and net reserves
as of the end of each calendar year together with summaries of
the corresponding latest cumulative re-estimated amounts as of
December 31, 2004. The effects on our results of operations of a

cumulative redundancy or deficiency in our gross reserves as

depicted in the bottom portion of the table in excess of the devel-
opment in our reserves, net of reinsurance, for those vears are
entirely offset by corresponding decreases or increases in reinsur-
ance recoverables. The upward development in our gross loss and
LAE reserves recognized during 2004 for years 1999 through 2001
is largely consistent with the development in our net reserves as
described above. In addition, during 2003, we increased our gross
reserves and related reinsurance recoverable amounts for APAC for
the years 2000, 2001 and 2002 to conform its gross reserves as a
result of its integration under the management of First Professionals.
As with our net loss and LAE reserves, the upward development
pertaining to years 1999 through 2001 has been largely offset by
better than expected loss experience and downward development
in our reserves for years 2002 and 2003 since then.

The following table rolls forward FPIC's consolidated liability
for losses and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance, (in thousands)
showing the changes for the period beginning January 1, 2002 and
ending December 31, 2004.

2004

Net 1(;55_ a_n_d— f;‘s_E reserves, .
January 1 $298,763 272,007 238,073
INCURRED RELATED TO:
Current year 124,699 118,492 137,155
Prioz years 473 482 2,416
thgl_ir-lc_tigrcd 125,172 118,974 139,571
PAID RELATED TO:
Current year 16,517 13,455 9,130
Pri0¥ years ”'_10;5,719 101,989 96,507
Total paid 122,236 115,444 105,637
Gerling commutation — 23,226 —
Net loss and LAE reserves,
Deggx@fg_%l_w - $301,699 2?82263 272,007
Gross loss and LAE reserves,
December 31 $635,118 574,529 440,166
R einsurance recoverables,
December 31 333,419 275,766 168,159
Net loss and LAE reserves,
December 31__ $301,699 298763 272,007

INCURRED RELATED TO CURRENT YEAR. Our best estimate of reserves
for the 2004 year has been determined using historical trends with
adjustments added to provide for uncertainties inherent in the
claims environment in Florida, including those resulting from
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significant tort reform initiatives passed by the legislature in 2003
and three constitutional amendments passed by popular initiative

in 2004. Because of the uncertainty created by these changes, we

believe that booking a more conservative provision in the current
year is prudent.

INCURRED RELATED TO PRIOR YEARS. FPIC’s aggregate loss and
LAE reserve estimates reported for years 2003 and prior have not
increased significantly, as a group, in 2004, FPIC adopted a new
harder claims payment philosophy beginning in 2001. The new
claims philosophy, which is now approaching its fourth full year,
has had the effect so far of reducing FPIC’s overall loss costs rela~
tive to its former claims philosophy. It has also had the effect of
changing FPIC’ loss development patterns thereby introducing an
additional element of uncertainty into the provisions for the indi-
vidual prior years. We believe that it is best to treat this element of
uncertainty conservatively and thus, have not reduced our prior
year reserves, in aggregate, but have increased the provisions in
some vears and reduced them in others. As shown in the 10 year
table and further commented upon above, as of December 31,
2004, we have increased our aggregate loss and LAE reserves, net
of reinsurance, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and prior
as originally reported by $35.2 million and have reduced our
reserves for claims related to the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2003 by $19.0 million and $15.7 million, respectively.

Given the proximity and status of the years 2000 through 2002,
in particular, relative to the timing of the initiation of our harder
claims payment philosophy and the implementation of initiatives
to control increasing ALAE expenditures attendant to executing
that philosophy, it is still reasonably possible that the remaining
reserves for these years, in particular, may experience upward or
downward development in the future.

As a result of the commutation of our ceded reinsurance to
Gerling Global Reinsurance Corporation of America (“Gerling”)
during 2003, we now retain the corresponding insured risks and
losses and LAE we formerly ceded. We received $23.2 million in
exchange for the release of Gerling from its reinsurance obliga-
tions to us, which we added to our net reserves. No gain or loss
was recognized on the transaction.

For additional information on our accounting policy for loss
and LAE reserves, see Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to

the consolidated financial statements.

REINSURANCE PAYABLE. Reinsurance payable decreased $3.1 mil-
lion since year end 2003 primarily as a result of a reduction in
premiums due under FPIC’s excess of loss reinsurance program
and the exit from our fronting programs. These decreases were
partially offset by business ceded under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement. Reinsurance premi-
ums payable under the Hannover Re net account quota share
reinsurance agreement increased approximately $14.5 million for

the vyear ended December 31, 2004.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

FPIC has various contractual obligations that are recorded as
liabilities in our consolidated financial statements. FPIC also has
items that represent contractual obligations, commitments and
contingent liabilities that are not recorded on its balance sheet or
that are considered to possess off-balance sheet risks beyond their
respective amounts otherwise reflected in the balance sheet. These
include: (1) derivative financial instruments, which are used to
hedge interest rate risk, (2) guarantees by us of trust preferred
securities issued by separately created, unconsolidated trusts, (3) a
contingent liability under an amendment made to AFP’s manage-
ment agreement with PRI, effective January 1, 2002, and (4) two
irrevocable letters of credit issued in favor of the lessor under
operating leases.

FPIC uses interest rate collars as a hedge to maintain the total
borrowing costs of its long term debt (interest expense on the
debt instruments, plus or minus cash flows under the interest

rate collar instruments) to within specified ranges. FPIC% all in
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borrowing costs on long term debt combined with the correspon-
ding cash flows under the related interest rate collars can fluctuate
between $2.3 million to $3.8 million annually, until such time as
the interest rate collars expire. The interest rate collars are set to
expire on dates corresponding with the first dates under the
respective long-term debt agreements at which they can be retired
by us at our option, which is five years from the date of issue in
each case. See Note 10, Derivative Financial [nstruments, to the
consolidated financial statements for additional disclosures about
FPIC’s derivative financial instruments.

FPIC guarantees the floating rate interest and principal obliga-
tions under the trust preferred securities issued by its separately
created, unconsolidated trusts, which have been established solely
for the purpose of issuing the securities. The total principal bal-
ance of these trust preferred securities was $35.0 million as of
December 31, 2004. FPIC also carries corresponding junior

subordinated debentures on its balance sheet, which debentures




were issued to these trusts in exchange for the proceeds raised by
the trusts upon their respective issuances of the trust preferred
securities. The junior subordinated debentures of FPIC are com-
prised of the same maturities, floating interest rates and other
applicable terms and are the instruments by which FPIC funds the
related interest and principal obligations of the unconsolidated
trusts. See Note 9, Long Term Debt, to the consolidated financial
statements for additional disclosures about FPIC’s trusts and junior
subordinated debentures.

AFP has an exclusive 10 year management agreement with PRI
with the current term ending December 31, 2008. During 2002,
the management agreement between AFP and PRI was amended
to remove the sharing by AFP of 10% of PRI’ statutory net
income or loss, effective January 1, 2002. Compensation under the
agreement as originally in effect was equal to 13% of PRI’ direct
premiums written, with an adjustment for expected return premi-
ums, plus or minus 10% of PRI’ statutory net income or loss.
With regard to profit sharing amounts already earned and col-
lected, AFP has agreed pursuant to the amendment, to consider
the years 1999, 2000 and 2001 open for re-determination and
possible adjustment for a period of five years each {(expiring 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively.) Such adjustments would be based
primarily on development of and related adjustments, if any, to loss
and LAE reserves for those years. There have been no adjustments
to date. AFP had previously earned and collected profit sharing
amounts under the original agreement totaling $3.6 million for
the three years ended December 31, 2001. In accordance with the
amended agreement, AFP also agreed to pay 6% annual interest on

TOTAL
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS:
Liability for losses and LAE™ $ 635,118
Long term debt obligations 46,083
Capital lease obligations —
Operating lease obligations 15,757
Pension obligations'” 6,168
Purchase obligations 350
Other long term liabilities 2,271
Total $ 705,747

the 10% profit share amounts previously earned and collected
under the original agreement for 1999, 2000 and 2001, while
those years remain open for possible future re-determination and
adjustment, if any. In addition, AFP is reimbursed for 50% of the
costs associated with the risk management department it maintains
for PRI insureds. The management agreement and amendment
were reviewed and approved by the New York State Insurance
Department. See Note 18, Related Party Transactions, to the con-
solidated financial statements for additional information about the
management agreement with PRI.

FPIC has issued two irrevocable letters of credit in the amount
of $500,000 each as collateral under operating leases for the build-
ings occupied by AFP in Manhasset and Lake Success, New York.
FPIC also issues irrevocable letters of credit or places assets in trust
under its assumed reinsurance contracts with PRI These assets in
trust or letters of credit serve as collateral to corresponding insur-
ance liabilities recorded on our balance sheet and are not
considered to be off-balance sheet obligations. Finally, FPIC is
contractually committed to make certain minimum lease payments
for the use of property under operating lease agreements.

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obli-
gations and commitments as of December 31, 2004 and the future
periods in which such obligations are expected to be settled in
cash. In addition, the table reflects the timing of principal payments
on outstanding borrowings. Additional information regarding these
obligations is provided in Note 9, Long Term Debt, Note 13,
Employee Benefit Plans, and Note 14, Commitments and
Contingencies, to the consolidated financial statements.

PAYMENT DUE BY PERIOD

LESS THAN ONE TO THREE TO MORE THAN

ONE YEAR THREE YEARS FIVE YEARS FIVE YEARS
222,780 286,781 91,129 34,428
— — — 46,083
3,271 5,533 4,050 2,903
3,277 — — 2,891
350 — — —
578 855 838 —
230,256 293,169 96,017 86,305

(1): The liabiliry for losses and LAE represents our best estimate of the unpaid cost of seitling claims, including caims that have been incurred but not yet reported. The estimated costs of settling claims are
generally based upon past experience adjusted for current trends, and any other factors that would modify past experience. While management believes the liabilities for losses and LAE are adequate to
cover the ultimare liability, the actial nltimate loss costs may vary from the amounts presently estimaicd and such differences could be material. The liability for losses and LAE are gross of anticipated
amounts recoverable from reinsurers. Reinsuranee balances recoverable are reporied separately tn the consolidated siatements of financial position. As of December 31, 2004, our reinsurance balances

recoverable related 10 the liability for losses and LAE were $333.4 willion in aggregate.

(2): Pension obligations are comprised of approved plan contributions and FPIC' obligation should a plan terminate as of Decentber 31, 2004.
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Stock Repurchase Plans

Under our stock repurchase program, we may repurchase shares
at such times, and in such amounts, as management deems appro-
priate. We did not repurchase any shares during 2004 and a total
of 365,500 shares remain available to be repurchased under the
program. Under certain circumstances, limitations may be placed
on FPIC’s ability to purchase its capital stock by the terms of

agreements relating to its junior subordinated debentures. For
information regarding these limitations, refer to Note 9, Long
Term Debt, to the consolidated financial statements. For addi-
tional information, see also the discussion of Liquidity and
Capital Resources, below.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

The payment of losses and LAE, insurance operating expenses
{(including reinsurance costs), claims administration and manage-
ment expenses, non-insurance operating expenses, interest expense
and income taxes in the ordinary course of business are the prin-
cipal needs for our liquid funds. The principal sources of cash from
our operations to meet our on-going liquidity requirements are
the premiums collected for the insurance sold by our insurance
subsidiaries, income on the investment of those funds, and

claims administration and management fees and reinsurance
brokerage and other commission income earned by our

non-insurance subsidiaries.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

As reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash
provided by operating activities was $64.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004 compared with net cash provided by
operating activities of $89.9 million for the year ended December
31,2003. The majority of the decrease in cash provided by operat-
ing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 can be
attributed to the commutation of our ceded reinsurance to
Gerling in 2003, pursuant to which we received $23.2 million

in exchange for the release of Gerling from its reinsurance obliga-
tions to us.

As of December 31, 2004, we had cash and invested assets of
$684.0 million and held fixed maturity debt securities with a fair
value of approximately $12.0 million with scheduled maturities
during the next twelve months. We believe that our cash and
invested assets as of December 31, 2004, combined with expected
cash flows from operating activities and the scheduled maturities
of investments, will be sufficient to meet our cash needs for oper-
ating purposes for at least the next twelve months.
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A number of factors could cause unexpected changes in liquid-
ity and capital resources available, including but not limited to, the
following: '

* Unexpected changes in premium revenue due to higher or

lower than expected new business or retention of insurance
policies in force;

» Unexpected changes in the amounts needed to defend and
settle claims;

o Unexpected changes in operating costs, including new or
increased taxes;

° Failure of one or more of our reinsurers leading to uncollectible
reinsurance recoverables;

» Possible impairments of our investments; and

° Unexpected changes in liquidity provided by our insurance
management and TPA segments.

" Furthermore, liquidity and capital risks can come about as the
result of the broader business and financial risks facing us, includ-
ing the uncertainties and factors disclosed in the Safe Harbor
Disclosure. Many, if not most, of these types of uncertainties could
have a corresponding and materially negative effect on our liquid-
ity and capital resources, as'well as our financial condition and
results of operations. In order to compensate for such risks, we:

° Maintain what management considers to be adequate capital
and reinsurance;

° Monitor our reserves and periodically perform actuarial reviews
of loss and LAE reserves; and

° Attempt to maintain adequate asset diversification and liquidity
(by managing our cash flow from operations coupled with the
maturities from our fixed income portfolio investments).




LONG TERM DEBT

During 2003, we completed the placement of $10.0 million in
senior notes and created three trusts that issued 30-year trust pre-
ferred securities for which the proceeds from such issuances
together with cash previously contributed to the trusts were used
to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC totaling
$36.1 million. We used the proceeds along with other internally
generated funds to retire our bank term loan and revolving credit
facility, make a capital contribution to our insurance operations
and unwind hedge agreements related to the revolving credit
facility and term loan.

We established three wholly owned, but not consolidated, trusts
for the sole purpose of issuing the trust preferred securities: FPIC
Capital Trust [, FPIC Capital Statutory Trust I1 and FPIC Capital
Statutory Trust III. The proceeds received by the three trusts were
used to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC of the
same amounts, maturities and other applicable terms and features.
The debentures issued by FPIC, which are reported as long term
debt in the consolidated statements of financial position, to the
three trusts are subordinated to all senior indebtedness, including
the senior notes, and are equal in standing with one another.

The securities are uncollateralized and bear floating interest
rates equal to the three-month LIBOR plus spreads ranging from
3.85% to 4.20% (the interest rates ranged from 5.98% to 6.60% as
of December 31, 2004). The floating interest rates are adjustable
quarterly with changes in the three-month LIBOR, and in the
case of two offerings, the maximum rate that may be charged
under the securities within the first five years is 12.50%. We have
also purchased hedging instruments, as described below, designed
to maintain the ultimate floating rate interest cost on all of these
securities within a stated range for five years from closing. We have
the option to call the trust preferred securities at par or its equiva-
lent beginning five years from closing. The trust preferred
securities also contain features that allow us the option, under cer-
tain conditions, to defer interest payments for up to 20 quarters
and to redeem the securities before the first optional call date in
five years. In the case of the potential earlier call date, the redemp-
tion or call price payable by us may be different than par. The
securities have stated maturities of thirty years and are due in May

and October 2033.
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Indenture agreements relating to FPIC’s junior subordinated
debentures and trust preferred securities contain limitations, under
certain circumstances, as to (i) the declaration or payment of divi-
dends, or distributions thereon, or the redemption, purchase,
acquisition or liquidation with respect to any capital stock of
FPIC or its affiliates; (i) the payment, in certain circumstances, of
principal, premium or interest on, or the repayment, repurchase or
redemption of, debt securities of FPIC or its affiliates that rank in
equal standing with or are junior in interest to the debentures; or
(i11) the payment, in certain circumstances, under any guarantees of
EPIC or its affiliates that rank equal in standing with, or junior in
interest to, capital securities guarantees relating to the issuance of
the debentures. Circumstances that would result in such limita-
tions include a continuing event of default, as defined by the
indenture agreements, a default with respect to payment of any
obligations under capital securities guarantees, or a continuing

interest deferral election by FPIC.

HOLDING COMPANY SOURCES OF LIQUIDITY

The sources of liquidity to FPIC, the holding company, for the
payment of its operating expenses, taxes and debt-related expenses
are management fees from First Professionals and APAC and over-
head allocations to the non-insurance subsidiaries for which FPIC
receives reimbursement, and dividends.

FPIC has management agreements with First Professionals and
APAC, under which it provides substantially all management and
administrative services to these subsidiaries. Under the terms of the
agreements, FPIC receives management fees equal to 115% of the
costs incurred to manage the two subsidiaries. The additional 15%
provision in the First Professionals and APAC management fees is
intended to cover overhead, corporate expenses and profit and is
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. In the case of
the agreement with APAC, the total annual management fees are
also limited to an amount not to exceed those that would have
been paid under the terms of its former management agreement.

Shareholder dividends available from our insurance subsidiaries
are subject to certain limitations imposed by Florida and Missouri
laws. As of December 31, 2004, the insurance subsidiaries are per-
mitted, within insurance regulatory guidelines, to pay FPIC
dividends of approximately $16.0 million during 2005 without
prior regulatory approval.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
(CONTINUED)

Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued FAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which establishes
standards for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods orservices. FAS 123(R) requires stock
options and other share based payments made to employees to be
accounted for as compensation expense and recorded at fair value.
Consistent with the provisions of the new standard, we intend to
adopt FAS 123(R) in the third quarter of 2005. Information about
the fair value of stock options under the Black-Scholes model and
its pro forma impact on our net income and earnings per share for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 can be found
in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated
financial statements. However, a number of technical implementa-

tion issues are yet to be resolved, including the selection and use

of an appropriate valuation model, and the ultimate impact of
adopting FAS 123(R) is not vet known.

During 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board reached a consensus with
respect to guidance to be used in determining whether an invest-
ment within the scope of EITF Issue No. 03-1,“The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments,” is other-than-temporarily impaired. The
guidance was to be applied in other-than-temporary impairment
evaluations made in reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2004, however, in October 2004 the implementation date was
deferred. Due to the uncertainty as to how all of the relevant out-
standing issues will be resolved, FPIC is unable to determine the
impact of adopting paragraphs 10-20 of EITF 03-1 until final

implementation guidance is issued.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in mar-
ket and economic conditions, such as changes in interest rates,
spreads among various asset classes, foreign currency exchange
rates, and other relevant market rate or price changes. Market risk
is directly influenced by the volatility and liquidity in the markets
in which the related underlying assets are traded. The following is
a discussion of our primary market risk exposures and how we
managed those exposures as of December 31, 2004. Qur market
risk sensitive instruments are entered into for purposes other

than trading.

The fair value of all our investment securities as of December
31, 2004 was approximately $555.7 million. Our investment port-
folio was invested primarily in fixed maturity securities, which
comprised $548.5 million, or 99%, of the fair value of all our
investrent securities. The fixed maturity portfolio currently
reflects an average Moody's credit quality of Aa2. We invest in
securities with investment grade credit ratings, with the intent to
minimize credit risks. The allocation of the fixed maturity invest-
ment portfolio by Moody’s credit quality is approximately 56%
in Aaa, 17% in Aa, 16% in A and 11% in Baa. We purchase collat-
eralized mortgage obligations in the context of our overall
investment and asset class allocation strategy and, specifically, to
help improve our yields and current income. Approximately 46%
of our fixed income portfolio is allocated to the municipal sector
in the form of tax-exempt securities. The balance is diversified
through investments in treasury, agency, and corporate and

mortgage-backed securities.
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Generally, we do not invest in derivatives and do not currently
use hedging strategies in our investment portfolio. However, we
do have investments in hedging instruments designed to maintain
the ultimate floating rate interest cost on our long term debt
within a stated range.

The four market risks that can most directly affect the invest-
ment portfolio are changes in U.S. interest rates, credit risks,
prepayment risks, and legislative changes, including changes in
tax laws that might affect the taxation of our investment securities.

From time to time, discussion arises in the United States
Congress relative to changing or modifying the tax-exempt status
of municipal securities. At present there are no hedging or other
strategies being used to minimize this risk. We have increased our
concentration in tax-exempt municipal securities during 2004
relative to tax-exempt holdings in 2003, as part of our overall
investment strategy.

We manage risks associated with the changes in interest rates by
attempting to manage the duration of our investments in relation
to the duration of our anticipated liabilities (principally claim pay-
ments and related defense costs) in such a way so as to minimize
the likelihood of having to liquidate investments at a loss before
their maturity. Effective duration is a standard measure of interest
rate sensitivity that takes into account, among other things, the
effect that changing interest rates will have on prepayments and
the re-investment of these funds. The effective duration of our
consolidated fixed income investment portfolio as of December
31,2004 was 4.8 years.




The following table summarizes the effects on the estimated fair
value of our fixed income portfolio assuming a range of increases
and decreases in market interest rates. For purposes of this interest
rate analysis, each market interest rate change is assumed to be

uniform across the portfolio. As shown in this table, if prevailing

market interest rates on investments in debt securities comparable
to those we held as of December 31, 2004 were to uniformly

increase 100 or 200 basis points, the fair value of our fixed matu-
rity securities would have decreased approximately $27 million or

$56 million, respectively. Dollar amounts are shown in thousands.

HYPOTHETICAL

DECREASE
o - (200 8PS)

Fair Value $ 604,758

Fair Value/Reported Value 110%

Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate
changes are based on numerous assumptions, including the main-
tenance of the existing level and composition of fixed income
security assets, and should not be relied on as indicative of
future resules.

The following table presents the projected cash flows for our
assets and liabilities associated with financial inscruments and
operating leases. It does not reflect operating cash flows, including
investment income and interest expense earned or accrued as
expense under these instruments. Thus, the amounts reported as
cash flows in the table below for fixed maturities represent par
values at maturity date, and exclude investment income and

expenses and other cash flows. The fair values of fixed maturities

HYPOTHETICAL HYPOTHETICAL HYPOTHETICAL

DECREASE CURRENT INCREASE INCREASE

- (100 BPS) MARKET + 100 BPS + 200 BPS

575,659 548,543 522,375 497,174
103% 100% 95% 91%

are based upon quoted market prices or dealer quotes for compa-
rable securities. The fair value of the interest rate collars is
estimated using quotes from the financial institution that acted as
the broker in obtaining them and represents the cash requirement
if the existing agreement had been settled at year-end. The pro-
jected cash flows of long term debt and operating leases are
estimated to approximate their fair values as of December 31,
2004. Interest expense on debe is excluded from this table as is
interest income on investments. However, weighted average inter-
est rates earned on our fixed income securities and interest
expense on our long term debt are presented in the last section
of the table. Weighted average variable rates are based on implied
forward rates.

PROJECTED CASH FLOWS (IN THOUSANDS)

2005 2008 2007
ASSETS:
Fixed maturity securities,

Available for sale $11,800 34,148 34,8].()
Interest rate collars $ — — —
LIABILITIES:

Long term debt $ — — —
Operating leases $(3,271) (2,920) (2,613)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE INTEREST RATE:

Fixed maturity securities 6.02% 5.43% 5.14%
Long term debt 7.25% 8.09% 8.36%
Interest rate collars 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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DECEMBER 831, 2004

2098 2009 THEREAFTER TOTAL FAIR VALUE

33,055 35859 366,407 516,079 548,543

— — — — 498

— —  (46,083)  (46,083)  (46,083)

(2,572)  (1.478)  (2,903)  (15,757) —
5.06% 5.37% 5.22%
8.53% 8.71% 8.86%
0.05% 0.18% 0.33%




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

1o the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of FPIC Insurance Group, Incs 2004 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. In our opinion, the consolidated statements of financial position and the related statements of
income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive (loss) income and cash flows, present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of [FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted ‘our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

As discussed in Notes 2 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill following adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING. Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in “Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting,” appearing on page 55, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and pérform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding-the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ﬂw«%% ZLr

March 15, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

FPIC management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Based on our assess-
ment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, we have determined that FPIC maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO).

FPIC’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
FPIC’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that tansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of FPIC’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has
been audited by PricewatethouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report that appears

on page 54.

March 15, 2005 FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

-

John R. Byers
President and Chief Exccutive Officer

Kim D.Thorpe
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT COMMON SHARE DATA)

2004

ASSETS
INVESTMENTS:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value $ 548,543 528,647
Other invested assets

(Includes related party amounts of $0 and $788 — Note 18) 7,175 8,990
Total investments 555,718 537,637
Cash and cash equivalents 128,250 85,064
Premiums receivable, net (Includes related party amounts of $5,374 and $8,608 — Note 18) 94,282 101,262
Accrued investment income 7,232 6,153
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses

(Includes related party amounts of $2,663 and $2,738 — Note 18) 19,140 15,950
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums

(Includes related party amounts of $82,762 and $82,474 — Note 18) 333,419 275,766
Ceded unearned premiums

(Includes related party amounts of $2,550 and $16,486 — Note 18) 28,147 71,435
Deferred policy acquisition costs

(Includes related party amounts of $3,002 and $3,500 — Note 18) 11,280 6,209
Deferred income taxes 35,636 34,819
Goodwill 18,870 18,870
Other assets (Includes related party amounts of $7,882 and $4,171 — Note 18) ] 39,332 29,591
Total assets o A $1,271,30§ ___1,_1&2_,756
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
POLICY LIABILITIES AND ACCRUALS:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses

(Includes related party amounts of $25,292 and $20,555 — Note 18) : $ 635,118 574,529
Unearned premiums (Includes related party amounts of $46,575 and $47,240 — Note 18) 177,003 177,435
Reinsurance payable (Includes related party amounts of $4,620 and $11,761 — Note 18) 134,639 137,708
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums 13,698 11,766
Total policy liabilities and accruals 960,458 901,438
Long term debt 46,083 46,083
Other liabilities (Includes related party amounts of $7,793 and $8,759 — Note 18) 47,514_ 48,498
Total liabilities 1,054,055 996,019
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Minority interest 131 80
Common stock, §0.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized;

10,069,532 and 9,770,843 shares issued and outstanding :

at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively 1,007 977
Additional paid-in capital 47,871 43,705
Retained earnings 165,880 137,699
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net _ »__72_,‘3.6727 4276
Total shareholders’ equity 217,120 186,657

_Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
FRPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER COMMON SHARE DATA)

2003

2002

2004

REVENUES
Net premiums earned (Note 18) $ 149,676 131,665 151,684
Claims administration and management fees (Note 18) 53,246 40,895 37,034
Net investment income 20,759 18,414 20,977
Commission income 8,425 7,658 6,215
Net realized investment gains (Note 3) 3,867 2,052 4,688
Finance c_h_ﬂ_rg'c_s _n_n_d_gth‘ej_ipgo_m_e (Note 18) _ - o 834 1,040 1,342
Total revenues i N o 236,807 201,724 221,940
EXPENSES
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses (Note 18) 125,172 118,974 139,371
Other underwriting expenses (Note 18) 12,527 9,443 16,867
Claims administration and management expenses 43,529 35,780 35,014
Interest expense on debt 2,564 5,886 4,762
Other expenses (Note ]_8_).” o o N o 7,645 5,658 1,844
Total expenses N o 191,437 175,741 198,058
Income from operations before income taxes, minority interest

and cumulative effect of accounting change 45,370 25,983 23,882
Less: Inco_n_l@ tax expense o 16,94~1 9,317 8,834M
Income from operations before mnority interest

and cumulative effect of accounting change 28,429 16,666 15,048
Less: Minority interest - I 248 o4 172
Income from operations before cumulative effect of accounting change 28,181 16,572 14,876
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change (net of an $18,784 income tax benefit) — — 29,578
Net income (loss) S % 28181 16,572 (14,702)
Basic earnings per common share before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 2.83 1.75 1.58
Cumulative effect of accounting change ) = — (3.15)
Basic carnings (loss) per common share N 828 175 (.57)
Diluted carnings per common share before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 2,70 1.71 1.58
Cumulative effect of accounting change . N - — (3.14)
_Diluted earnings (loss) per common share ey 270w (56)
‘Basic weighted average common shares outstanding N 9973 9483 9,387
Diluted \yqiglzgc_d average common shares outstanding _ o 10,420 9,665 . 9,432 )

The accompanying notes are an fntegral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC. :

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
(IN THOUSANDS, EXPECT COMMON SHARE DATA)

ACCUMULATED

ADDITIONAL OTHER
SHARES OF COMMON PAID-IN RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
COMMON STOCK STOCK CAPITAL EARNINGS (LOSS) INCOME, NET  TOTAL
Balances at December 31, 2001 9,337,755 $ 934 37,837 135,829 (26) 174,574
Net loss — — — (14,702) — (14,702)
Unrealized gain on fixed maturity
investments and other invested assets, net — — — — 5,565 5,565
Unrealized loss on derivative
financial instruments, net — — — — (270) (270)
Amortization of unrealized loss
on derivative financial instruments — — — — 256 256
Comprehensive loss ) (9,151)
Issuance of shares 53,040 5 433 — — 438
Income tax reductions relating
to exercise of stock options — — 52 — — 52
Balances at December 31, 2002 9,390,795 939 38,322 121,127 5,525 165,913
Net income — — — 16,572 — 16,572
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net —_ — — — (140) (140)
Unrealized loss on fixed maturity
investments and other invested assets, net — — — — (2,835) (2,835)
Unrealized gain on derivative
financial instruments, net ’ — — — — 486 486
Settlement of derivative
financial instrument, net — — — — 1,532 1,532
Amortization of unrealized loss
on derivative financial instruments — — — — (292) (292)
Comprehensive income 15,323
Issuance of shares 380,048 38 4,385 — — 4,423
Income tax reductions relating
to exercise of stock options — — 998 — — 998
Balances at December 31, 2003 9,770,843 977 43,705 137,699 4,276 186,657
Net income — — — 28,181 — 28,181
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net — — — — (252) (252)
Unrealized loss on fixed maturity
investments and other invested assets, net — — — — (1,302) (1,302)
Unrealized loss on derivative ’
financial instruments, net — — — — (360) (360)
Comprehensive income 26,267
Issuance of shares 298,689 30 3,187 . — —_— 3,217
Income tax reductions relating
to exercise of stock options — — 979 — — 979
Balances at December 31, 2004 10,069,532 $ 1,007 47,871 165,880 2362 217,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
(IN THOUSANDS)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Cumulative effect of accounting change
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Net realized gains on investments
Realized loss on sale of property and equipment
Net loss (gain) from equity investments
Bad debrt expense
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net of related amortization
Deferred inconie tax expense
Deferred ceding commission, net of related amortization
Minority interest in net income
Other Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Premiums receivable, net
Accrued invesument income
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums
Ceded unearned premiums
Other assets
Losses and loss adjusument expenses
Unearned premiums
Reinsurance payable
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums
Other liabilides

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of fixed maturities available for sale
Purchase of fixed maturities available for sale

Proceeds from sale of other invested assets

Purchase of other invested assets

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Payment of revolving credit facility and term loan
Purchase of derivative financial instruments
Settlement of derivative financial instruments
[ssuance of common stock

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

mm——— = — fmr o= o

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid on debt

sa=s smrmr o= = =

Federal income taxes paid

Federal income tax refunds received
- cmrns ==

= e

e mry e m— s o=

= e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finandial statements.

2004 2003 2002
$ 28,181 16,572 (14,702)
— — 29,578
4,536 3,383 7,960
(3,867) (2,052) (4,688)
146 135 93
118 (59) 110
43 95 668
(13,488) (7,764) (5,403)
357 385 844
9,828 7,717 10,691
(248) (94) (172)
6,937 7,136 (35,800)
(1,079) (155) (1,393)
(3,190) (9,421) 776
(57.653) (107,607) (87,749)
43,288 7,454 (38,095)
(5,631) (5,023) 2,208
60,589 134,363 121,683
(432) 4,014 26,660
(3,069) 41,238 69,781
1,932 (2,294) 4,118
o (2,382) 1,907 10,958
AAAAAAA 64,916 89,930 98,126
498,981 607,201 313,313
(524,068) (696,418) (395,070)
3,095 2,889 2,682
(163) (1,303) (433)
— 3 22
o (2,792) (3,498) (1,876)
________ (24,947) (91,126) (81,362)
— 46,083 —
— (47,208) (5,833)
— (1,134) —
— (2,493) —
o 3,217 4,423 438
- 1/ (329) (5,395)
43,186 (1,525) 11,369
o 85,064 86,589 75,220
3128250 85,064 86,589
8 2524 3363 4718
8 12950 9450 6,293
$ — 346 4,958




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS AND ELSEWHERE AS NOTED)

note one.  Organization and Nature of Operations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. (“FPIC”) was formed in 1996 in 2
reorganization of First Professionals Insurance Company, Inc.
(“First Professionals,” formerly named Florida Physicians Insurance
Company, Inc.) and McCreary Corporation (“McCreary™). Under
the reorganization plan, First Professionals’ shareholders became
the shareholders of FPIC. They received five shares of FPIC com-
mon stock for each share iof their First Professionals’ common
stock. McCreary also became a subsidiary of FPIC. Effective
January 1, 2002, McCreary was merged into its subsidiary,
Employers Mutual, Inc. (“EMI”), with EMI continuing as the sur-
viving entity.

FPIC is a provider of specialty property and casualty insurance
and insurance management services focused on medical profes-
sional Hability (*“MPL”) insurance. Our primary products provide
protection for physicians, dentists and other healthcare providers as
individual practitioners or as members of practice groups. Our
insurance protects policyholders against losses arising from profes-
sional liability claims and the related defense costs for injuries in
which the patient alleges that medical error or malpractice has
occurred. Optional coverage is available for the professional cor-
porations under which physicians or dentists practice.

We have chosen to focus on selected markets where we believe
we have advantages in terms of our market knowledge, well estab-
lished reputation, significant market presence and resources. Our
insurance companies are licensed in 28 states and during 2004
have written business in 17 of these states. We are the largest
provider of medical professional liability insurance in Florida, and
an insurance company we manage is the second largest provider of
medical professional liability insurance in New York. New York is
the largest market for MPL insurance in the United States based

on premium volume, and Florida is the third largest market.

WE CONDUCT OUR BUSINESS THROUGH THREE SEGMENTS:

Our insurance segment provides MPL insurance products and related
risk management services for physicians, dentists, and other health-
care providers in Florida and selected other states through our
insurance subsidiaries. These subsidiaries issue policies, bear the
associated risks and earn income on the related investment assets.
Through this segment, FPIC is the leading carrier for MPL insur-

ance in Florida.
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The following subsidiaries are included in the insurance segment:

FPIC SUBSIDIARIES. (The holding company is also grouped within
the insurance segment):
% First Professionals, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

The Tenere Group, Inc. (“Tenere”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of First Professionals

} Intermed Insurance Company (“Intermed”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of Tenere

Interlex Insurance Company (“Interlex”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Insurance Services, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Trout Insurance Services, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

Anesthesiologists Professional Assurance Company (“APAC”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

FPIC Insurance Agency, Inc. (“FPIC Agency™),
a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

Our insurance management segment provides comprehensive man-
agement services to two insurance carriers, the largest being
Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“PRI”). We do not own PRI;
rather, it is owned by and operated for the benefit of its policy-
holders. PRI provides medical professional liability insurance in
New York. PRI has no employees and has been under manage-
ment of our insurance management subsidiary since its formation.
Pursuant to our management agreement with PRI, we receive fees
and expense reimbursements, but we do not bear the associated

insurance risks.

NEW SUBSIDIARY. Effective July 1, 2004, operations of
Administrators For The Professions, Incs (“AFP”) wholly owned
subsidiary, Physicians Reciprocal Managers, Inc. (“PRM”), com-
menced as the administrator and attorney-in-fact of Pennsylvania
Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“PaPRI”). PaPRI is an insurance
exchange domiciled in Pennsylvania. It was formed to take the
place of the unrelated fronting carrier that previously had under-
written, and ceded as reinsurance to PRI, medical professional
liability insurance program business in Pennsylvania. PaPRI com-

menced underwriting the Pennsylvania program business effective




July 1,2004, PaPRI is not a subsidiary of PRM, AFP or FPIC. As
an insurance exchange, the organization of PaPRI is similar to that
of a2 mutual insurance company. PaPRI is also not a subsidiary of
PRI, but received its initial capitalization in the form of a subordi-
nated surplus note from PRI. For additional information about
PRM and PaPRI, refer to Note 18, Related Party Transactions.
The following subsidiaries are included in the insurance man-

agement segiment:
FPIC SUBSIDIARIES:

AFP, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

FPIC Intermediaries, Inc. (“FPIC Intermediaries”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP

Group Data Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP
PRM, a wholly owned subsidiary of AFP

Professional Medical Administrators, LLC (“PMA”)
(80% owned by FPIC)

OQur third party adwministration (“TPA”) segment provides adminis-
trative and claims management services to municipalities and other
employers primarily in Florida that maintain group accident and
health, workers’ compensation, liability and property self insurance
plans. The following subsidiaries are included in the TPA segment:

FPIC SUBSIDIARIES:
! EMI, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC

Professional Strategy Options, Inc.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of EMI

FPIC Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of EMI

Through our insurance and insurance management segments,
we operate in the medical professional liability insurance line as
both an insurance carrier, which bears underwriting risks, and as
an insurance management company, which earns fees for services.

The main sources of revenue for FPIC are dividends, return of
capital and management fees from our subsidiaries. The main
sources of revenue for the subsidiaries are premiums earned and
investment income (insurance segment) and claims administration
and management fees and commission income (insurance manage-
ment and TPA segments).

Risks inherent in FPIC’s operations include legal/regulatory
risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and market risk. These risks are
discussed below.

Legal /Regulatory Risk is the risk that changes in the legal or
regulatory environment in which FPIC operates will change
and reduce revenues or create additional costs or expenses not
anticipated in pricing our products. That is, regulatory initiatives
designed to reduce FPIC’s profits or new legal theories may
reduce revenues or create costs for FPIC as compared with those
currently reflected in the consolidated financial statements. This
risk 1s concentrated in Florida, Missouri and New York, where
FPIC has written or assumed most of the insurance and reinsur-
ance business we have retained for our own account.

Credit Risk is the risk that issuers of securities owned by FPIC
will default, or other parties, primarily our insureds and reinsurers
that owe FPIC money, will not pay. Financial instruments that
potentially expose FPIC to concentrations of credit risk consist of
fixed maturity investments, premiums receivable, deposits with
reinsurers, and assets carried for reinsurance recoverable related to
unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) and unearned
premiums. Reinsurers that are neither authorized nor accredited
by applicable state insurance departments (“unauthorized reinsur-
ers”) are required to provide collateral in the form of an
irrevocable letter of credit or investment securities held in a trust
account to collateralize their respective balances due to FPIC.

Undenvriting Risk is the risk that actual ultimate losses are higher
than the losses we have estimated in our decisions regarding pric-
ing and selecting of insured risks. Such criteria are generally based
upon the expected loss experience for particular types, classes and
geographic locations of the insured risks. Unlike other businesses,
we must price and sell our insurance policies before the actual loss
costs associated with those policies are known. Therefore, to the
extent the actual insurance-related results of an insurer, before
consideration of investment income, fail to correspond with the
related pricing and/or selection criteria, an underwriting gain or
loss occurs. -

Market Risk is the risk that a change in interest rates will cause
a decrease in the value of FPIC’ investunents or other assets whose
recoverability may be sensitive to changes in interest rates. To the
extent that liabilities come due more quickly than assets mature,
we would have to sell assets prior to maturity and recognize a

gain or loss.
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note Two. Significant Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PRESENTATION. Our consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). These
financial statements include the accounts of FPIC and all of our
wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES. In preparing our consolidated financial state-
ments, we are required to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual amounts could differ from such estimates.

casH AND cAsH EQuIVALENTS. Cash and cash equivalents include
all demand deposits, overnight investments and other liquid
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less

when acquired.

INVESTMENTS. All of our investments in fixed maturities, which are
comprised of debt securities, are classified as available-for-sale and
reported at estimated fair values on the consolidated statements of
financial position, with the change in fair values during the period
excluded from earnings and recorded, net of tax, as a component
of other comprehensive income. Fair values for debt securities are
based on quoted market prices.

Other invested assets include real estate investments, which con-
sist of a building, a condominium unit and developed land. These
investments are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the
property (exclusive of land, which is non-depreciable), using the
straight-line method. Estimated useful lives range from twenty-
seven to thirty-nine years. Rental income and expenses are
included in net investment income. Other invested assets also
include certain investments in non-public entities whose carrying
values approximate their fair values.

Income on investments includes the amortization of premium
and accretion of discount computed using the interest method
relating to debt securities acquired at other than par value. Realized
investment gains and losses are determined on the basis of specific
identification. Declines in the fair value of investment securities
considered to be other than temporary, if any, are recorded as
realized losses in the consolidated statements of income.

We consider whether our real estate investments have been
impaired and assess whether significant events or changes in

62

business circumnstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the anticipated future
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment
loss to be recorded, if any, is calculated by the excess of the assets

carrying value over its fair value.

REINSURANCE. Net premiums written, net premiums earned, losses
and LAE and underwriting expenses are reported in the consoli-
dated statements of income net of the amounts for reinsurance
ceded to other companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
including those related to the portions of the liability for losses
and LAE and unearned premiums ceded to them are reported as
assets in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Reinsurance recoverables related to unpaid losses and LAE are
estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liabilities associ-
ated with the reinsured policies. Reinsurance assumed from other
companies including assumed premiums written and earned,
losses and LAE and underwriting expenses (principally ceding
commissions) is accounted for in the same manner as direct

insurance written,

DEFERRED POLiCY AcaulsiTion cosTs. Deferred policy acquisition
costs consist primarily of commissions and premium taxes, which
are primarily related to the production of new and renewal insur-
ance business. Acquisition costs are deferred and amortized over
the period in which the related premium is earned. Deferred pol-
icy acquisition costs are reviewed to determine if they are
recoverable from future income, including investment income. If
such costs are estimated to be unrecoverable, they are expensed.
Commissions and brokerage fee expenses incurred by FPIC non-

insurance businesses are expensed as incurred.

incomE Taxes. FPIC recognizes current and deferred income tax
expense, which is comprised of estimated provisions for Federal
and state income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recog-
nized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is




recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if
it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the benefits
related to the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We have not
established a valuation allowance because we believe it is more

likely than not that our deferred tax assets will be fully realized.

cgooowiLt. FPIC has made acquisitions in the past that have
included goodwill. Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. (“FAS™) 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” In accordance with FAS
142, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are no longer
amortized. Instead, they are subject to an annual (or under certain
circumstances more frequent) impairment tests based on their esti-
mated fair value. Other intangible assets that meet certain criteria
continue to be amortized over their useful lives and are also sub-
ject to an impairment test based on estimated fair value. During
the first quarter 2002, we recorded a transitional impairment
charge of $29,578, net of an $18.784 income tax benefit, as the

cumulative effece of accounting change.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Premiums are earned and recognized as
revenues on a pro rata basis over the terms of our insurance poli-
cies. Policy terms do not exceed one year. Unearned premiums
represent the portion of written premiums that remain to be
earned in future periods. Premiums received in advance of the
policy year arc recorded as premiums collected in advance in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Claims administration and management fee income is com-
prised of revenues of the insurance management and TPA
segments. Management fees of the insurance management segment
are billed and recognized under the contract based on a percent-
age of PRI’ direct written premiums for the calendar year. Such
management fees are estimated. billed and recognized for quarterly
reporting purposes based upon estimates of the direct written pre-
miums of PRI for the vear. Claims administration and
management fees of the TPA segment are subject to contractual
arrangements, some of which exceed one year. These revenues are
billed and recognized commensurate with the terms of these con-
tracts, which generally correspond with the provision of services
to customers.

Commission income for both non-insurance segments is associ-
ated with the placement of insurance and reinsurance with outside
carriers on behalf of PRI, various TPA customers and in some

cases, FPIC, where commissions or brokerage fees related to a
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trapsaction are payable by the reinsurer. Commissions and broker-
age fees are recognized as revenues as of the later of the billing or

the effective date of the insurance or reinsurance placed.

LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES. The liability for losses
and LAE is based upon our best estimate of the unpaid cost of
settling the claims (including the effects of inflation and other
societal and economic factors). Amounts attributable to ceded
reinsurance based on the recorded liability for loss and LAE are
classified as assets in the consolidated statements of financial posi-
tion. The estimated costs of settling claims are generally based
upon past experience adjusted for current trends, and any other
factors that would modify past experience. These liabilities are
not discounted.

We utilize actuarial techniques to estimate the liability for losses
and LAE, including provisions for estimated future development
or changes in our individual case reserves and Josses and LAE that
have been incurred but not reported to us (“IBNR™), where
applicable. These techniques consist of a statistical analysis of his-
torical experience by line of business, grouping contracts with like
characteristics and policy provisions. Decisions to use particular
actuarial methods and the results obtained from those methods are
evaluated by considering the inherent assumptions underlying the
methods and the appropriateness of the methods and assumptions
to the circumstances. No single projection method is inherently
better than any other in all circumstances. We apply multiple
methods in determining our reserve estimates and consider these
along with additional considerations and assumptions in arriving
at our best estimate.

FPIC also has direct and assumed liabilities associated with cov-
ered extended reporting endorsements under claims-made MPL
policy forms, which provide, at no additional charge, continuing
MPL coverage for claims-made insureds in the event of death, dis-
ability or retirement (“DD&R reserves”). These DD&R reserves,
which possess elements of both loss reserves and pension-type lia-
bilities, are carried within unearned premiums and are estimated
using assumptions for mortality, morbidity, retirement, interest
and inflation.

The liabilities for losses and LAE, DD&R reserves, and the
related estimation methods are periodically reviewed and revised to
reflect current conditions and trends. The resulting adjustments are
reflected in current year net income. While management believes
the liabilities for losses and LAE are adequate to cover the ultimate
liability, the actual ultimate loss costs may vary from the amounts

presently estimated and such differences could be material.
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PER SHARE DATA. Basic earnings per share are calculated by divid-
ing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common
share are calculated using the weighted average combination of
dilutive common share equivalents and common shares outstand-

ing during the period.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES. Liabilities for loss contingen-
cies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties
and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liabilicy
has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or reme-
diation can be reasonably estimated.

INTEREST RATE COLLARS AND SWAPS. We account for our interest
rate collars and swaps in accordance with FAS 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended by
FAS 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities” and FAS 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
FPIC uses derivative financial instruments to manage market risks
related to the effects of changes in interest rates on its floating rate
long-term debt. The cost of these contracts is being amortized
over their respective maturities. In addition, the remaining bal-
ances are adjusted and carried at their estimated fair values, with
the changes therein reported as unrealized gains or losses in other
comprehensive income (loss). The differential, if any, to be paid or
received as interest rates change is accrued and recognized as an
adjustment to interest expense related to the debt. The related
amount payable to or receivable from the counterparties is
included as adjustments to accrued interest. See Note 10,
Derivative Financial Instruments, for additional information
related to the interest rate collars and swaps. FPIC does not
currently hold and has not issued any other derivative

financial instruments.

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES. PaPRI, the Pennsylvania insurance
exchange managed by our subsidiary, PRM, is a variable interest
entity as defined by Revised Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”} Interpretation No. FIN 46(R) (“FIN 46(R)™).
PRI, the New York reciprocal insurer managed by our insurance
management subsidiary, AFP, has a variable interest in and is the
primary beneficiary of PaPRI. PRI is the primary beneficiary of
PaPRI due to its provision of subordinated financial support, its
role as assuming reinsurer of 100% of PaPRI’s insured risks (and
related residual income or losses), and its control of the PaPRI
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board of directors. PRI is a related party of FPIC, which under
FIN 46(R) results in the assumption that PRI’s variable interest

in PaPRI is also ascribed to us. However, we do not consolidate
PaPRI’s financial statements with ours because we are not the pri-
mary beneficiary nor do we hold a controlling interest in it. Our
subsidiaries PMA and PRM provide insurance brokerage and
management services to PaPRI in exchange for commission and
fee income. PRI is not a variable interest entity and thus we do
not consolidate its financial statements either.

ACCOUNTING FOR SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION. In December
2002, the FASB issued FAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, Transition and Disclosure” to provide transition
guidance for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and to amend
the disclosure requirements of FAS 123 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” for both annual and interim financial
statements. FAS 148 requires that disclosures of the pro forma
effect of using the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation be displayed more prominently and in a
tabular format. The transition and annual disclosure requirements
of FAS 148 were effective for fiscal years ended after December
15, 2002. The interim disclosure requirements of FAS 148 are
effective for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002.
The adoption of the provisions of FAS 148 did not have an
impact on FPIC’s consolidated financial statements; however, we
have modified the disclosures as provided for in the new standard.

FPIC elected to adopt FAS 123 on a disclosure basis only and
measure stock-based compensation in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board No. (“APB”) 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” using intrinsic values with appropriate
disclosures under the fair value based method as required by FAS
123 and FAS 148. In accordance with APB 25 and related inter-
pretations, compensation expense for stock options is recognized
in income based on the excess, if any, of the quoted market price
of the stock at the grant date of the award or other measurement
date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.
Generally, the exercise price for stock options granted to an
employee equals the fair market value of FPIC common stock at
the date of grant, thereby resulting in no recognition of compen-
sation expense. For awards that generate compensation expense as
defined under APB 25, FPIC calculates the amount of compensa-
tion expense and recognizes the expense over the vesting period
of the award.




Had compensation cost for FPIC’s stock option plans been determined based on the fair value method set forth in FAS 123, FPIC’s net

income (loss) and basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share would have been impacted as follows for the years ended December

31,2004, 2003 and 2002:

PRO FORMA NET INCOME {LOSS):
Net income (loss), as reported

Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
based method, net of income taxes

Pro forma net income (loss)

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:

Net income (loss), as reported

Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
based method, net of income taxes

Pro forma basic earnings (loss) per common share

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Net income (loss), as reported

Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
based method, net of income taxes

Pro forma diluted earnings (loss) per common share
el e LSELLDL

See Note 12, Stock Options and Employee Stock Purchase
Plans, for discussion about the methods and assumptions used in
estimating the fair value of stock options used in preparation of the

pro-forma information presented in the above tabular presentation.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS., In December 2004, the -
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FAS 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment,” which establishes standards for transactions in
which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or
services. FAS 123(R)) requires stock options and other share-based
payments made to employees to be accounted for as compensation
expense and recorded at fair value. Consistent with the provisions
of the new standard, we intend to adopt FAS 123(R) in the third
quarter of 2005, and to implement it on a modified prospective
basis. Information about the fair value of stock options under the
Black-Scholes model and its pro forma impact on our net income
and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 is shown above in the section Accounting for

Share-Based Compensation. However, a number of technical

U 2004 2003 2002
$ 28,181 16,572 (14,702)
- (1,231) (1,060) (1,053)
8§ 26950 15512 (15,755)
$ 2.83 1.75 (1.57)

e (0.12) (0.11) (0.11)
8 271 1.64 (1.68)
$ 2.70 1.71 (1.56)
i ©.12) (0.11) 0.11)
. $_ 258 1.60 (1.67)

implementation issues are yet to be resolved, including the selec-
tion and use of an appropriate valuation model, and the ultimate
impact of adopting FAS 123(R) is not yet known.

During 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board reached a consensus with
respect to guidance to be used in determining whether an invest-
ment within the scope of EITF Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments,” is other-than-temporarily impaired. The
guidance was to be applied in other-than-temporary impairment
evaluations made in reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2004, however, in October 2004 the implementation date was
deferred. Due to the uncertainty as to how all of the relevant out-
standing issues will be resolved, FPIC is unable to determine the
impact of adopting paragraphs 10-20 of EITF 03-1 until final

implementation guidance is issued.

rRecLAssIFIcaTION. Certain amounts for 2003 and 2002 have been
reclassified to conform with the 2004 presentation.
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NOTE THREE. Investments

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments in fixed maturities, available for sale, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were

as follows:
AMORTIZED GROSS GROSS FAIR
2004 cosT UNREALIZED GAINS  UNREALIZED LOSSES VALUE
Corporate securities § 131,128 1,755 942 131,941
U.S. Government agencies and authorities 80,512 1,354 610 81,256
States, municipalities and political subdivisions 251,274 4,052 1,080 254,246
Mortgage-backed securities 81,382 201 483 81,100
Total fixed maturities, available for sale $§ 544,296 7,362 3,115 548,543
AMORTIZED GROSS GROSS FAIR
2003 CQosT UNREALIZED GAINS UNREALIZED LOSSES VALUE
Corporate securities § 154,533 3,305 1,159 156,679
U.S. Government agencies. and authorities 147,531 2,291 1,058 148,764
States, municipalities and political subdivisions 108,719 2,714 284 111,149
Mortgage-backed securities 111,369 1,142 456 112,055
Total fixed maturities, available for sale $ 522,152 9,452 2,957 528,647

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturities,
available for sale, at December 31, 2004 by contractual maturity
are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual
maturities, because borrowers have the right to call or prepay

these obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

AMORTIZED FAIR
COSsT VALUE
Due in one year or less $ 11,819 11,992
Due after one year through five years 132,774 133,409
Due after five years through ten years 249,854 252,196
Due after ten years 68,467 69,846
462,914 467,443
Mortgage-backed securities 81,382 81,100
Total fixed maturities, available for sale  $544,296 548,543

As of December 31, 2004, investments in securities and cash
with an amortized cost of $15,364 and a market value of $15,940
were on deposit with the insurance departments in various states
as required by law. Investment securities and cash with an amor-
tized cost of $108,941 and a market value of $110,415 were held
in trust accounts as collateral for reinsurance assumed as required

by law in certain states in which we assume insurance business.

Net investment income for the years ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

2004 2003

2002

Fixed maturities,

available for sale $ 21,099 19,083 20,714
Other invested assets 533 669 636
Cash and cash equivalents 849 613 1,221

22,481 20,365 22,571
Less: Investment expense (1,722) (1,951) (1,594)
Net investment income % 20,759 18,414 20,977

Realized investment gains (losses) for the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are summarized below:

2004 2003

2002

FIXED MATURITIES,
AVAILABLE FOR SALE:

Gross realized gains $ 6,042 11,211 8,769
Gross realized losses (3,522) (4,059 (4,092)
OTHER INVESTED ASSETS;
Gross realized gains 2,134 201 37
Gross realized losses — — (26)
Other-than-temporary

impairments (787) (5,301) —
Net realized

investment gains $ 3,867 2,052 4,688
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Other invested assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized below:

Real estate, net of depreciation
Investments in limited partnerships

Other .

2004 2003
§ 4,035 4,207
2,057 2,904
. 1,083 1,879
e $ 7475 8,990

Total depreciation expense on real estate investments was $298, $277 and $286 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

note Four.  Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Changes in deferred policy acquisition costs for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Beginning balance $ 6,209 4,452 9,001
Additions 13,488 ‘ 7,765 6,707
Amortization expense (8,417) (6,008) (9,952)
Other L — — (1,304)
Ending balance $ 11,280 6,209 4,452

During 2002, we recorded a charge related to our MPL business at Intermed, as it was estimated that not all of its deferred policy
acquisition costs were recoverable. As a result, deferred policy acquisition costs were reduced by $1,304 in 2002.

note five. Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years

2004 2003 2002
Beginning balance § 18,870 18,870 67,232
Transitional impairment
charge u_n_d_cr_ F_AS 1_{2____ R — (48,362)
Ending bglancg § }§,870 18,870 18,870

FPIC adopted FAS 142 effective January 1, 2002. In connection
with the adoption in the first quarter of 2002, FPIC discontinued
the amortization of goodwill and engaged independent valuation
consultants to perform transitional impairment tests at each of its
operating segnents: insurance, insurance management and TPA.

These operating segments meet the reporting unit requirements as
defined by FAS 142.

The fair values for each of the reporting units were calculated
using one or more of the following approaches: (i) market mului-
ple approach; (ii) discounted cash flow (“DCF”) approach; and/or

(111) asset approach.

> Under the market multiple approach, the values of the reporting
units were based on the market prices and performance funda-
mentals of similar public companies.

« Under the DCF approach, the values of the reporting units were
based on the present value of the projected future cash flows to
be generated.

= Under the asset approach, the value of a reporting unit is the dif-
ference in the fair value of total assets and the fair value of total
liabilities. The fair value of each asset and liability may in turn
be estimated using an income approach, market approach or
cost approach.
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Based on the results of the impairment tests conducted in the
first quarter of 2002, goodwill was not deemed to be impaired at
the insurance segment, since the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeded its carrying value. Therefore, the second step of the
goodwill impairment test was not performed. However, the carry-
ing values of the insurance management and TPA segments
exceeded their respective fair values, indicating an impairment of

goodwill. Under step 2 of the test, the implied fair values of the

insurance management and TPA goodwill were compared to their
carrying values to measure the amount of impairment loss. As a
result, a non-cash transitional impairment charge of $48,362
(829,578, after an income tax benefit of $18,784) was recognized
and recorded as a cumulative effect of accounting change in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income (loss) for the
year ended December 31, 2002. The results of the transitional
impairment tests and charges were as follows:

INSURANGE THIRD PARTY

INSURANCE MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION TOTAL
Balance as of December 31, 2001 $ 10,833 49,140 7,259 67,232
Impairment charge — (41,103) (7,259) (48,362)
Balance as of December 31, 2002 $ 10,833 8,037 — 18A,§7.O

The transitional impairment charge at the insurance manage-
ment segment primarily reflects certain intangibles and synergies,
which, in our opinion, are opportunistic in nature and carry a rel-
atively significant degree of uncertainty; therefore, we treated these
intangibles conservatively in the valuation required by FAS 142.
The transitional impairment charge at the TPA segment primarily

reflects changes in market conditions and an increase in competi-

tion in recent years in the markets served by FPIC’s TPA segment.
The following table provides comparative disclosures of net

income excluding the cumulative effect of accounting change, net

“of taxes, for 2004, 2003 and 2002.

2004 20038 2002

NET INCOME (LOSS):

Net income (loss), as reported $ 28,181 16,572 (14,702)
Cumulative effect of accounting change = — 29,578
_Net income, comparative o B $ 28,A18”1_ o 16,572 14,876” i
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:

Net income (loss), as reported $ 2.83 1.75 (1.57)
Cumulative effect of accounting change = — 3.15
Basic earnings per common share, comparative 8 28 1.75 158
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:

Net income (loss), as reported $ 2.70 1.71 (1.56)
Cumulative effect of accounting change = — 3.14
Diluted earnings per common share, comparative $ 270 17 158

As required by FAS 142, we completed annual impairment test-
ing of our remaining goodwill as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
during the first quarters of 2005 and 2004, respectively, including
obtaining reports from independent valuation consultants. Based
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on the results of such testing, we determined that the fair value
of the goodwill exceeded the carrying value and that no impair-

ment exists.




noTe six. Income Taxes

FPIC’s provision for income taxes for the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

e «2004 2003 2002 ~
CURRENT EXPENSE:
Federal $ 13,178 7,538 6,605
Sate 3406 1,394 1,385
Totd 16,584 8,932 7,990
DEFERRED EXPENSE:
Federal 120 (11 767
Sta,e 237 396 77
Total 35 385 844
Net incgrznie:txajig(}):en:szexm 9:; =16,941 9,317 . 8,834“7

The provision for income taxes differs from the statutory
corporate tax rate of 35% for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Computed “expected”

tax expense $ 15,793 9,061 8,298
Municipal bond interest (2,206) (1,130) (1,309)
State income taxes,

net of Federal benefit 2,368 1,164 950
Prior year adjustments

upon IRS examination 750 — 544
Other, net 236 222 351

Actuﬂ income tax expense § 16,941 9,317 8,834 B

= 22 srEszroes— amrms o oo =

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the significant components of
the net deferred tax asset were as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ARISING FROM:

$ 12,746 12,252
12,163 14,321

Loss reserve discounting
Goodwill and intangible assets

Unearned premiums 10,477 7,558
Reealized loss on securities 2,075 1,751
Net operating loss carry forward 1,776 2,149
Benefit plans 1,461 1,096
Deferred ceding commission 481 1,206
Other 1,610 358
Total deferred tax assets 42,789 40,691
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES ARISING FROM:

Deferred policy acquisition costs 4,335 2,464
Unrealized gains on securities 1,992 v 2,470
Other 826 938
Toral ge_ferred tax liabilities 7,153 5,872
Net .deferred tax asset _$i._3_5',6§6 __3_ 81

Net deferred tax assets and Federal income tax expense in future
vears can be significantly affected by changes in enacted tax rates or
by unexpected adverse events that would influence management’s
conclusions as to the ultimate realizability of deferred tax assets.

FPIC has remaining net operating loss carry forwards of
approximately $5,075 as of December 31, 2004 that may be used
to offset taxable income in future years subject to an annual limi-
tation imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. These net
operating loss carry forwards expire in the years 2018 and 2019.

FPIC is currently undergoing an audit of its tax returns by the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for the years ended December
31,2000 and 2001. Management believes that its positions on
issues raised in the examination thus far are meritorious and that
its current and deferred tax amounts are appropriate. However,
there can be no assurance that additional tax adjustments and
related penalties and interest will not be proposed and incurred
as a result of an IRS examination.

During 2002, FPIC concluded examinations by the IRS of its
consolidated Federal income tax returns for the years ended
December 31, 1998 and 1999. As a result of these examinations,
a net additional provision for income taxes was recognized in the
amount of $554.
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note seven. Liability for Losses and LAE

Activity in the liability for losses and LAE for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Gross balance, January 1 $574,529 440,166 318,483
Less reinsurance recoverables 275,766 168,159 80,410
Net balance, January 1 208,763 272,007 238,073
INCURRED RELATED TO:

Current year 124,699 118,492 137,155
Prior years 473 482 2,416
Total incurred 125,172 118,974 139,571
PAID RELATED TO:

Current year 16,517 13,455 9,130
Prior years 105,716 101,989 96,507
Total paid 122,236 115,444 105,637
Gerling commutation — 23,226 —
Net balance, December 31 301,699 298,763 272,007
Plus reinsurance recoverables 333,419 275,766 168,159

Gross balance, December 31  $635,118 574,529 440,166

INCURRED RELATED TO CURRENT YEAR. Our best estimate of reserves
for the 2004 year has been' determined using historical trends with
adjustments added to provide for uncertainties inherent in the
claims environment in Florida, including those resulting from sig-
nificant tort reform initiatives passed by the legislature in 2003
and three constitutional amendments passed by popular initiative
in 2004. Because of the uncertainty created by these changes, we
believe that booking a more conservative provision in the current

year is prudent.

INCURRED RELATED TO PRIOR YEARS. FPIC’ aggregate loss and LAE
reserve estimates reported for years 2003 and prior have not
increased significantly, as a group, in 2004. FPIC adopted a new
harder claims payment philosophy beginning in 2001. The new
claims philosophy, which is now approaching its fourth full year,
has had the effect so far of reducing FPIC’s overall loss costs rela-
tive to its former claims philosophy. It has also had the effect of
changing FPICS% loss development patterns thereby introducing an
additional element of uncertainty into the provisions for the indi-
vidual prior years. We believe that it is best to treat this element of
uncertainty conservatively and thus, have not reduced our prior

year reserves, in aggregate, but have increased the provisions in
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some years and reduced them in others. As further commented
upon below, as of December 31, 2004, we have increased our
aggregate loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance, for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and prior as originally reported by
$35,174 and have reduced our reserves for claims related to the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 by $18,988 and
$15,713, respectively.

In 2003, we increased our net reserves for the years 1999
through 2001 primarily in recognition of higher severity than ini-
tally assumed, particularly in Missouri. As of December 31, 2004,
we increased our net allocated loss adjustment expense (“ALAE”)
reserves across all years since 1999, which resulted in additional
upward development in reserves for years 1999 through 2001. The
higher ALAE reserves are the result of our harder claims philoso-
phy, under which we began taking more cases to trial in 2001. We
also experienced some upward development in loss experience on
corporate policy endorsements and on business in non-core states
and increased our 2000 and 2001 reserves.

Despite higher ALAE and other upward development for years
1999, 2000 and 2001, our loss experience and outlook overall has
improved significantly in the most recent years. Improvements in
our loss experience resulting from claims and underwriting initia-
tives we've implemented since 2001 have to date essentially met or
exceeded our estimates for years since 2002. Accordingly, the
upward development in 1999 through 2001 net reserves has been
substantially offset by downward development in reserves for years
2002 and 2003 resulting in relatively immaterial net development,
for all years prior to 2004 combined.

Given the proximity and status of the years 2000 through 2002,
in particular, relative to the timing of the initiation of our harder
claims payment philosophy and the implementation of initiatives
to control increasing ALAE expenditures attendant to executing
that philosophy, it is still reasonably possible that the remaining
reserves for these years, in particular, may experience upward or
downward development in the future.

As a result of the commutation of our ceded reinsurance to
Gerling Global Reinsurance Corporation of America (“Gerling”)
during 2003, we now retain the corresponding insured risks and
losses and LAE we formerly ceded. We received $23,226 in
exchange for the release of Gerling from its reinsurance obliga-
tions to us, which we added to our net reserves. No gain or loss
was recognized on the transaction.

Refer to Note 8, Reinsurance, for information regarding the

Gerling commutation.




NOTE EIGHT. Reinsurance

FPIC cedes business to other insurance and reinsurance carriers
under various reinsurance agreements and fronting programs.
These ceded reinsurance agreements do not relieve FPIC from its
obligations as primary insurer to its policyholders. To the extent

that any reinsurer might be unable to meet its obligations, FPIC

2004
o . _ WRITTEN EARNED
Direct and assumed $ 312,728 313,160
% S (120,196) (1.63,484)
Nee $ 192,532 149,676_7
e T ==2=004 2003 2002

Losses and LAE incurred $261,413 323,141 253,015
Reinsurance recoveries ~(13_6,241) (204,167)  (113,444)
Net losses and

LAF incurred $125,172 118,974 139,571

In 2004, FPIC reinsured, under its primary excess of loss pro~
gram, individual losses incurred in excess of $500. In 2003 and
2002, FPIC reinsured individual losses incurred under this program
in excess of $500 (Retention on FPIC’s anesthesiology programs
was $375 per loss because 25% of that business was ceded to
American Professional Assurance, Lid. (“APAL”), a Cayman Island
insurance company of which FPIC owns 9.8%. This program with
APAL ended as of December 31, 2003.) The 2002 program also
included an annual aggregate deductible, which was 0.58% of sub-
ject written premium or approximately $1.35 nullion. '

Based on analysis of our exposure to extra-contractual obliga-
tions and claims in excess of policy limits (“ECO/XPL”), FPIC
elected not to renew the supplemental awards made ECO/XPL
reinsurance that we had carried in addition to the ECO/XPL
coverage already included as part of our primary excess of loss
reinsurance program. Therefore, this additional layer of excess rein-
surance is no longer in effect after April 27, 2004 and we now

retain this excess risk.

NET ACCOUNT QUOTA SHARE REINSURANCE. Effective July 1, 2002,
our largest insurance subsidiary, First Professionals, entered into a
net account quota share reinsurance agreement with two insur-
ance companies of the Hannover Re group (“Hannover Re”).
The agreement, which called for First Professionals to cede quota
share portions of its written premiums, contains adjustable fea-
tures, including sliding scale ceding commissions and a cap on the
amount of losses that may be ceded to the reinsurer. The original

agreement also contained a loss corridor on business ceded

nonetheless continues to be liable to its policyholders for the
insured losses and LAE.

The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned and
losses and LAE incurred for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, was as follows:

R 2‘023 . 2002
_WRITTEN EARNED WRITTEN EARNED
340,741 336,727 344,727 318,068
(197.607)  (205,062) (204,479) (166,384)
143,134 131,665 140,248 151,684

through March 31, 2003, which was removed along with other
modifications made in connection with the amendment and
extension of the agreement effective April 1, 2003. The effect of
these features is to limit the reinsurers’ aggregate exposure to loss
and thereby reduce the ultimate cost to First Professionals as the
ceding company. These features also have the effect of reducing
the amount of protection relative to the quota share amount of
premiums ceded by First Professionals. While First Professionals
does not receive pro-rata protection relative to the amount of pre-
miums ceded, the amount of such protection is significant, as
determined in accordance with guidance under both statutory
accounting practices and GAAP. In addition to ceding a significant
portion of its risks to Hannover Re, the agreement also allowed
First Professionals to reduce its financial leverage and to realize
immediate reimbursement for related up-front acquisition costs,
thus adding to its financial capacity.

First Professionals has the option to commute the agreement
should the business perform such that the underlying protection
proves to be unnecessary, in which case the reinsurance would
cease, the underlying reinsurance assets and liabilities would
unwind, and any net funds under the agreement, less a 4.2% risk
charge to be paid to the reinsurers, would be retained by First
Professionals. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, this charge would
have been $9,246 and $7,131, respectively. The decision of
whether to commute the agreement and the timing of any such
commutation will depend on the performance of the underlying
business, the need for the agreement based on our capital position
and other relevant considerations.

On May 6, 2003, we entered into an amendment to the
Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement that,
effective April 1, 2003, extended its expiration date to include
policies written and renewed through December 31, 2004.

The agreement was also amended to remove the loss corridor on
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business written and ceded, beginning April 1, 2003, and to reduce
the lower end of the sliding scale ceding commission range from
27.5% to 20%. A provision was added that allowed First
Professionals to reduce the quota share amount of premiums to be
ceded under the agreement in 2004. Cancellation provisions were
also added; one that gave First Professionals the option to cancel

" the agreement on or after January 1, 2004, with 30 days notice,

and one that gave Hannover Re the option to cancel the agree-
ment as of the effective date of any decrease in First Professionals’
base rate for its MPL insurance policies that exceeds 5%.

We terminated future cessions under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement, effective July 1, 2004.
With this termination, business is no longer ceded under it begin-
ning with business written and renewed in the third quarter of
2004. The business already ceded through June 30, 2004 continues

to be subject to the agreement and is in run off.

REINSURANCE RECOVERABLE ON PAID LOSSES, DUE FROM REINSURERS
ON UNPAID LOSSES AND LAE AND CEDED UNEARNED PREMIUMS. As of
December 31, 2004, we had reinsurance recoverable on paid losses,
due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and ceded unearned premi-
ums in the amounts of $19,140, $333,419 and $28,147,
respectively, or $380,706, in aggregate.

The portion of our total aggregate reinsurance recoverables
under the excess of loss programs was $135,188 as of December
31, 2004. Of this amount, $111,118 is due from authorized rein-
surers under applicable state insurance regulations, and thus, we do
not hold collateral for these recoverables. For the amounts due
from unauthorized reinsurers, we hold collateral in the form of
securities in trust, irrevocable letters of credit or other funds held.
Most of the excess of loss reinsurers are rated at least “A-" by the
A. M. Best and, in management’s opinion, these recoverables are
fully collectible or realizable.

Reinsurance recoverables under the net account quota share
reinsurance agreement, totaled $147,644, in aggregate, as of
December 31, 2004. The two companies with which we placed
this reinsurance are part of the Hannover Ruckversicherungs
Group, which is rated “A” by A. M. Best, but these two sub-
sidiaries are not authorized reinsurers under applicable state

insurance regulations. Under the terms of the agreement, we have
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funds withheld in the amount of $132,877. In addition, we hold

irrevocable letters of credit totaling $25,565 as collateral for these
amounts. Hannover Re also participates in our excess of loss pro-
gram. We do not hold collateral on balances due from the parent

company because it is an authorized reinsurer.

As of December 31, 2004, $84,672 of our aggregate reinsurance
recoverables are associated with program business under fronting
agreements with related parties and others. Of this amount,
$40,216 is due from PRI, the New York insurance reciprocal man-
aged by our subsidiary, AFP, and for which we hold collateral of
$45,802 in the form of securities held in trust. Reinsurance recov-
erables of $20,299 are due from segregated portfolios or cells of
APAL (SPC) Lud., a subsidiary of APAL, and are collateralized by
securities in trust, an irrevocable letter of credit and other funds
held totaling $18,761.

The remaining portion of our reinsurance recoverables as of
December 31, 2004, $13,202, is due from APAL under a 25%
quota share reinsurance agreement under which we ceased ces-
sions as of December 31, 2003, and is collateralized by securities in
trust, an irrevocable letter of credit and other funds held totaling
$13,155.

For additional information on the above transactions that are
with related parties, refer to Note 18, Related Party Transactions,
which is presented below.

COMMUTATION OF GERLING REINSURANCE. On November 25, 2003,
FPIC received $23,500 in exchange for commuting its reinsurance
treaties with Gerling, one of its reinsurers. The amount collected
includes payments for commutation of Gerling’s quota share treaty
for facultative reinsurance coverage on non-standard risks,
Gerling’s portion of the excess of loss reinsurance program and
payments for estimated future claims under the Gerling treaties.
Gerling participated in our excess of loss reinsurance programs in
2000 at 15%, and in 2001 and 2002 at 20%. We replaced Gerling’s
participation in our reinsurance programs, effective with our
renewal as of January 1, 2003. No gain or loss was recognized on
the commutation transaction. As a result of the commutation, we
have no reinsurance recoverable from Gerling as of December 31,
2004 and 2003.




note nine. Long Term Debt

Our outstanding long term debt, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of the following:

Junior subordinated debentures due May 15, 2033 (callable by FPIC beginning May 15, 2008);
uncollateralized and bearing floating rate interest at three-month LIBOR plus 4.1%
(6.38% and 3.28% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) $ 15,464 15,464

Junior subordinated debentures due May 23, 2033 {callable by FPIC beginning May 23, 2008);
uncollateralized and bearing floating rate interest at three-month LIBOR plus 4.2%
(6.60% and 5.37% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) 5,155 5,155

Senior notes due May 23, 2033 (callable by FPIC beginning May 23, 2008);
uncollateralized and bearing floating rate interest at three-month LIBOR plus 4.2%
(6.60% and 5.37% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) 10,000 10,000

Junior subordinated debentures due October 29, 2033 (callable by FPIC beginning October 29, 2008);
uncollateralized and bearing floating rate interest at three-month LIBOR plus 3.85%

(5.98% and 5.01% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) _ 15464 15,464
Toal e e e e A e, S B0083 46085
During 2003, we completed the placement of $10,000 in senior option to call the trust preferred securities at par or its equivalent

notes and created three trusts that issued 30-year trust preferred beginning five vears from closing. The trust preferred securities
securities for which the proceeds from such issuances together also contain features that allow us the option, under certain condi-
with cash préviously contributed to the trusts were used to pur- tons, to defer interest payments for up to 20 quarters and to
chase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC totaling $36,083. redeem the securities before the first optional call date in five
[ssuance costs for all three offerings in the aggregate amount of years. In the case of the potential eatlier call date, the redemption
approximately $1,404 were capitalized and are being amortized or call price payable by us may be different than par. The securities
over their respective stated maturity periods of thirty years. have stated maturities of thirty years and are due in May and
We established three wholly owned, but not consolidated, trusts, October 2033,
FPIC Capital Trust [, FPIC Capital Statutory Trust II and FPIC Indenture agreements, relating to FPIC’s junior subordinated
Capital Statutory Trust 111, for the sole purpose of issuing the trust debentures and trust preferred securities contain limitations, under
preferred securities. The proceeds received by the three trusts were certain circumstances, as to (i) the declaration or payment of divi-
used to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC of the dends, or distributions thereon, or the redemption, purchase,
same amounts, maturities and other applicable terms and features. acquisition or liquidatidn with respect to any capital stock of
The debentures issued by FPIC, which are reported as long term FPIC or its affiliates; (ii) the payment, in certain circumstances, of
debt in the consolidated statements of financial position, to the principal of, premium or interest on, or the repayment, repurchase
three trusts are subordinated to all senior indebtedness, including or redemption of, debt securities of FPIC or its affiliates that rank
the senior notes, and are equal in standing to one another. in equal standing with or are junior in interest to the debentures;
The securities are uncollateralized and bear a floating interest or (iii) the payment, in certain circumstances, under any guaran-
rate equal to the three-month LIBOR plus a spread ranging from tees of FPIC or its affiliates that rank equal in standing with or
3.85% to 4.20% (the total interest rates ranged from 5.98% to Junior in interest to capital securities guarantees relating to the
6.60% as of December 31, 2004). The floating interest rate will be issuance of the debentures. Circumstances that would result in
adjustable quarterly with changes in the three-month LIBOR, and such limitations include a continuing event of default, as defined
in the case of the first two offerings, the maximum rate that may by the indenture agreements, a default with respect to payment of
be charged under the securities within the first five years is 12.5%. any obligations under capital securities guarantees, or a continuing
We have also purchased hedging instruments designed to maintain interest deferral election by FPIC.
the ultimate floating rate interest cost on all of these securities For additional information on FPIC’ hedging instruments and
within a stated range for five years from closing. We have the interest costs, see Note 10, Derivative Financial Instruments.
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noTe Ten. Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2004, FPIC had four interest rate collars.
The collars are designed to maintain FPIC’s ultimate floating rate
interest costs on its trust preferred securities and unsecured senior
notes within a specified interest range for five years from the
closing date of those liabilities. The initial costs of the hedge
instruments acquired for this purpose of $1,134, in aggregate,

have been capitalized and will be amortized over their respective
five year maturity periods.

The interest rate collars and terms as of December 31, 2004 are
presented below with their corresponding effects on the floating
rate interest costs associated with the trust preferred securities and

senior notes.

NOTIONAL MATURITY LIBOR LIBOR FLOOR CAP
AMOUNT DATE FLOOR™ CAP® RATE RATE
$ 15,000 571572008 1.20% 4.40% 5.30% 8.50%
$ 5,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
$ 10,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
$ 15,000 10/29/2008 1.00% 4.65% 4.85% 8.50%

(1): Based on three-month LIBOR

The following is a summary of FPIC’s debt interest risk
management strategy and the effect of this strategy on FPIC%
consolidated financial statements:

The interest rate collars were purchased to effectively place
floors and caps on the three-month LIBOR floating interest of
approximately 1.00% to 1.20% and 4.40% to 4.65%, respectively,
on notional principal corresponding with the principal amounts of
each offering, for 5 years. These instruments will effectively serve
to hedge our total floating interest rate borrowing costs under the
securities to within a range of 4.85% to 8.60% for five years and
until such time that we have the right to call the securities.

Under the interest rate collars, when the three-month LIBOR
interest rate exceeds the specified cap rate or falls below the speci-
fied floor rate, we receive or pay, respectively, the related cash flow
equal to the difference in percentage times the notional principal
under the respective contracts. The two portions of each contract
working together, therefore, form a hedge against the effects of a
rising three-month LIBOR rate above the cap or a falling three-
month LIBOR rate below the floor. The notional amounts
referenced in the interest rate collars equal the related trust pre-
ferred securities or senior notes, as applicable. The notional
amounts of the contract are not exchanged. Therefore, working
together the excess of the interest expense on our securities over
the cap rate, or the shortfall in interest expense under the floor, are
offset by related receipts of excess interest under the caps, or the
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payment of the interest shortfall below the floor, respectively. No
other cash payments are made unless the contract is terminated
prior to maturity, in which case the amount paid or received in
settlement is established by agreement at the time of termination,
and usually represents the net present value, at current interest
rates, of the remaining obligations to exchange payments under
the terms of the contract.

The interest rate collar instruments are reflected at fair value in
FPIC’s consolidated statements of financial position and the effec-
tive portion of the related gains or losses on the agreements are
recognized in shareholders’ equity (as a component of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income, net). The net effect of this
accounting on FPIC’s operating results is that interest expense on
the floating interest rate debt being hedged is recorded based on
fixed interest rates.

FPIC documents the relationships between the hedging instru-
ments and the underlying long term debt instruments. FPIC also
assesses the effectiveness of the hedging instruments on a quarterly
basis. If it is determined that the hedging instruments are no
longer highly effective, the change in the fair value of the ineffec-
tive portion of the swaps would be included in earnings rather
than comprehensive income. For the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, the net gain or loss on the ineffective portion of

the agreenients was not material.




noTe eLeven. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time based
on the characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
~market information. Quoted market prices are used where avail-
able. In other cases, fair values are based on estimates using
valuation techniques, such as discounting estimated future cash
flows using a rate commensurate with the risks involved or other
acceptable methods. These techniques involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by the assumptions used and the judgments
made regarding risk characteristics of various financial instru-
ments, prepayments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows,
future anticipated loss experience and other factors. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Independent
market data may not be available to validate those fair value esti-
mates that are based on internal valuation techniques. Moreover,
such fair value estimates may not be indicative of the amounts that
could be realized in an immediate sale of the instrument. Also,
because of differences in methodologies and assumptions used to
estimate fair values, the fair values of FPIC’ financial instruments
may not be comparable to those of other companies.
Fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments

without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future

s szocrmoemms zmrem: o= o= o=

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Fixed maturities, available for sale
Other invested assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest rate collars

business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not consid-

ered financial instruments. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value

amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of FPIC.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate

the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is

practicable to estimate that value:

«  Fixed maturities, available for sale ~ Fair value was estimated

based on prices from a third party service organization provid-
ing administrative services for investments.

> Other invested assets — Carrying value approximates the
fair value.
v Cash and cash equivalents — Carrying value approximates the

fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Interest rate collars — Fair value was estimated using quotes
from an institutional broker and represents the cash require-
ment if the existing agreement had been settled at year-end.

Long term debt — Carrying value approximates the fair value.
The following table presents the carrying values and estimated

fair values of FPIC’s financial instruments as of December 31,
2004 and 2003.

DECEMBER 31, 2004 DECEMBER 31, 2003

Total financial assets

=z srzirmme— mwmim: = = =

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Long term debt

CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED

_VALUE FAIR VALUE VALUE FAIR VALUE

$ 548,343 548,543 528,647 528,647

7,175 7,175 8,990 8,990

128,250 128,250 85,064 85,064

) 498 450 1,051 1,035
$ 684,466 684,418 623,752 623,736
5 46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083
$ 46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083

Total financial liabilicies
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note Twewve. Stock Option and Employee Stock Purchase Plans

FPIC has a stock option plan for officers and key employees (the
“employee plan”) and a plan for non-employee directors (the
“director plan”}). Under the director plan, only non-qualified stock
options may be issued. Under the employee plan, both incentive
stock options and non-qualified stock options may be granted to
the same individual. The option price of an incentive stock option
may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of shares on
the grant date. The option price of a non-qualified option may
not be less than 50% of the fair market value of shares on the
grant date. Under the terms of the director plan, 5,000 shares are
granted to each director on the date that person becomes a direc-
tor and on an annual basis as approved by the Board. The plan also
provides for discretionary grants at future dates as approved by the
Board. Stock option grants made under the director plan are at a
price not less than 100% of the fair market value of the underly-
ing stock on the grant date.

During 2000, FPIC offered a stock purchase incentive program
(the “incentive plan”) to eligible employees, including executive
officers. Under the incentive plan, employees who purchased shares
of FPIC’s common stock in the open market during the term of
the incentive plan were granted matching non-qualified stock
options on a one-for-one basis, up to the maximum of 5,000
options per employee. The incentive plan began January 2000 and
ended April 2000. Option grants under the incentive plan were
made as of May 1,2000 at an exercise price equal to the closing
market price of FPIC’s common stock on that date. Options
granted under the incentve plan vest in three equal annual install-
ments commencing on the one-year anniversary of their grant.
Options under this plan were granted under the employee plan.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 1,060,492 and 578,380 shares
of FPIC’s common stock, respectively were reserved for issuance
in connection with the stock option plans. A summary of the sta-

tus of FPIC’s stock options is presented below:

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE

SHARES EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE EXERCISE PRICE
Balance, December 31, 2001 1,845,860 $ 17.81 1,131,918 $ 20.65
Granted 327,500 8.49 — —
Exercised (23,833) 8.63 — —
Forfeited (138,665) 19.91 — —_
Balance, December 31, 2002 2,010,862 $ 16.25 1,355,515 $ 18.93
Granted 291,500 20.70 — —
Exercised (355,295) 11.93 — —
Forfeited (294,379) 24.11 — —
Balance, December 31, 2003 1,652,688 $ 16.57 1,091,624 $ 17.10
Granted 70,950 27.54 — —
Exercised (214,270) 12.70 - —
Forfeited (54,922) 28.22 — —

Balance, December 31, 2004 1,454,446 § 17.24 1,1Q5,012 $ 16_)2

The following table summarizes information for options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2004:

OPTIONS QUTSTANDING

OPFTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
NUMBER REMAINING AVERAGE NUMBER AVERAGE
RANGE OF PRICES PER SHARE QUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL LIFE EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE EXERCISE PRICE
$ 6.00-11.99 423,830 6.20 $ 870 349,665 $ 9.10
$12.00-15.99 472,360 5.90 $ 14.17 417,362 $ 14.32
§16.00-19.99 19,400 5.20 § 17.44 16,067 § 17.67
$20.00-35.99 485,281 6.50 § 24.50 268,343 § 24.48
$36.00-60.99 53,575 2.90 $ 46.02 53,575 § 46.02
1434446 610 $ 17.24 1,105,012 § 16.72
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The fair value of options granted, which is amortized to expense
over the option vesting period in determining the pro-forma infor-
mation presented in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the
consolidated financial statements about stock-based compensation,
is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002
Expected-li_f-e Ao'f”c;p_tg;as._m ) -5- rears 5 years 5 years
Risk free interest rate 3.89% 3.02% 3.31%
Expected volatility of stock ~ 61.65% 53.02% 50.41%

The weighted average fair value of options granted during
2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

= 2z srrizmmm rmimc mom o m mee——

2004 2003 2002
Fair valuc of optlons granted $ 15.29 10.14 4.03
Total fair value of
all options granted $ 1,085 2,955 1,319
Expected dividends 8 — — —
Total number of
291 500 327,500

options granted

NOTE THIRTEEN. Employee Benefit Plans

FPIC currently sponsors nine post-retirement plans for its
employees. The table below lists those plans and the subsidiary
of FPIC whose employees are covered by that plan.

< FPIC Defined contrlbutwn profit sharing plan )

o FPIC Defined benefit plan

« FPIC Excess benefit plan

» FPIC Supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”)
o Tenere Defined contribudon profit sharing plan and trust
> Tenere Money purchase pension plan

o AFP Defined contribution profit sharing plan

» AFP Defined benefit plan

» EMI Deﬁned contrlbutlon profit sharing plan

The FPIC defined contribution profit sharing plan is available
to all employees of FPIC after meeting certain eligibility require-
ments. The plan is comprised of two parts. The first part of the
plan is a defined contribution plan that allows employees to con-
tribute up to 12.5% of their annual compensation, subject to TRS
limits. FP1C contributes a matching amount equal to 2.5% of the
employee’s annual compensation. The second part of the plan is a
profit sharing plan, whereby FPIC may at its discretion make an
additional contribution to the plan up to a maximum of 10% of
the emplovee’s annual compensation. FPIC’s policy is to fully fund
the liability for the matching portion at the end of each year. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair market value of defined
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In accordance with FAS 123, the weighted average fair value
of stock options granted is required.to be based on a theoretical
statistical model using the preceding Black-Scholes assumptions.
In actuality, because FPIC’s incentive stock options are not
rraded on any exchange, employees and directors can receive
no value nor derive any benefit from holding stock options
under these plans without an increase in the market price of
FPIC’s stock. Such an increase in stock price would also
benefit other stockholders.

FPIC also maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that
allows employees to purchase FPIC’s common stock at 85% of
the market value on the first or last day of the offering period,
whichever is lower, At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 102,478 and
26,860, respectively, shares of FPIC’s common Stock were reserved

for issuance in connection with this plan.

contribution profit sharing plan assets was $9,882 and $8,174,
respectively. Employer contributions to this plan were approxi-
mately $1,034, $960 and $735 in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

The FPIC defined benefit plan is available to all eligible
employees of FPIC who have six months of service and whose
ages are twenty and one half years of age or older. The amount of
benefits is based on years of service and 0.75% of the employee’s
average monthly salary not over the Social Security base plus 1.4%
of the employee’s average monthly salary over the Social Security
base. FPIC’s policy is to contribute the maximum amount towards
funding benefits under the plan subject to IRS limits. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair market value of defined
benefit plan assets was $3,464 and $3,281, respectively. FPIC had a
net periodic pension cost of $549, $463 and $277 for this plan in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Employer contributions to this
plan were approximately $1,459 and $143 in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. We currently anticipate contributing $70 to this plan
during the next cwelve months.

The EPIC excess benefit plan provides a means of equallzmg
the benefits of those employees participating in the FPIC defined
benefit plan whose funded benefits under the FPIC defined bene-
fit plan are or will be limited by the application of ERISA, the

Internal Revenue Service Code, or any applicable law or
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regulation. The plan is available to all participants under the FPIC
defined benefit plan, other than those individuals covered under
the SERP, whenever their benefits under the FPIC defined benefit
plan exceed applicable limitations. The plan is unfunded. FPIC had
a net periodic pension cost of $271 for the year ended December
31, 2004. .

FPIC also has a SERP that provides certain executives with
income at retirement equal to 60% of pre-retirement base com-
pensation, less qualified pension plan benefits paid by FPIC and all
predecessor plans and Social Security benefits. The plan has no
vesting prior to age 35.The total liability included in the financial
statements for this plan amounted to approximately $2,295 and
$1,961 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. FPIC had
a net periodic pension cost of $562, $192 and $258 under this
plan in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Tenere defined contribution profit sharing plan and trust is
available to all employees of Tenere upon meeting certain eligibil-
ity requirements. The plan is comprised of two parts, The first part
is a defined contribution plan that allows employees to contribute
a portion of their annual compensation, subject to IR S limits. The
second part is a profit sharing plan, whereby Tenere may at its dis-
cretion contribute an employer contribution to the plan. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair market value of plan assets
was $1,103 and $881, respectively. Employer contributions to this
plan were approximately $62, $76 and $62 in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

The Tenere money purchase plan is available to all employees of
Tenere upon meeting certain eligibility requirements. The plan 1s
designed to provide benefits based on length of service, whereby
Tenere will make contributions to the plan on behalf of the par-
ticipants for each year of service until the employee retires. At
retirement, the employee will be eligible to receive the value of
the contributions made to the plan on the employee’s behalf.
Tenere contributes on behalf of each participant an amount equal
to 6.0% of the employee’s annual compensation plus 5.7% of the
employee’s annual compensation in excess of the Social Security

Taxable Wage Base. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair mar-
ket value of plan assets was $395 and $290, respectively. Employer
contributions to this plan were approximately $71, $93 and $89 in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The AFP defined contribution and profit sharing and defined
benefit plans are available to all eligible employees of AFP. The ben-
efits under these plans are based on years of service and employee
compensation. AFP’s funding policy is to contribute to the plans an
amount sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements set
forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
plus any additional amounts determined to be appropriate from
time to time. Contributions are intended to be sufficient to cover
the costs of benefits earned for service to date and an estimate of
those costs for future service. The invested assets of the plans consist
of investments in various types and categories of stocks and bonds.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair market value of plan
assets was $12,128 and $8,852, respectively. Pension costs for the

vyears 2004, 2003 and 2002 amounted to $2,821, $1,905 and

$1,255, respectively. Employer contributions to this plan were
approximately $2,900, $2,035 and $1,221 in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. We currently anticipate contributing $2,800 to the
AFP defined benefit plan during the next twelve months.

The EMI defined contribution profit sharing plan is available
for all employees of EMI upon meeting certain eligibility require-
ments. Under the plan, employees can contribute up to 16% of
their annual salary, subject to IRS limits, of which EMI may, at its
discretion, contribute a matching amount of up to 100% of the
employee contributions. Historically, EMI has contributed a
matching amount equal to approximately 30% of the employee
contribution. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fair market
value of plan assets was $3,279 and $2,653. Employer contribu-
tions to this plan were approximately $83, 879 and $83 in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The actuarially computed net periodic pension cost for our
three defined benefit plans and SERP combined for the years end-
ing December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, included the following:

2004 2003 2002

Service cost of benefits earned during the period $ 2,266 1,470 1,081
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,349 1,035 826
Expected return on plan assets (919) (663) (548)
Recognized net actuarial loss 1,015 608 235
Net amortization and deferral 490 114 196
Net periodic pension cost % ) 4,201 2,564 1,790
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ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF BENEFIT OBLIGATION:

Accumulated benefit obligations

Projected benefit obligations for service rendered to date
Plan assets at fair value
Projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Unrecognized net loss from past experience different from that assume

Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost
Unrecognized net obligations at inception recognized over 15.29 years

Accrued pension cost

The following tables set forth the status of our three defined
benefit plans and SERP combined for the years ending December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

= == = ===

R 2004 2003

CHANGE (N BENEFIT OBLIGATION:
Benefit obligation, January 1 $ 20,579 15,293
Service cost 2,266 1,470
Interest cost 1,349 1,035
Actuarial loss 4,263 2,815
Benefits paid (1,476) (379
Benefit ob]iqu}tivgl_llDe_c‘cgﬂ?g §1~ ~ $ 26,981 20,234
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS:
Fair value of plan assets, January 1 $ 12,133 8,383
Actual return on plan assets 2,035 636
Employer contributions 2,900 3,493
Benefis paid (1,476) (379)
Fair value of plan assets,

Decembcz 31 $ 15,592 12,133

Tz aix= =rme o=

Assumptions used in the accounting for the net periodic pen-
sion cost and plan status for our three defined benefit plans and
SERP combined for the vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, were as follows:

o rm Tt 2=00:4 2003 2002
Discount rates 5.50% 6.14% 6.39%
Rate of increase in
compensation levels 5.21% 5.18% 5.04%
Return on assets o 7.14% 7.10% 6.76%
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2004 2003 2002
% (16,364) (14,407) (10,392)
$ (26,981) (20,234) (15,293)
15,592 12,133 8,383
(11,389) (8.101) (6,910)
d 7,862 6,525 4,302
851 G7) 235
o 101 131 169
$ (2573 (1,502) (2,204)

Assumptions used in the accounting for the benefit obligation
for our three defined benefit plans and SERP combined for the
vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, were as follows:

2004 2008 2002
Discount rates 5.50% 5.83% 6.47%
Rate of increase in

compensation levels 5.29% 5.17% 5.18%
Return on assets 7.00% 7.14% 6.70%

Both FPIC and AFP maintain a diversified investment strategy
in managing its defined benefit plans and consider investment risk
and return on assets, This is accomplished by maintaining portfo-
lios of managed pooled separate accounts with their
administrator-investment providers, which include investments in
equity and debt securities, and to a limited extent real estate. The
plans assets are not invested in derivative securities.

As of December 31, 2004, approximately 71%, 28% and 1% of
the FPIC defined benefit plan assets were held in debt securities,
equity securities and real estate, respectively. AFP’s defined benefit
plan assets were comprised of 44% equity securities, 38% debt
securities and 18% convertible debt securities. We do not expect our
allocadon percentages to change significantly in the near future.
Debe securities in both FPIC and AFP include a combination of
money market, bond and mortgage backed investments. Equity
securites are fairly evenly distributed in a diversified portfolio of
large, medium and small cap investments, with a modest interna-
tional component.

FPIC’s and AFP’s portfolios are subject to review periodically
and rebalanced accordingly, if market conditions change or the
portfolio needs to be rebalanced to meet target allocations.
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note Fourteen. Commitments and Contingencies

The future minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable

operating leases are as follows:

12005 $ 3,271
2006 2,920
2007 2,613
2008 2,572
2009 1,478
Thereafter 2,903
Total $ 15,757

Total rental expense wias 32,257, $2.636 and $2,581 for 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

FPIC’s insurance subsidiaries from time to time become subject
to claims for extra-contractual obligations or risks in excess of
policy limits in connection with their insurance claims. These
claims are sometimes referred to as “bad faith” actions as it is
alleged that the insurance company acted in bad faith in the
administration of a claim against an insured. Bad faith actions are
infrequent and generally occur in instances where a jury verdict
exceeds the insured’s policy limits. Under such circumstances, it is
routinely alleged that the insurance company failed to negotiate a
settlement of a claim in good faith within the insured’s policy
limit. FPIC has evaluated such exposures as of December 31,
2004, and believes its position and defenses are meritorious.
However, there can be no absolute assurance as to the outcome
of such exposures. FPIC currently maintains insurance for such
occurrences, which serves to limit exposure to such claims. In
addition, multiple claims for extra contractual obligations in a sin-
gle year could result in potential exposures materially in excess of
insurance coverage or in increased costs of insurance coverage.

Based on analysis of our exposure to extra-contractual obliga-
tions and claims in excess of policy limits (“ECO/XPL”), we
elected not to renew the supplemental awards made ECO/XPL
reinsurance that we had carried in addition to the ECO/XPL
coverage already included as part of our primary excess of loss
reinsurance program. Therefore, this additional Iayer of excess rein-
surance is no longer in effect after April 27, 2004 and we now
retain this excess risk.
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FPIC may also become involved in legal actions not involving
claims under its insurance policies from time to time. FPIC has
evaluated such exposures as of December 31, 2004, and in all
cases, believes its position and defenses are meritorious. However,
there can be no absolute assurance as to the outcome of such
exposures.

FPIC’ insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessment by the
financial guaranty associations in the states in which they conduct
business for the provision of funds necessary for the settlement of
covered claims under certain policies of insolvent insurers.
Generally, these associations can assess member insurers on the
basis of written premiums in their particular states.

In addition to standard assessments, the Florida and Missouri
Legislatures may also levy special assessments to settle claims
caused by certain catastrophic losses. FPIC would be assessed on
the basis of premiums written in the state. No special assessments
were made in 2004 and 2003. In addition, FPIC could be subject
to additional assessments in the future as a result of damages
caused by catastrophic losses, such as a hurricane.

While management has evaluated the.incidents and circum-
stances surrounding the above-mentioned asserted or unasserted
legal claims and assessments of which it is aware and believes that
these will not have materially adverse effects on FPIC beyond
amounts already recognized and accrued, there can be no absolute

assurance as to their ultimate outcomes.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN AFP aND PRI. See Note 18,
Related Party Transactions, Management Agreement with PRI
and Reinsurance Services, to the consolidated financial statements
for information about the management agreement with PRI.
FPIC has also issued two irrevocable letters of credit in the
amount of $500,000 as collateral under the operating leases for
the buildings occupied by AFP in Manhasset and Lake Success,
New York.




note rieTeen. Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Data with respect to FPIC’ basic and diluted earnings per common share are shown below:

NET INCOME (LOSS):
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss)

trmmm— amim: o= o= o=

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss)

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss)

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Common stock equivalents

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

2004 2003 2002

§ 28,181 16,572 14,876

_______ — i (29,578)

s 28181 16,572 (14,702)

$ 283 175 158

o = - (3.15)

s 28 175 (1.57)

$ 270 1.71 1.58

______ — — (3.14)
- S 200 L/ {139 .

9,973 9,483 9,387

o 447 182 45

10,420 9,665 9,432

NoTE sixTeen, Segment Information

In accordance with the provisions of FAS 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” FPIC has
determined that it has three reportable operating segments: insur-
 ance, insurance management and TPA. Our insurance segment
specializes in professional Hability insurance products and services for
physicians, dentists and other healthcare providers. The insurance
management segment contains our subsidiary AFP, which serves as
the exclusive manager and attornev-in-fact of PRI, an insurance
reciprocal in New York. PRI is a major client of ours and our rev-
enues and results of operagons are ﬁnanciaﬂy sensitive to its revenues
and financial condition. We do not own PRI, or have a controlling
financial interest in PRI, nor is PRI considered a variable interest
entity under FIN 46R and so PRI’ financial statements are not con-
solidated or included in ours. Instead, PRI is similar to a mutual
insurer and the risks and rewards of ownership basically vest with the
policyholders of PRI. The insurance management segment also pro-
vides brokerage, administration and intermediary services for
insurance and reinsurance programs to PRI and FPIC. Our TPA seg-
ment provides administrative and claims management services to
self-insured employer groups for group accident and health, workers’
compensation and general liability and property insurance plans.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those

described in the summary of significant accounting policies found
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in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies. We evaluate a segment’s
performance based on net income or loss and account for inter-
segment sales and transfers, which are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements, as if the sales or transfers were to
a third party. Holding company operations are included within the
msurance segment due to its size and prominence and the substan-
tial attention devoted to the segment. We believe that intersegment
revenues associated with transactions between the segments would
be reasonably approximate with similar products or services that
may have been obtained from or provided to unrelated third par-
ties. All segments are managed separately because each respective
business is distinct in terms of markets served, products and serv-
ices, technology and required business resources and strategies.

The following table provides a reconciliation of reportable
segment assets to FPIC’ consolidated assets:

2004 2003 2002

Combined assets for

reportable segments $1,556,217 1,430,006 1,262,407
Investments in

consolidated investees (280,582)  (245,098)  (233,069)
Intercompany receivables (4,329) (2,152) (2,907)

Totalﬂconsolidated assets __$1_,271,30”6w 1,182,756 1,026,431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

Selected financial information by segment follows:

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

INSURANCE

TOTAL

INTERSEGMENT

INSURANCE MANAGEMENT TPA SEGMENTS ELIMINATIONS ~ CONSOLIDATED
Net premium earned £ 149,676 — — 149,676 — 149,676
Claims administration
and management fees Y —_ 39,100 14,146 53,246 — 53,246
Net investment income £ 20,627 126 6 20,759 —_— 20,759
Total revenue § 175,093 48,530 16,384 240,007 (3,200) 236,807
Depreciation and amortization 8 2,707 1,526 303 4,536 —_— 4,536
Interest expense on debt L3 2,564 — — 2,564 — 2,564
Income tax expense £ 3,262 8,006 673 16,941 — 16,941
Minority interest $ — 248 —_ 248 — 248
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change § 16,272 10,870 1,039 28,181 — 28,181
Net income § 16,272 10,870 1,039 28,181 — 28,181
Identifiable assets $1,225,761 44,520 5,354 1,275,635 (4,329) 1,271,306
Goodwill $ 10,833 8,037 — 18,870 — 18,870
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
INSURANCE TOTAL INTERSEGMENT
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT TPA SEGMENTS ELIMINATIONS ~ CONSOLIDATED
Net premium earned $ 131,665 — — 131,665 — 131,665
Claims administration
and management fees $ — 26,582 14,313 40,895 — 40,895
Net investment income $ 18,285 116 13 18,414 — 18,414
Total revenue $ 153,231 36,604 16,514 206,349 (4,625) 201,724
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,796 1,194 393 3,383 — 3,383
Interest expense on debt % 5,886 — — 5,886 — 5,886
Income tax expense $ 2,389 6,217 711 9,317 — 9,317
Minority interest $ —_ 94 — 94 — 94
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change $ 6,803 8,839 930 16,572 — 16,572
Net income $ 6,803 8,839 930 16,572 — 16,572
Identifiable assets $1,139,279 39,634 5,995 1,184,908 (2,152) 1,182,756
Goodwill $ 10,833 8,037 — 18,870 —_ 18,870
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
INSURANGE TOTAL INTERSEGMENT
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT TPA SEGMENTS ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED
Net premium earned $ 151,684 — — 151,684 —_ 151,684
Claims administration
and management fees $ — 24,341 12,693 37,034 — 37,034
Net investment income $ 20,793 141 43 20,977 — 20,977
Total revenue $ 178,659 31,678 15,302 225,639 (3,699) 221,940
Depreciation and amortization $ 6,572 885 503 7,960 — 7,960
Interest expense on debt $ 4,762 — — 4,762 — 4,762
Income tax expense $ 4,162 4,463 209 8,834 — 8,834
Minority interest $ — 172 — 172 — 172
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change $ 3,287 6,277 312 14,876 —_— 14,876
Cumulative effect of accounting change $ — (24,363) (5,213) (29,578) — (29,578)
Net income $ 8,287 (18,086) {4,903) (14,702) — (14,702)
Identifiable assets $ 984,470 38,585 6,283 1,029,338 (2,907) 1,026,431
Goodwill $ 10,833 8,037 — 18,870 — 18,870
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NOTE SEVENTEEN. Smtu[ory A(counting

First Professionals, APAC, Intermed and Interlex are required to
file statutory-basis financial statements with state insurance regula-
tory authorities. The insurance subsidiaries are restricted under the
Florida and Missouri Insurance Codes as to the amount of divi-
dends they may pay without regulatory consent. In 2005, and
based on the amounts of capital and surplus of our insurance sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2004, dividends of $16,024 may be
paid to FPIC, the holding company, without regulatory consent.

FPIC’ insurance subsidiaries: First Professionals, APAC,
Intermed and Interlex prepare financial statements for regulatory
purposes on a statutory-basis in conformity with the accounting
practices prescribed or permitted by the states of Florida and
Missouri. On a consolidated basis and at the subsidiary level,
FPIC’s statutory capital and surplus exceeded applicable regulatory
and risk-based capital requirements.

The restricted net assets for FPIC's insurance subsidiaries at
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

2004 2003

2002
First Professionals $130,862 106,967 99,772
APAC $ 13,356 13,508 13,151
Intermed $ 29,333 25,265 24,743
Interlex $ 7,243 6,117 5,822

#

i
*

The statutory capital and surplus for FPIC’s insurance sub-
sidiaries at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, is shown in the

table below.

_________ 2004 2003 2002
First Professionals $145,402 118,873 110,858
APAC 14,840 15,009 14,612
Intermed 30,951 26,991 24,743
IntcArAl.c.\f_ 8,048 6,797 6,541
Combined

statutory surplus 199,241 167,670 156,754
Less: Intercompany

climinations (38,999) (33,788) (31,284)
Consolidated

statutory surplus $160,242 133,882 125,470

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the
statutory net income (loss) for FPIC’ insurance subsidiaries was

as follows:

2004 2003 2002
First Professionals $ 9,063 2,524 10,961
APAC (45) 1,032 569
Intermed (446) 2,316 1,295
lmerlci ...... 1,103 287 99
Total statutory income § 9,675 6,159 12,924
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note etaHTeEN. Related Party Transactions

Following is a summary of the related party transactions of FPIC and its consolidated subsidiaries included in the consolidated

financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Credit balances

are presented parenthetically.

DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:

Other invested assets $ —_ 788

Premiums receivable $ 5,374 8,608

Reinsurance recoverable ion paid losses $ 2,663 2,738

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums $ 10,538 12,012

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums, fronting arrangements® $ 72224 70,462

Ceded unearned premiums $ — 3,638

Ceded unearned premiums, fronting arrangements® $ 2,550 12,848

Deferred policy acquisition costs § 3,002 4,035

Deferred policy acquisition costs, fronting arrangements $ — (535)

Other assets $ 7,882 4,171

Liability for losses and LAE $ (25,292) (20,555)

Unearned premiums $ (46,575) (47,240)

Reinsurance payable $ (248) (23)

Reinsurance payable, fronting arrangements $ (4,372 (11,738)

Other liabilities $  (7,793) (8,759)

(1): Corresponding liability for losses and LAE under fronting arrangements was (873,122) and (§71,620) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(2): Corresponding unearned premiums under fronting arrangements was (82,790} and (812,848} as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

2004 2003 2002

STATEMENTS OF INCOME {LOSS):

Net premiums earned $ (6,059 (3,478) (6,921)

Ceded premiums earned, fronting arrangements™ 8 35,563 45,729 51,736

Claims administration and management fees 8 (39,100) (26,582) (24,341)

Finance charge and other income $ — (64) {50

Net losses and LAE $ 2,885 (2,289) {(1,532)

Ceded losses and LAE, fronting arrangements® $  (22,390) (44,697) (27,000)

Other underwriting expenses $ 692 3,804 2,774

Other underwriting expenses, fronting arrangements $ (4,971 (6,382) (4,417)

Other expenses $ 213 213 248

(1): Corresponding direcr premiums earned under fronting arrangements were (§35,559), (§45,726) and (852,079) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(2): Corresponding direct losses and LAE incurred under fronting arrangements were $22,338, 844,768 and $27,290 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH APA MANAGEMENT, INC. ("APAM®) premiums (net of refunds) consisting of an annual 10.5% service
AND CONSULTING GROUP OF APA, INC. (-cGa"). Effective June 30, fee and 4% claims management fee. Effective January 1, 2002, the
1998, FPIC entered into a management services agreement with agreement was amended to implement a sliding fee scale of 14.5%
APAM and CGA, to provide FPIC with all necessary insurance on the first $8 million of written premiums, 11% on written
management and administrative services for APAC, a wholly premiums between $8 million and $10 million, and 10% on all
owned subsidiary of FPIC. FPIC has an indirect financial interest written premiums in excess of $10 million. In addition, the CGA
in APAM through its 9.8% interest in APAL, which owns 100% of fee was $500 annually. The agreement as it concerns APAM
APAM. Prior to January 1, 2002, the agreement provided that also provided that anesthesiologist business produced by First

APAM would receive an annual fee of 14.5% of direct
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. Professionals or its respective agents would be transferred to




APAC upon renewal, assuming the insured agreed, and that APAM would receive an annual 1% service fee on such business. As of
December 31, 2003 the management agreement with APAM and the CGA consulting agreement had expired.

The following table summarizes the related party assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 resulting from the management agreements with APAM and CGA.

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Net Losses and LAE:
Claims handling fees incurred

Other Underwriting Expenses:

Management fees and consulting fees incurred

FPIC also had two management agreements to provide invest-
ment management and information technology support services to
APAM, which terminated on December 31, 2003. Total revenues
earned by FPIC from these agreements totaled approximately
$64 and 830 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

25% QUOTA SHARE REINSURANCE AGREEMENT WITH APAL

On July 1, 1998, First Professionals and APAC also entered into
quota share reinsurance agreements with APAL whereby these two
subsidiaries ceded a 25% quota share portion of all business writ-

ten by them related to anesthesiologists and certain related

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums
Other assets

Ceded unearned premiums

Reinsurance payable

Trrizmmm— smam:

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:

Net Premiums Earned:
Ceded premiums earned

Net Losses and LAE:
Ceded losses and LAE incurred

Other Underwriting Expenses:
Ceding commissions carned

P mom o=

See Note 8, Reinsurance, for additional information on the
“ collateral held under these programs.

FRONTING PROGRAMS WITH APAL (SPC) LIMITED

Effective in 2001, APAL formed a new subsidiary, APAL (SPC)
Limited, which was established in accordance with Section 235(1)
of the Company Law 2nd Revision of Caymanian Law as a segre-
gated portfolio corporation. FPIC’s subsidiary, APAC, had

fs mrmocsmazmss —— e v T s

2002

e 2003
$ — 1,115 951
- $ — 3,407 2,732

specialties to APAL. The agreements were entered into in connec-
tion with and at the time of FPIC’ acquisition of APAC.

Effective December 31, 2003, FPIC did not renew or extend the
quota share reinsurance agreements whereby First Professionals and
APAC ceded 25% of their anesthesiologists’ MPL business to APAL.
As a result, no further written premiums were ceded to APAL,
effective January 1, 2004 and business ceded under these agreements
through December 31, 2003, has been placed into run off.

The following table summarizes the related party assets and liabil-
ities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and expenses
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 resulting
from the 25% quota share reinsurance agreement with APAL.

AS OF AS OF
o DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
§ 2,663 2,738
§ 10,538 12,012
8 — 111
$ — 3,638
$  (248) (23)
izzm:;ﬁr o 29_0‘4 - T ;003 ‘_ 2(‘);2_‘
$ 3,792 8,210 7,046
$  (3,187) (8,001) (7,056)
e S G58) (1,642) (1,412)

developed alternative risk insurance programs whereby segregated
portfolio corporations were formed to assume workers’ compensa-
tion risks. APAC received a fee for the use of its policy forms and
does not retain the underwriting risks or incur the administrative
expenses under these programs. Like other reinsurance agree-
ments, APAC does remain liable to the insureds under these
programs as the primary insurer in the event APAL (SPC) Limited

or other reinsurers under these programs were not to perform.
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Therefore, APAC maintains collateral in the form of assets in trust and irrevocable letters of credit corresponding with applicable reinsur-
ance recoverable balances. All of these programs have been terminated as of December 31, 2004 or prior, and have been placed into run off.

The following table summarizes the related party assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 resulting from the fronting programs with APAL (SPC) Limited. The corresponding
direct business with non-related parties is indicated in the footnotes to the table.

AS OF AS OF
DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums® $ 17,748 14,938
Ceded unearned premiums, fronting arrangements® $ 2,550 10,866
Reinsurance payable $  (4,372) (11,738)
2004 2003 2002
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Net Premiums Earned:
Ceded premiums earned® $ 23479 26,262 17,998
Net Losses and LAE: . )
Ceded losses and LAE incurred® $ (16,529 (20,014) (7,427)
Other Underwriting Expenses:
Fronting fee income earned $ (1,709) (2,020) (803)

(1): Corresponding liability for losses and LAE were ($17,748) and (§14,938) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(2): Corresponding unearned premiums were (82,790) and (810,866} as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(3): Corresponding direct premiums earned were ($23,479), (826,262) and (817,998) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
(4): Corresponding direct losses and LAE incurred were $16,529, $20,014 and $7,427 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

See Note 8, Reinsurance, for additional information on the approximately $9.3 million of paid losses and- LAE with a corre-
collateral held under these programs. sponding reduction in reserves. There was no net income effect

from this commutation, due to the prior accrual of such charge.
REINSURANCE AGREEMENTS WITH PRI , , ) i
) . . . Effective January 1, 2000, First Professionals entered into a
On July 1, 1998, First Professionals began assuming reinsurance ] )
. . T . 100% quota share reinsurance agreement with PRI to assume
from PRI, a writer of medical liability insurance in the state of , ) ) i ) o
) . L. PRIs DD&R risks under its claims~made insurance policies in
New York. PRI is managed by an attorney-in~fact, AFP, which is a i ) )
exchange for cash and investments in the amount of $47.0 mil-

lion. During 2000, a GAAP valuation of the underlying liability
was completed and a deferred credit in the amount of $13.2 mil-

wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC. Under one contract, which
reinsures PRI for policies with limits of $1.0 million in excess of

1.0 million, First Professionals assumed losses only and paid PRI o . .
$ di on r . " th , 4 Eyff t' PA 11 lion was recognized. The deferred credit, which is being amortized
a ceding commission on the premiums assumed. Effective April 1, o ,
2002, the contract was changed to reinsure PRI for policies with inco income over 20 years, represents the difference between the
limits of $1.0 million in excess of $1.3 million. First Professionals
and PRI elected not to renew their excess of loss reinsurance
treaty effective July 1, 2004.

During the first quarter of 2002, a former excess of loss reinsur-

GAAP valuation of the liability and the initial preminm received.
The liability was calculated using benefit assumptions and ele-
ments of pension actuarial models (i.c., mortality, morbidity,
retirement, interest and inflation rate assumptions). In connection
; _ . with the agreement, First Professionals recognized a 5% cedin,
ance treaty with PRI relating to losses of $0.25 million in excess o g ’ ] & ) ) ,g
o ) . commiission expense, which was deferred and is being amortized
of $0.5 million was commuted. As a result of this commutation,

. ‘ . . as premiums are earned under the agreement.
during the first quarter of 2002, First Professionals reported P §
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The following table summarizes the related party assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and expenses for

the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 resulting from the reinsurance agreements with PRI.

AMOQUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:

Premiums receivable

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Liability for losses and LAE
Unearned premiums

Other liabilities (deferred credit)

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Net Premiums Earned:
Assumed premiums earned
Net Losses and LAE:
Assumed losses and LAE incurred
Other Underwriting Expenses:
Assuming commissions incurred
Deferred credit amortization

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WiTH PRI AND REINSURANCE SERVICES

AFP has an exclusive ten-year management agreement with PRI
with the current term ending December 31, 2008. During 2002,
the management agreement between AFP and PRI was amended
to remove the sharing by AFP of 10% of PRI’ statutory net
income or loss, effective January 1, 2002, Compensation under the
agreement as originally in effect was equal to 13% of PRI’ direct
premiums written, with an adjustment for expected return premi-
ums, plus or minus 10% of PRI’ statutory net income or loss.
With regard to profit sharing amounts already earned and col-
lected, AFP has agreed pursuant to the amendment, to consider
the years 1999, 2000 and 2001 re-open for re-determination and
possible adjustment for a period of five years each (expiring 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively). Such adjustments would be based
primarily on development of and related adjustments, if any, to loss
and LAE reserves for those years, There have been no adjustments
to date. AFP had previously earned and collected profit sharing
amounts under the original agreement totaling $3,548 million for
the three vears ended December 31, 2001. In accordance with the
amended agreement, AFP also agreed to pay 6% annual interest on

the 10% profit share amounts previously earned and collected
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AS OF AS OF
_____ _ DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
$ 5,374 8,608
$ 3,002 4,035
$ (25292) (20,555)
$ (46,575) (47,240)
§ (6,783) (7,729)
™ vean
§ (9852 (11,689) (13,966)
$ 6072 4,598 4573
$ 1,889 2,584 2,475
$ (946) (1,020) (1,258)

under the original agreement for 1999, 2000 and 2001, while
those years remain open for possible future re-determination and
adjustment, if any. In addition, AFP is reimbursed for 50% of the
costs associated with the risk management department it maintains
for PRI insureds. The management agreement and amendment
were reviewed and approved by the New York State Insurance
Department.

FPIC’ revenues and results of operations are financially sensitive
to the revenues and results of operations of PRI. We do not own
or have a controlling financial interest in PRI, nor is PRI consid-
ered a variable interest entity under FIN 46(R) and so PRI’s
financial statements are not consolidated or included in ours.
Instead, PRI is similar to a mutual insurer and the risks and
rewards of ownership vest with the policyholders of PRI. PRI, as
an MPL insurer, is subject to many of the same types of risks as
those of FPIC’ insurance subsidiaries. In addition, PRI is regu-
lated by the New York State Insurance Department and files
annual and quarterly statements with the department containing
its financial statements, prepared on the statutory-basis of account-

ing, and other data.
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The following table summarizes the related party assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and expenses for the years

ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 resulting from the management agreement with PRI.

AS OF

AS OF
DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANGIAL POSITION:
Other assets 8 7,227 4,046
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ (1,010) (1,030)
B n :_A;:O-;Tr# '2003 2002
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Claims Administration and Management Fees:
Management fees $ (38,152) (26,582) (24,341)
Other Expenses:
Loss sharing $ — — 35
Interest expense $ 213 213 213

In addition to the management agreement with PRI, AFP
through its subsidiary FPIC Intermediaries provides brokerage,
administration and intermediary services for insurance and rein-
surance programs to PRI with the brokerage commissions being
paid by the reinsuring company. As a result of its relationship with
PRI, FPIC Intermediaries earned brokerage commissions of
$1,434, $1,718 and $1,744 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 for the placement reinsurance on behalf of
PRI with other reinsurance carriers. FPIC Intermediaries also
earned brokerage commissions of $432, $1,008 and $952 from
First Professionals for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 for the placement of reinsurance with First Professionals
from PRI. The brokerage commissions from First Professionals are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

For a summary of all revenues and expenses associated with the
PRI management agreement and related brokerage and reinsur-
ance intermediary services performed for it, refer to the selected
financial information presented for the insurance management
segment in Note 16, Segment Information, preceding.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH PAPRI
Effective July 1, 2004, PRM commenced operations as the admin-
istrator and attorney-in-fact of PaPRI. PaPRI is an insurance
exchange domiciled in Pennsylvania. It was formed to take the
place of the unrelated fronting carrier that has underwritten, and
ceded as reinsurance to PRI, medical professional liability insur-
ance program business in Pennsylvania. PaPRI commenced
underwriting the Pennsylvania program business effective July 1,
2004. PaPRI is not a subsidiary of PRM, AFP or FPIC. As an
insurance exchange, the organization of PaPRI is similar to that
of a mutual insurance company. PaPRI is also not a subsidiary
of PRI, but has received its initial capitalization in the form of a
subordinated surplus note from PRI

PaPRI cedes 100% of the Pennsylvania program business in the
form of reinsurance to PRI. PRM management fees were $0.7
million for the three months ended December 31, 2004. Direct
premiums written by PaPRI during the three months ended
December 31, 2004 were $3,295.

AS OF AS OF
DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
Other assets $ 655 —
2004 2003 2002
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Claims Administration and Management Fees:
Management fees $ (948) — —
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FRONTING PROGRAM WITH PRI

Effective July 1, 2000, First Professionals entered into an agree-
ment with PRI whereby First Professionals, through PMA, served
as the fronting carrier for an MPL insurance program in
Pennsylvania for PRI. Under this program, whereby business was
written on First Professionals’ policy forms and ceded to PRI
under a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement, FPIC received
a fronting fee of 7% and PMA received an administration fee of
20% of premiums written, in return for its services to PRI, which
include underwriting, claims management and other administrative
aspects of this program. PMA also pays all commissions and bro-

kerage to outside agents and brokers for the placement of business

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums”
Ceded unearned premiums®
Deferred policy acquisition costs

s=rmr s o= om

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:

Net Premiums Earned:
Ceded premiums earned”’
Net Losses and LAE:
Ceded losses and LAE incurred®
Other Underwriting Expenses:
Ceding conunissions earned

2r zseiz=o= zmiz omow o= ==

agreement were amended to cede 100% of the premiums written
to PRI. The amendment has been filed with the New York State
Insurance Department.

Effective August 1, 2003, PRI engaged an unrelated fronting
carrier and no new or renewal business was written on First
Professionals’ policy forms thereafter.

The following table summarizes the related party assets and lia-
bilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
resulting from the fronting program with PRI.The corresponding
direct business with non-related parties is indicated in the foot-
notes to the table.

AS OF AS OF

DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003

$ 40,216 37,296

$ — 1,982

$ — (535)
TTTTTTTTT 20;»04 T 2003 0 2002u— -

$ 12,084 16,145 11,418

$ (9,830 (21,005) (10,221)
- $ (3,262 (4,358) (3,045)

!

(1): Corresponding liabiliry for losses and LAE were (840,807) and (838,454) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(2): Corresponding unearned preminms were ($1,982) as of December 31, 2003, respectively.

(3): Corresponding direct premiums earned were (§12,080), ($16,143) and (§11,762) for the years ended December 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(4): Corresponding direct losies and LAE incurred were $9,779, $21,076 and $10,511 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

See Note 8, Reinsurance, for additional information on the collateral held under these programs.
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FRONTING PROGRAM WITH AMERICAN PHYSICIANS INSURANCE
EXCHANGE (“APIE™)

FPIC had an insurance program with APIE, a Texas medical pro-
fessional liability insurance exchange, whereby, through December
31,2002, business was written on First Professionals’ policy forms
and substantially all the underlying insurance risks and premiums
were ceded to APIE for a fronting fee. We owned 20% of the out-
standing common stock of APS, which serves as the exclusive
management company for APIE, until October 1, 2003, at which
time we sold our 20% investment to the majority (80%) owner for
$2,050 in cash. A small gain was recognized on this transaction.

One of our senior officers alsc served on the APS board of direc-
tors. This program was terminated effective December 31, 2002.

The APIE fronting program expired December 31, 2002, at
which time we ceased writing business for APIE on our policy
forms and placed the existing business in run off.

The following table summarizes the related party assets and lia-
bilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and revenues and
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
resulting from the fronting program with APIE. The correspon-
ding direct business with non-related parties is indicated in the
footnotes to the table.

AS OF AS OF

DEC 31, 2004 DEC 31, 2003
AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and advance premiums® $ 14,260 18,228
: '2—00;“_‘ 2003 2002

AMOUNTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME:
Net Premiums Earned:

Ceded premiums earned? $ — 3,321 22,319
Net Losses and LAE:

Ceded losses and LAE incurred® $ 3,969 (3,678) (9,352)
Other Underwriting Expenses:

Fronting fee income $ — 3) (569)

(1): Corresponding liability for losses-and LAE were (814,567) and ($18,228) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(2): Corresponding direct premiums earned were ($3,321) and ($22,319) for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respecively.

(3): Corresponding direct losses and LAE incurred were (83,969), $3,678 and $9,352 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

See Note 8, Reinsurance, for additional information on the
collateral held under these programs.

OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The principal owner of one of FPIC’ insurance agents and bro-
kers serves as a director of FPIC. This director’s firm also acts as
FPIC’s agent in purchasing its internal insurance. The commissions
paid by FPIC to the director’s firm were approximately $343,
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$338 and $227 during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. In addition, FPIC obtains corporate legal
services from time to time from an outside law firm, a partner of
which is also a director of FPIC. Costs incurred during the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 by FPIC with respect
to these legal services were $163, $136 and $11, respe‘ctively‘




note ninereen.  Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

The following is a summary of our unaudited quarterly consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004,

2003 and 2002:

2004

Direct and assumed premiums written
Net premium written
Net premiums earned
Net investment income
Total revenues

Net income

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

2003

Direct and assumed premiums written

Net premium written
Net prenuums earned
Net investment mcome
Total revenues

Net income

Basic earnings per share

mrorzmm== smim: = = =

Diluted earnings per share

2002

Direct and assumed premiums written

Net premium written

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Total revenues

Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change

Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of an income tax benefit

Net (loss) income

Basic (loss) earnings per share

Diluted (loss) earnings per share

NoTE TWENTY. Subscquent Event

In January 20053, FPIC signed a definitive agreement with
WebTPA, Inc. (“WebTPA") to sell the TPA segment’s employee
benefits administration business for approximately $0.3 million.
Due to continuing competitiveness issues in the employee benefits
administration marketplace, FPIC determined that its TPA seg-
ment would continue to be significantly challenged in this line
and that a sale represented the most orderly transition of the busi-
ness. Closing and final purchase price determination is subject to

certain terms and conditions, including obtaining required cus-
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FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
§ 98,604 77,102 77,179 59,843
$ 43,604 33,327 65,118 50,483
$ 35,012 31,668 38,873 44,123
$ 5621 4,564 5,039 5,535
$ 57,563 52,065 60,655 66,524
$ 7,010 6,457 7,529 7.185
$ 071 0.65 0.75 0.72
$ 068 0.62 0.72 0.68
o FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
$104,533 84,395 87,808 64,003
$ 38,996 35,871 46,624 21,643
$ 28,908 31,870 10,895 29,992
$ 4,503 4719 4,680 4512
$ 44,129 49,141 60,093 48,361
$ 2,760 3,498 5,381 4,933
$ 029 0.37 0.56 0.53
$ 029 0.37 0.56 0.49
o :F;;' SECOND THIRD FOURTH
niums h § 89,238 90,426 90,856 74,187
$ 56,196 57,164 (6,448) 33,336
S 39,342 47,560 30,435 34,347
§ 4,888 5813 5,688 4,588
$ 33,416 62,775 50,407 55,342
$ 2,865 2,609 4,415 4,987
$ (29,578) — — -
$ (26,713) 2,609 4,415 4,987
§  (2.85) 0.28 0.47 053
i ) 5 (2.82) 0.26 0.47 053

tomer consents to assign related administrative contracts. In
accordance with FAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment and
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the results of the employee bene-
fits administration business will be reported as a discontinued
operation beginning in the first quarter of 2005. As of December
31, 2004, the assets and liabilites related to this operation included
in our consolidated statements of financial position were $0.8

million and $0.5 million, respectively.




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

ANNUAL MEETING
The 2005 shareholders’ meeting will be held Wednesday, June 1
at 10:00 a.m. at the Omni Hotel, 245 Water Street, Jacksonville,
Florida 32202.

FORM 10-K
A copy of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for-the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, is available without charge upon written
request from:

Investor Relations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

225 Water Street, Suite 1400

Jacksonville, FL 32202

904-354-2482 Ext. 3287

FINANCIAL PUBLICATIONS
Information about FPIC Insurance Group, Inc., including copies
of the Annual Report to Shareholders and the Annual Report on
Form 10-K, may be requested through the Company’s website at
http: //www.fpic.com or via e-mail at ir@fpic.com or by calling
Investor Relations at 904-354-2482 Ext. 3287 or by writing to:

Investor Relations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

225 Water Street, Suite 1400

Jacksonville, FL 32202
904-354-2482 Ext. 3287

Our website also provides access to our interactive e-mail
notification service simply by adding your e-mail address to the
“e-mail alert” section of our website. You will automatically be
alerted to any new press releases, earnings reports and SEC filings

via e-mail.
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STOCK DATA
The Company’s common stock is publicly traded on the Nasdag
National Market System under the symbol FPIC. The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low trades

as reported.

2004 HIGH TRADE LOW TRADE

First Quarter $ 2643 § 2190
Second Quarter $ 28.09 § 2037
Third Quarter $ 2714 § 2129

l_:ourth Quarter _iS_ 25.56 7 $__%5;2>8'

2003 HIGH TRADE LOW TRADE

First Quarter $ 835 $ 422
Second Quarter $ 1494 § 6.80
Third Quarter $ 1700 § 13.50
Fourth Quarter $ 2597 § 1477

As of March 7, 2005, the Company estimated that there were
approximately 2,115 shareholders of record of the Company’s
common stock.

We have not paid any dividends since 1996 because we have
elected to retain our earnings to support our growth. Qur Board
of Directors will periodically review our dividend policy in the
future taking into consideration capital adequacy and future assess-
ments of capital needs. As a holding company with no direct
operations other than the management of our subsidiaries, we
would rely on cash dividends and other permitted payments from
our subsidiaries to pay any future dividends to our stockholders.
State insurance laws limit the dividends or other amounts that
may be paid to us by our insurance subsidiaries. For information
regarding restrictions on the ability of the Company’s subsidiaries
to transfer funds to the Company in the form of cash dividends,
see Footnote 17, Statutory Accounting, in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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